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1. PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION  

1.1.   Department general information  

North West Department of Human Settlements 

Physical Address: 1st Floor West Wing, University Drive, Garona Building 

Postal Address:  Private Bag x2099, Mmabatho, 2735 

Telephone Number: 018 388 5176  

Email Address: nsephoti@nwpg.gov.za  
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1.2 LIST OF ACRONYMS

The below descrip�on of the acronyms intends to assist users to understand meanings of acronyms 

u�lized in the annual report:

APP    Annual Performance Plan

CCP    Creditor Central Payment 

CRU    Community Residen�al Units

DLG&HS   Department of Local Government and Human Se�lements

DORA    Divisions of Revenue Act

DPSA    Department of Public Service and Administra�on

EAP    Employee Assistance Programme

EHW    Employee Health and Wellness

EHWP    Employee Health and Wellness Programme

EXCO   Execu�ve Commi�ee 

FEED   Finance, Economic and Enterprise Development 

FLISP     Finance Linked Individual Subsidy Programme

GEMS                 Government Employee Medical Scheme

HCE    Housing Consumer Educa�on 

HDA   Housing Development Agency 

HOD    Head of Department

HRM    Human Resource Management

HSDG   Human Se�lements Development Grant

HSS    Housing Subsidy System

LIC    Labour Intense Methods of Construc�on 

MEC   Member of Execu�ve Council

MTEF   Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF    Medium Term Strategic Framework

NDoHS   Na�onal Department of Human Se�lements

NWDC    North West Development Corpora�on

PFMA    Public Finance Management Act

PMDS    Performance Management and Development Strategy

SCOPA   Standing Commi�ee on Public Accounts

SHERQ   Safety, Health, Environment, Risk and Quality

SMS    Senior Management Services
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1.3  Foreword by the MEC of the Department

The Annual Report of the financial year 2019/20 coincides with serious challenges both na�onally and 

globally.  Na�onally it coincides with the beginning of the sixth administra�on including 

reconfigura�on of departments and globally it coincides with the COVID 19 pandemic.  Both situa�ons 

have to some degree a nega�ve impact on our capacity to operate op�mally. 

 

These challenges have however not completely paralysed us to the extent of not being able to deliver 

on our historic mandate.    To this end the 2019/2020 reflects on the high level achievements of the 

newly reconfigured Department of Human Se�lements.

In the main, the focus is on the extent of crea�on of integrated and sustainable human se�lements 

specifically the crea�on of housing opportuni�es, access to serviced sites, issuing of �tle deeds and 

resolu�on of tribunal cases and among others.

During the financial year under review the department has managed to register an impact on the 

following broad areas in terms of Provincial deliverables:  In terms of transforming urban planning, the 

department is involved in two cataly�c projects, that is; N12 and Bokamoso, supported by the Na�onal 

Department of Human Se�lements.  The projects entail ameni�es that the communi�es need and are 

on the public transporta�on route.  To this end the Department has iden�fied and priori�sed 

development in the Madibeng, Mooinooi area, Brits, N4 Corridor, Moses Kotane, Matlosana N12, 

Rustenburg to effect spa�al transforma�on.

In terms of the crea�ng new ci�es and towns with a view to promo�ng de-racializa�on of society and 

consolida�on of peri-urban areas, efforts are under was in the Naledi municipality in Colridge and 

Alabama in Klerksdorp in this regard.

In terms of provision of housing for military veterans, the Department has a programme on housing for 

military veterans.  To this end 28 out of a total of 155 housing units have been constructed for 

qualifying military veterans.

 

· In terms of ensuring uniformity in the standard of housing provision, the Department has an 

implementa�on protocol with the Na�onal Housing Builders Regulatory Council (NHBRC) to 

ensure quality assurance.

· In terms of blocked projects, the Department has conducted an audit of all unfinished housing 

projects priori�sing certain areas with all the districts in the province and is at various stages of 

addressing these. 

The actual validated achievements will find expression in the respec�ve programmes.
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1.4    Report of the Accoun�ng Officer

This Annual Report of 2019/20 financial year endeavours to summarise achievements of the 

Human Se�lements department and hurdles that it was confronted with in the process of service 

delivery.  The recent reconfigura�on of departments in the North West Province in 2019 resulted in 

the erstwhile Department of Local Government and Human Se�lements split into two i.e Co-

opera�ve Governance and Tradi�onal Affairs (COGTA) and Department Human Se�lements. 

Subsequently the Human Se�lements Head of Department was appointed in October 2019, 

essen�ally to ensure con�nuity and establish a new department.  The appointment of the Head of 

Department was followed by the process of developing the five-year plan 2020-2025 Strategic Plan 

and the Annual Performance Plan 2020/21 respec�vely as immediate deliverables.

During the financial year under review the newly reconfigured Department of Human Se�lements 

managed to: 

· Facilitate the appointment of all Supply Chain Management commi�ees;

· Fast track housing delivery par�cularly on blocked projects.  This was preceded by an audit 

of such blocked projects by the department;

· Conducted consumer educa�on whose objec�ve is to educate beneficiaries of housing 

programmes on their rights and obliga�ons;

· Facilitate the buying of land for housing development within various municipali�es; and 

· Provided houses to Military Veterans.
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Programme expenditure

Below table outlines actual expenditure in comparison to the adjusted appropria�on for current 

and previous year:

Reasons for under expenditure 

• Compensa�on of employees registered under expenditure due to scares skills on building and 

engineering environment posts that were re-adver�sed as all interviewed candidates could not 

meet the minimum requirements for appointment. Cri�cal administra�on posts could also not be 

filled due to the PMOG process that was underway.  This resulted on the department being unable 

to spend 100% of its budget.

· Overall departmental goods and services registered under spending. The under spending was 

due the following: 

ü Unpaid rental tribunal claims for board members;

ü ICT maintenance projects not implemented;

ü Non-submission of land audits claims and related S&T expenditure.

Title Deeds Restora�on Grant (TDRG) under spending was caused by delay in opening of township 

registers, non-proclama�on of townships, beneficiary verifica�on, obtaining clearance le�ers and 

Power of A�orneys from the municipali�es and the issuing of Title Deeds.   

 

 

 

Voted funds and 
Direct charges 

 

Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance  Expenditure as 
per % of final 
Appropriation 

R'000 R'000 R'000 % 

Programme 

Administration 

Housing Needs, 
Planning and 
Research 

Housing 
Development 

 

110 370 

46 623 

 

 2 071 406 

 

 

71 479 

38 964 

 

1 777 965 

 

38 891 

6 659 

 

293 441 

 

64.8% 

85.4% 

 

85.8% 

Total per 
programme 

2 227 399 1 888 408 338 991 84.8% 

 

5

5
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Reasons for virements and Shi�ing 

· There were no virement and shi�ing made.

Rollover

· No rollover has been applied for.

Future plans of the Department

· The Department intends to provide delivery of human se�lements in an integrated manner. 

· Priori�se comple�on of old projects to ensure closure of those projects and handover of 

houses to beneficiaries;

· Priori�sa�on of filling of vacancies for cri�cal technical skills; 

· Decisively dealing with underperforming contractors. 

Public Private Partnerships

· The department has not entered into any Public Private Partnerships.

Discon�nued ac�vi�es / ac�vi�es to be discon�nued

· There are no ac�vi�es that have been discon�nued.

New or proposed ac�vi�es  

· There are no new ac�vi�es proposed.

Supply chain management 

List all unsolicited bids proposal concluded for the year under review:

o There were no unsolicited bids proposals concluded in the period under review.

 

 

 

 

Voted funds 
and Direct 
charges 

2019/20 

Adjusted 

appropriation 

Shifting 
of funds 

Virement Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance  Expenditure 
as per % of 
final 
Appropriation 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % 

Programme 

Administration 

Housing Needs, 
Planning and 
Research 

Housing 
Development 

 

110 370 

45 623 

 

 2 071 406 

 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

 

110 370 

45 623 

 

 2 071 406 

 

 

71 479 

38 964 

 

1 777 965 

 

38 891 

6 659 

 

293 441 

 

64.8% 

85.4% 

 

85.8% 

Total per 
programme 

2 227 399 - - 2 227 399 1 888 408 338 991 84.8% 
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Indicate whether Supply Chain Management processes and system are in place to prevent 

irregular expenditure 

o control measures implemented during the financial year to prevent irregular expenditure are 

as follows :

• Contract management including the pre- audit of all payments before disbursement 

of payment to avoid any payments with expired contracts;

• All extension of scope to be channelled through the required bid commi�ees and 

supply Chain Management as well as Provincial Treasury approval where required;

 

• Capacita�ng of Human Resource and Corporate Services to ensure the relevant 

controls with regard to Human Resource management and governance; 

• Monitoring and Evalua�on task team visits all milestones, paid during the quarter, to 

verify the existence as well as the quality of the milestones.  This control measure ensures 

that consequence management can be imposed in short �meframe if there is any 

unbecoming conduct in the verifica�on process.

Challenges experienced in Supply Chain Management and how they were resolved:

·     SCM directorate experienced lack of capacity and implementa�on of the new blueprint for 

Supply Chain Management, which s�ll remains a challenge. The main challenge during the 

previous financial year regarding capacity in Contract management has partly resolved 

through the appointment of an Assistant Director:  Contract Management.  The role of 

Supplier Performance management is s�ll a cri�cal area that need to be a�ended to during 

the next financial year.

Gi� dona�ons received in kind from non-related par�es

· No gi�s were received

Exemp�on and devia�on received from the Na�onal Treasury
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# DH NO: PROJECT NO: DESCRIPTION SERVICE PROVIDER 
VARIATION 

AMOUNT 

DEPARTMENTAL HOD 

APPROVAL STATUS 

PT 

APPROVA

L STATUS 

1   
B08030001/

2 

Approval 

funding due 

to Hard Rock 

Challenges 

on the 

Kagisano 

Rural 

Housing 340 

Project - 

Leungo 

Construction 

Enterprise cc:  

Kagisano 

Molopo Local 

Municipality. 

LEUNGO 

CONSTRUCTION 

ENTERPRISE 

R 1 838 233,80 
Recommended to 

PT 

Approve

d 

2   
B04070003/

1 

Request for 

additional 

funding for 

Makole 

Property 

Development

s at Meriting 

Ext 4 and 5 

under 

Rustenburg 

Local 

Municipality. 

MAKOLE 

PROPERTY 

DEVELOPMENTS 

  
Recommended to 

PT 

Still in 

Progress 

at PT 

3   
B00070001/

4 

Request for 

outstanding 

transport 

allowance 

amount for 

Maseno 

General 

Trade for 

construction 

of 478 

Housing 

Units in 

Saulspoort 

under Moses 

Kotane Local 

Municipality. 

MASENO 

GENERAL TRADE 
R 438 250,43 

Recommended to 

PT 

Still in 

Progress 

at PT 

4   
B16040074/

3 

Request for 

an approval 

of a second 

variation 

order for the 

MERON (PTY) LTD R 8 279 035,30 
Recommended to 

PT 
Resolved 
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4   
B16040074/

3 

Request for 

an approval 

of a second 

variation 

order for the 

Internal 

Services in 

Blydeville Ext 

4 Housing 

Project 

within Ngaka 

Modiri 

Molema 

District, for 

additional - 

Units and 

Hard Rock 

MERON (PTY) LTD R 8 279 035,30 
Recommended to 

PT 
Resolved 

5   
B18100007/

1 

Request for 

additional 

funding for 

removal of 

hard rock by 

Somandla 

Trading 14 at 

Ipelegeng Ext 

8, Mamusa 

Local 

Municipality  

under Dr 

Ruth 

Segomotsi 

Mompati 

District. 

SOMANDLA 

TRADING 14 
R 1 331 251,42 

Recommended to 

PT 

Still in 

Progress 

at PT 

6   
B17040037/

2 

Request for 

additional 

funding on 

the 

Rulaganyang 

Ext 2 Internal 

Services 

Project being 

implemented 

by Thahvani 

Trading 

Enterprise 

due to 

Geotechnical 

Allowance of 

the area. 

THAHVANI 

TRADING 

ENTERPRISE 

R 27 793 860,00 
Recommended to 

PT 

Approve

d by  PT 

 

#        DH NO:          PROJECT NO:     DESCRIPTION       SERVER PROVIDER   VARIATION AMOUNT   DEPARTMENTAL HOD

APPROVAL STATUS

PT

APPROVAL 

STATUS
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DH 

05/18B 

B18100003/

3 

Approval for 

extra 8 

stands, 

increase of 

subsidy 

quantum and 

eathworks 

rehabilitation 

for Internal 

Services at 

Bloemhof ext 

12:  Lekwa - 

Teemane 

Local 

Municipality. 

THOBILE M 

BUILDING 

CONSTRUCTION 

R 4 598 525,00 
Recommended to 

PT 
Approved 

DH23/17 
B16040096/

2 

Approval for 

extraordinary 

soil condition 

of the 

Middleton B 

Village for 30 

Units that has 

not yet 

commenced:  

Tswaing Local 

Municipality. 

ZIGGY 

INVESTMENTS CC 
R 839 400,00 

Recommended to 

PT 

Still in 

Progress 

at PT 

 

#        DH NO:          PROJECT NO:     DESCRIPTION       SERVER PROVIDER   VARIATION AMOUNT   DEPARTMENTAL HOD

APPROVAL STATUS

PT

APPROVAL 

STATUS

7+

Event a�er the repor�ng date

o None.

Others 

o None

Acknowledgement

I would like to convey my deepest apprecia�on to MEC Kegakilwe for his support, the management 

team and staff in general. 
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Conclusion

Department remains commi�ed to ensuring its opera�ons are in line with legal prescripts, is free 

from corrup�on and decisively takes ac�on to deal with any reported cases of mismanagement or 

fraudulent conduct.

_______________________

Adv. Neo Sepho� 

HOD:  Human Se�lements

Date :  _________________
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1.5 Statement of responsibility and confirma�on of accuracy for the annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:

All informa�on and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. The annual report 

is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. The annual report has been prepared in 

accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by Na�onal Treasury. The Annual 

Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and 

the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the Na�onal Treasury.

The Accoun�ng Officer is responsible for the prepara�on of the Annual Financial Statements and for 

the judgements made in this informa�on.  The Accoun�ng Officer is responsible for establishing and 

implemen�ng a system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as 

to the integrity and reliability of the performance informa�on, the human resources informa�on and 

the Annual Financial Statements. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 

opinion on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the opera�ons, the performance informa�on, the 

human resource informa�on and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 

March 2020.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 

Adv. Neo Sepho�

Head of Department

Department of Human Se�lements

Date : ____________
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1.1.6  Strategic Overview

Vision

· A community in an integrated and sustainable human se�lement.

Mission 

· To effec�vely plan, coordinate, provide and support the development of habitable 

integrated sustainable human se�lements in the Province. 

Values 

Our organisa�onal culture is depicted by the following a�ributes:

· Commitment

· Integrity

· Dedica�on

· Innova�ve

· Client focused

· Passion

· Efficient

· Accountable

1.7 Legisla�ons and other mandates 

The North West Department of Human Se�lements derive its mandate from the Cons�tu�on of the 

Republic of South Africa, Act no 108 of 1996. Sec�on 26(1) of the Cons�tu�on enshrines access to 

adequate housing as a basic right for people. The department is compelled to take reasonable 

measures within its available resources towards ensuring that all ci�zens enjoy this right (Sec�on 

26(2)). The following are Acts and Regula�ons that are also applicable in the department:

Ÿ  The Housing Act 107 of 1997;  

Ÿ  The Housing Consumers Protec�on Measure Act 19 of 1998; 

Ÿ  The Rental Housing Act 50, 1999; 

Ÿ  Public Service Act 103 of 1994

Ÿ  Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999; as amended

Ÿ  Labour Rela�ons Act 66 of 1995;

Ÿ  Development Facilita�on Act 67 of 1995; 

Ÿ  Breaking New Ground;

Ÿ  Construc�on Industry Development Board Act 2000 

Ÿ  Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998;

Ÿ  Skills Development Act 97 of 1998;
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Ÿ  Public Service Collec�ve Bargaining Chamber (PSCBC) Resolu�ons;

Ÿ  Occupa�onal Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993;

Ÿ  RDP White Paper;

Ÿ  The Public Service Regula�ons 2001;

Ÿ  The Promo�on of Access to Informa�on Act 2 of 2000;

Ÿ  Na�onal Minimum Informa�on Security Standard Policy of 1996;

Ÿ  The Protec�on of Informa�on Act 84 of 1982;

Ÿ  Cons�tu�on of the Republic of South Africa, 1996;

Ÿ  Division of Revenue Act, 7 of 2003;

 

MEC Office 

 

Directorate: 

MEC Support 

Office of the HoD 

 
 

:  
  

 
 

Chief Directorate: 

Housing Development 

Mr. V Bidi 

 
 

 

Housing Needs, Planning 

and Technical Services 

Mr T Phetlhu 

 

Administration 
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1.7 En��es repor�ng to the MEC

Name of Entity 

 

Legislative mandate  Financial relationship Nature of Operation 

North West Housing 

Corporation  

North West Housing 

Corporation Act 24 of 

1982 as amended 

 

The entity has been 

allocated  

R 36,960,000.00 for the 

2019/20 financial year 

The Corporation 

operate under the 

leadership of the North 

West Housing 

Corporation Board. 
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2. PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

2.1  Auditor General's report: Predetermined objec�ves

Please refer to the Report by the Auditor General as set out on pages 90 to 96 of this Annual 

Report.

2.2  Overview of the department performance

Service Delivery Environment

The North West Province is mostly rural in nature and has a low popula�on density and rela�ve 

inadequate infrastructure, especially in the remote rural areas. The Province has inherited an 

enormous backlog in basic service delivery and maintenance that will take �me to eradicate. The 

Province is characterized by great inequali�es between the rich and poor as well as dispari�es 

between urban and rural.

The complexi�es of social challenges have increased the demand for human se�lements interven�on 

and inadvertently this has resulted in an increased demand for houses, water and sanita�on. 

What compounds these complexi�es are sporadic community protests that the province con�nues to 

experience. Some of these protests could be a�ributed to the perceived inability of municipali�es to 

deliver basic services such as clean running water, electricity supply and or connec�vity to Eskom and 

lack of sanita�on services especially in informal se�lements and villages. However, the lack and or 

shortage of houses and social ameni�es, s�ll is and will always be at the centre of these protests as it 

adds to the growing dissa�sfac�on in these and other poor communi�es.

The evident lack of suitable land for the development of low-cost houses has resulted in land invasions 

becoming increasingly rampant as an alterna�ve for those in need. In most cases the land is under the 

tradi�onal authority or is privately owned. The impact of land invasion varies from area to another.  

The general lack of suitable and appropriately located land made the task of developing real human 

se�lements a daun�ng challenge. Some of the land that was originally earmarked for housing 

development has been found to be dolomi�c thus not suitable for human se�lements development. 

Poor performance by developers and contractors is a major concern for the Department. The la�er has 

resulted in severe underspending of the Human Se�lements Development Grant in preceding 

financial years. 

A key component of the subsidy programme is that beneficiaries who received a house on an 

ownership basis would receive the �tle deed to the property. In the period under review, most 
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developers were generally not registering �tle deeds and townships were not formalized resul�ng in 

delay of �tle deed registra�on and issuance.  To compound on this, deed searches done were not on all 

projects iden�fied on the business plan. To resolve this situa�on, all outstanding township registers 

needed to be priori�zed and intensified deed searches to be rolled out on all business plan projects.

Service delivery protests delayed introduc�on of contractors and therefore implementa�on of the 

Ventersdorp projects which are part of the N14 development which is key and priori�sed and it took 

�me to resolve, which to a large extent threw our plans off-course. Department intends to facilitate the 

introduc�on of contractors to take and establish site. Labour protest and shutdown in the third and 

fourth quarter affected implementa�on and planned recovery which affected the payment process 

and therefore delivery of housing units.  The department introduced a compressed delivery schedule 

as a result of revising the business plan in order to cover for lost �me.

Another factor which affected delivery of services is system errors resul�ng in non/late-payment 

affected implementa�on of projects as projects perform largely on a cashflow basis. The Department 

has requested roll over of remaining funds to save unspent funds from being re-allocated by Treasury 

to other sectors. The delayed submission of verified and signed-off list by DMV affected delivery on the 

Military Veterans Housing programme. For the programme to be successfully implemented, the 

department will con�nuously engage DMV to submit verified and signed-off list of qualifying military 

veterans, in line with legisla�ve prescripts.      

Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The table below highlight the service delivery plan and the achievements to date.

Main services provided and standards

Main Services  Beneficiaries  Current/Actual Standard of 
services  

Desired Standard 
of Service  

Actual 
Achievement  

Title Deed 

Restora�on 

Programme

 

 

North-West ci�zens and 

legal permanent residents 

that are approved 

beneficiaries in all 

programmes excluding rural 

projects and CRU

 

and rental 

units.

 

Number of �tle deeds 

transferred to new 

homeowners

 

4 913 number of 

current �tle 

deeds transferred

 

-
 

2288
 

Backlog 
 

-
 

828
 

Title deeds 

(FLISP & 

Individual 

Subsidies)

 

  

Number of �tle deeds 

transferred to pre and post 

�tle

 

deeds transferred

 

to 

homeowners

 

(backlog)

 

14 341 number of 

pre& post �tle 

deeds transferred
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Current Arrangements Desired Arrangements Actual Achievements 

Consultation - Attendance of quarterly National and 

Provincial Forum meetings by the Director 

Housing Subsidy & Claims on matters relating 

to pre and post title deeds. 

- Regular contact with appointed contractor on 
the progress of the title deed registration. 

- Monthly engagement with Housing 
Corporation for backlog title deeds. 

- 4 national Human Settlements 

meetings attended by Acting 

Director Housing Subsidy and 

Claims. 

Access 

 

- Effective and efficient front / help desk at 

NWDC Ground Floor Office 1 and 2 from 08h00 

– 16h30 (Housing Subsidy Claims) and 

availability of personnel at Head Office during 

department operational hours for all title deed 

- Availability of department operations at district 

level enquiries and processing  

- Functional front desk available at 

office no. 24 & 26 Ground Floor, 

NWDC Building (Subsidy 

Administration-Housing 

Development) 

- Department still centralized at Head 

Office Only (Mafikeng), although 
Housing officials are assigned per 

district and rely on weekly/daily 

travelling to their respective service 

sites. 

Courtesy - Use of batho pele community feedback 

questionnaire; 

- Develop title deed and housing delivery 
satisfaction survey to circulate to community 

members / beneficiaries at departmental 

project sites; 

- Display of Batho Pele Principles at departmental 

sites; 

- Provision of nametags for outstanding officials. 

- All calls and title deed queries 

directed to relevant section.  

Redress - Development of complaints and compliments 

framework; 

- Suggestion box and complaints register at 

departmental sites; 

- Provision of feedback and resolution 

mechanism from provincial tollfree 

administered by the Municipal admin unit; 

- Liaison with ward councillors, war room and 
service delivery outreach. 

- Departmental Complaints and 

compliments framework were 

circulated. 

Information - Flyers, posters to be developed on title deed 

registration process; 

- Housing Consumer Education Awareness 

campaigns to include title deed restoration 

programme; 

- Provision of signage at NWDC and service 
charter at departmental sites. 

- Information leaflet incorporated in 

departmental service charter 

- MEC gained radio 2 slot to address 

listeners of municipal, housing 

delivery and title deeds restoration 

Openness and 

Transparency 

- Availability of the following to the public: APP, 

Strategic Plan, Annual Report, Service Charter 

and Contact list. 

- 2019/20 Annual Performance Plan 

available and published. 

- Strategic Plan in Place. 

- Draft 2019/20 Annual Report   

- Reviewed Departmental Service 

Batho Pele Arrangements with Beneficiaries (Consultation Acess, ect)
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Openness and 

Transparency

 -

 

Availability of the following to the public: APP, 

Strategic Plan, Annual Report, Service Charter 

and Contact list.

 
-

 

2019/20 Annual Performance Plan 

available and published.

 

-

 

Strategic Plan in Place.

 

-

 
Dra� 2019/20 Annual Report  

 

-
 

Reviewed Departmental Service

 

Delivery Charter in place with names 

and contact details of management, 

opera�onal �mes and physical 

addresses of
 

departmental sites.
 

Service Standards
 

-
 

Title deeds transferred to new and exis�ng 

homeowners
 

who are subsidised by the 

department.
 

-
 

Title deeds transferred to correct 

homeowners
  

Value for money - Title deed restora�on programme u�lized 

within allocated budget 
-  R 61  272 backlog  (pre 1994)  

 

 

 

Service Delivery Informa�on Tool 

Current Arrangements Desired Arrangements  Actual Achievement  

Community Informa�on contact s essions  To educate service recipients, community 

members and housing consumers on 

access,
 

en�tlement and regula�ons on 

housing opportuni�es.
 

9 Informa�on  sessions held 

together with  handing out of �tle 

deeds.
 

 

 

Complaints Mechanism
 

Current Arrangements
 

Desired Arrangements
 

Actual Achievement
 

Department Front Desk

 

Effec�ve and efficient

 

front-desk 

(personnel) which deals with all 

housing related complaints 

 

2 offices allocated for all housing 

enquiries, applica�ons and status. 

Offices are based at no 24 and 26 

Ground Floor, NWDC Building.

 

 
Organisa�onal Environment

The period under review was characterized by a significant change of poli�cal leadership in the 

department, where a new Member of Execu�ve Commi�ee was appointed to the Por�olio. This was 

the beginning of the reconfigura�on process, as the then erstwhile Department of Local Government 

and Human Se�lements was split into two Departments, namely Department of Coopera�ve 

Governance and Tradi�onal Affairs and Department of Human Se�lements.  The Department 

commenced with the Provincial Macro Organiza�on of Government (PMOG) process, a process led by 

office of the Premier wherein 6 workstreams were established to deal with the priority areas on the 

reorganiza�on of the Department which effec�vely split into two.  The end result should be the 

formula�on of a fit for purpose new structure for the Department taking into account the delivery 

needs and budget constraints.



25

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

The filling of vacant posi�ons has been delayed par�cularly for administra�on due to moratorium 

which has been issued because of ongoing PMOG process. In the month of October 2019, the Premier 

of the Province, appointed the Head of Department to focus and steer the Human Se�lements 

por�olio.  In response to reducing high vacancy rate, 16 appointments were made in the period under 

review. The appointments were mainly on service delivery programmes to equip the department with 

adequate technical skills in order to discharge its mandate. 

Key policy development and legisla�on change

· There were no changes made to the legisla�ons that may affect opera�ons of the   

department.

2.3. Strategic outcomes orientated goals In pursuing the Departmental mandate, the following 

five-year strategic goals were developed:

To provide corporate support to the en�re Department as well as strategic administra�on and 

poli�cal direc�on through the Office of the Head of Department and the Execu�ve Authority, 

respec�vely. 

· Department has developed an ethics plan which clearly outlines dates for the training and 

awareness for all officials.

To research and develop plans that respond to various Departmental programmes and 

strategies that iden�fies precincts for Human Se�lements development. 

· 1 Human Se�lements Development Grant Business Plan produced and submi�ed to Na�onal 

Department of Human Se�lements.

·        6998 beneficiaries were provided with Consumer Educa�on in the Province.

To provide integrated and sustainable Human Se�lements through accelera�ng housing 

opportuni�es and ensure security of tenure. 

·     828 �tle deeds were transferred to new homeowners 

·      2 288 �tle deeds were transferred to pre and post 1994
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2.4. Performance Informa�on by Programme

PROGRAMME 01: ADMINISTRATION

Programme purpose

To provide corporate support to the en�re Department as well as strategic administra�on and 

poli�cal direc�on through the Office of the Head of Department and the Execu�ve Authority 

respec�vely. 

Below are sub-programmes within Administra�on Programme:

· Office of the HOD 

· Corporate services

Below are strategic objec�ves falling under this programme: 

· Provide coordina�on and management of strategic planning, monitoring and evalua�on 

processes and service delivery improvement plan.

· To ensure and maintain effec�ve and efficient risk management systems.

· To oversee and administer effec�ve and efficient financial management principles in the 

department

· To ensure effec�ve and efficient Supply Chain Management services.

· To provide communica�on services to both internal and external stakeholders.

Significant achievements 

· Department has successfully coordinated the development of strategic Plan 2020-2025 and 

Annual Performance Plan 2020-21 financial year.

Contribu�on to the outcomes

· Department has developed dra� organiza�onal structure.
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 PROGRAMME 1:  

 ADMINISTRATION 

STRATEGIC PLANNING, MONITORING AND EVALUATION : STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

Strategic objec�ves 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from 

planned target to 

actual 

achievement for 

2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

Provide coordina�on and 

management of the strategic 

planning, monitoring and 

evalua�on processes and 

Service Delivery Improvement 

Plan 

 

1  1 1 Annual    

 Perfor mance Plan

produced  

0 None 

1         1 1 Annual     report 

produced  

0 None 

 PROGRAMME 1:  

 

ADMINISTRATION 

STRATEGIC PLANNING, MONITORING AND EVALUATION : PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 

Performance 

Indicators 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments 

on 

devia�ons 

1. Number of   

 Annua l   

 Perfor mance 

 Plans   

produced    

1 Annual    

Performance 

Plan 

produced 

1 Annual    

Performance 

Plan 

produced 

1 Annual    

 Perfor mance  

Plan 

produced.  

1 1 0 None 

2. Number of   

 Annual      

Reports    produced    

      

1 Annual    

report   

produced         

1 Annual    

report   

produced         

1 Annual    

 report 

produced.   

1 1 0 None 
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PROGRAMME 1: 

ADMINISTRATION 

RISK MANAGEMENT: STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

Strategic Objec�ves 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from 

planned target to 

actual achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

To ensure and maintain 

effec�ve and efficient 

risk management 

systems 

1 1 Dra� Strategic 

risk register 

reviewed. 

1 Failure to convene Risk 

management 

commi�ee 

 

 

PROGRAMME 

1: 

ADMINISTRATI

ON 

RISK MANAGEMENT: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 

Performance 

Indicators 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achieveme

nt 2016/17 

Actual 

Achieveme

nt 2017/18 

Actual 

Achieveme

nt 2018/19 

Planne

d 

Target 

2019/2

0 

Actual 

Achievement2019/

20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achieveme

nt for 

2019/20 

Comments 

on 

devia�ons 

1. Number of 

risk 

manageme

nt plans 

reviewed  

 

Not part of 

the APP 

1 risk 

manageme

nt plan 

reviewed  

1 1  Dra� Strategic risk 

register reviewed. 

1 Failure to 

convene 

Risk 

manageme

nt 

commi�ee 
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PROGRAMME 1 :  

ADMINISTRATION 

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS: STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

Strategic Objec�ves 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievemen

t 2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievemen

t for 

2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

ToProvid e   

 communica�on     services 

 to  both internal  &    external    

 stakeholders      

 

 

1 1 1 

Departmental    

communica�o

n     strategy 

developed 

0 None 

1 1 0 1 The KPI is related 

to Coopera�ve 

Governance & 

Tradi�onal Affairs  

 

PROGRAMME 1:  

ADMINISTRATION 

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS: PERFROMANCE INDICATORS 

Performance 

Indicators 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments 

on 

devia�ons 
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1. Number of 

Department

al 

communicat

ion 

strategies 

developed  

 

1 

Departmental    

communication     

strategy 

developed  

1 Departmental   

 communication     

strategy developed  

1 Departmental 

communication 

strategy 

developed 

1 1 

Departmental    

communication     

strategy 

developed   

 

0 None 

2. Number 

of 

communi

cation 

framewor

ks 

develope

d for 

municipal

ities 

Not part of  the 

APP 

1 communication 

framework developed for 

municipalities 

1 Municipal 

Communication 

framework 

developed for 

municipalities’ 

1  0 1 The KPI is 

related to 

Cooperative 

Governance 

& 

Traditional 

Affairs 
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PROGRAMME 1 : 

 ADMINISTRATION 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

 

Strategic Objective 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation from planned 

target to actual 

achievement for 

2019/20 

Comments on 

deviations 

To oversee and 

administer 

effective and 

efficient 

financial 

management 

principles in the 

department 

 

1 2019/20 

MTEF 

1  1 MTEF 

submitted to 

Provincial 

Treasury 

0 None 

1 

2018/19 

adjustment 

budget 

1  1 2019/20 

adjustment 

budget 

submitted to 

Provincial 

Treasury 

0 None 

1 1  1 Audit Action 

Plan 

developed 

0 None  
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PROGRAMME 1: 

 

DMINISTRATION 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

Performance 

Indicators 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Devia�on 

comments 

1. Number of 

Annual 

budget 

submi�ed to 

Provincial 

Treasury 

 

1 

17/18 MTEF 

submi�ed to 

Provincial 

treasury 

1 

18/19 MTEF 

submi�ed to 

Provincial 

treasury 

1 

2019/20 

MTEF 

1 1 MTEF submi�ed 

to Provincial 

Treasury 

0 

 

 

 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

2. Number of 

Adjustment 

budget 

submi�ed 

to 

Provincial 

Treasury  

2016/17 

Adjustment 

budget 

submi�ed to 

Provincial 

treasury 

1 

2017/18 

adjustment 

budget 

submi�ed to 

Provincial 

treasury. 

1 

2018/19 

adjustment 

budget 

1 1 2019/20 

adjustment 

budget submi�ed 

to Provincial 

Treasury 

0 

 

 

 

 

None 

3. Number of 

Audit 

Ac�on 

Plans 

developed  

1 Audit Ac�on 

Plan 

developed 

1 Audit 

Ac�on Plan 

developed 

1 1 1 Audit 

Ac�on 

Plan 

developed 

0 

 

 

None 
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PROGRAMME 1 : 

 ADMINISTRATION 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT: STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

Strategic Objec�ve 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from 

planned target to 

actual achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

To ensure effec�ve 

and efficient Supply 

Chain Management 

services  

1 1 1 departmental 

procure ment plan 

produced  

0 None 

1 1 1 Departmental 

Asset  Register  

\produced  

0 None 

PROGRAMME 

1 : 

 

DMINISTRATI

ON 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 

Performance 

Informa�on 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

 

 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planne

d 

Target 

2019/2

0 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achieveme

nt for 

2019/20 

Commen

ts on 

devia�on

s 

1. Number 

of 

departme

ntal 

Procurem

ent Plan 

produced  

1 departmental  

procure ment pl

an produced  

1 departmental 

procure ment pl

an produced  

1 Departmental 

Procure ment Pl

an produce d 

1 1 departmental 

procure ment pl

an produced   

0 None 

2. Number 

of 

departme

ntal asset 

register 

produced  

1 Departmental 

Asset  Register  

\produced  

1 Departmental 

Asset  Register  

\produced  

1 Departmental 

Asset   Register  

\produced  

1 1 Departmental 

Asset  Registe r 

\produced  

0 None 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

Communica�on framework developed for municipali�es

· The indicator will be removed from Department plans going forward.

Risk management plans reviewed

· Develop a schedule of risk management mee�ngs for approval by the Head of Department.

Changes to planned targets

In the period under review, there were no changes made in respect to planned targets

Linking performance with budgets

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance Expenditure as 

% of final 

appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 %

1. OFFICE OF THE HOD                  5 739                         -                         -                  5 739                     148                  5 591 2,6%

2. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT                26 386                         -                         -                26 386                  4 065                22 321 15,4%

3. COMMUNICATION SERVICES                78 245                         -                         -                78 245                67 266                10 979 86,0%

4. STRATEGIC PLANNING , MONITORING AND EVALUATION                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         - 

5. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         - 

110 370 - - 110 370 71 479 38 891 64,8%

Sub programme

The expenditure addressed filing of vacant posi�ons 
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PROGRAMME 02: HOUSING NEEDS, PLANNINGAND RESEARCH

Programme Purpose

To research and develop plans that respond to various Departmental programmes and strategies 

that iden�fies precincts for Human Se�lements development. 

Below are sub-programmes within this programme: 

· Policy and Research 

· Planning and Technical services

· Statutory bodies

· Municipal support

Below are strategic objec�ves falling under programme: 

· To research and develop municipal policies to guide development of integrated Human 

Se�lements.

· To plan and facilitate for the development of integrated human se�lements.

· To manage and provide support to Housing Statutory Bodies.

· To strengthen the capacity of human se�lements stakeholders

Significant achievements of the Programme

· 2 business plans developed i.e. Human Se�lements Development Grant and Title deeds 

restora�on grant

Contribu�on to the strategic outcome goals

· 1 policy on the use of alterna�ve technologies in Human Se�lements development 

developed and approved.
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PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME: POLICY AND RESEARCH – STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

Strategic 

objec�ves  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from planned 

target to actual 

achievement for 2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

To research 

and develop 

policies to 

guide 

development 

of integrated 

Human 

se�lements  

1 1  

 

1 policy on the use 

of alterna�ve 

technologies in 

Human 

Se�lements 

development 

developed and 

approved. 

0 None 

2 1 

 

 

1 research paper 

completed on 

socio economic 

impact assessment 

studies at 

welgevonden, 

Boikhutso, Ikageng 

proper and ikageng 

Extension 11 in JB 

Marks Local 

Municipality 

0 None 
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PROGRAMME 4 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING AND 

RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME : POLICY AND RESEACH: PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS  

Performa

nce 

indicators  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 
Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

Actual 

Achieve

ment 

2018/19 

Planne

d 

Target 

2019/2

0 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievemen

t for 

2019/20 

Comm

ents 

on 

deviati

ons 

1.Number 

of 

Provincial 

policies 
approved 

0 2 policies 

developed 

namely :   

Emergency 

housing policy, 

Missing and 

untraceable 

beneficiaries’ 

policy 

1 

 

1  

 

1 policy on the 

use of 

alternative 

technologies in 

Human 

Settlements 

development 

developed and 

approved. 

0 None 

2.Number 

of 

research 

papers 

complete

d 

1 research paper 

completed namely 

:  

 

Exploring the 

availability of 

rental market in 

Dr Kenneth 

Kaunda District 

and Dr Ruth 

Mompati District.  

. 

1 research 

paper 

completed 

namely:  

 

Investigating 

processes and 

challenges in 

allocation of 

low-cost 

housing 

2 1 

 

 

1 research 

paper 

completed on 

socio 

economic 

impact 

assessment 

studies at 

Welgevonden, 

Boikhutso, 

Ikageng proper 

and ikageng 

Extension 11 

in JB Marks 

Local 

Municipality 

0 None 
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PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME: PLANNING AND TECHNICAL SERVICES – STRATEGIC 

OBJECTIVES 

 

 

Strategic 

objectives 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation from planned 

target to actual 

achievement for 2019/20 

Comments on 

deviations 

To plan and 

facilitate for 

the 

development 

of the 

integrated 

human 

settlements 

1 Human 

Settlements 

Development 
Grant 

Business 

Plans 
produced 

2 2 business 

plans 

developed i.e. 
Human 

Settlements 

Development 
Grant and Title 

Deeds 

Restoration 

Grant 

0 None  

1 Multi Year 
Housing 
Development 

Plan (Part D ) 
reviewed 

1 0 1 Procurement 

processes were 

not finalised due 

to information 

missing on the 

terms of 

reference. As a 

result, 

evaluation could 

not continue. 

 
PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME: PLANNING AND TECHNICAL SERVICES – PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS 

 

Performance 

indicators  

 Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 
Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments 

on 

deviations 

1. Number 

of 

HSDG & 

TRG 

Busines

s Plans 

produc

ed. 

1 Human 

Settlements 

Development 

Grant Business 

Plans 

produced 

1 Human 

Settlements 

Development 

Grant 

Business 

Plans 

produced 

1 2 2 business 

plans 

developed 
i.e. Human 

Settlements 

Development 

Grant and 

Title deeds 

restoration 

grant 

0 None 
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1. Number 

of HSDG 

& TRG 

Business 

Plans 

produced

. 

1 Human 

Se�lements 

Development 

Grant Business 

Plans 

produced 

1 Human 

Se�lements 

Development 

Grant 

Business 

Plans 

produced 

1 2 2 business 

plans 

developed 

i.e. Human 

Se�lements 

Development 

Grant and 

Title deeds 

restora�on 

grant 

0 None 

2. Number 

of Mul� 

Year 

Housing 

Develop

ment 

Plan ( 

Part D ) 

reviewed 

1 Mul� Year 

Housing 

Development 

Plan ( Part D 

) reviewed 

1 Mul� Year 

Housing 

Development 

Plan (Part D ) 

reviewed 

1 1 0 1 Procurement 

processes 

were not 

finalised due 

to 

informa�on 

missing on 

the terms of 

reference. 

As a result, 

evalua�on 

could not 

con�nue 
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PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME : STATUTORY BODIES – STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

 

Strategic 

Objec�ves 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from planned 

target to actual 

achievement for 

2019/20 

Comments on devia�ons 

To manage 

and provide 

suppo rt to 

Housing 

Statutory 

Bodies  

1:1        532 

Cases 

received and 

a�ended to 

1:1                        1:1    

548 cases received 

and a�ended to 

 

0 None 

 

PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME : STATUTORY BODIES – STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

 

Strategic 

Objec�ves 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from planned 

target to actual 

achievement for 

2019/20 

Comments on devia�ons 

To manage 

and provide 

suppo rt to 

Housing 

Statutory 

Bodies  

1:1        532 

Cases 

received and 

a�ended to 

1:1                        1:1    

548 cases received 

and a�ended to 

 

0 None 
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PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME: MUNICIPAL SUPPORT – PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

Performanc

e indicators  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achieve

ment 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

Actual 

Achieveme

nt 2018/19 

Planne

d 

Target 

2019/2

0 

Actual 

Achievemen

t 2019/20 

Deviation from 

planned target 

to actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on 

deviations 

1. Numbe

r of 

benefic

iaries 

provide

d with 

consu

mer 

educati

on 

3250 5297 

 

 

 

6529 4900 6888 1988 Overachievem

ent due to joint 

awareness 

programme 

between 

National 

Department of 

Human 

Settlement and 

the 

Department of 

Local 

Government 

and Human 

Settlement 
resulted in the 

overachieveme

nt. 

2. Numbe

r of 

munici

palities 

capacit

ated to 

support 

nationa

l 

housin

g 

progra

mmes 

- - - 4 3 

municipaliti

es 

capacitated 

to support 

national 

housing 

programm

e namely : 

Moses 

Kotane 

Local 

Municipalit

y, Greater 

Taung 

Local 

Municipalit

1 Madibeng Delay in 

appointment 

of service 

providers.   
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PROGRAMME 2 :  

HOUSING NEEDS PLANNING 

AND RESEARCH 

SUB-PROGRAMME: MUNICIPAL SUPPORT – STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

 

Strategic 

Objec�ves  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on from 

planned target to 

actual 

achievement for 

2019/20 

Comments on devia�ons 

To 

strengthen 

the capacity 

of human 

se�lements 

stakeholders   

6529 4900 6888 1988 Overachievement due joint 

awareness programme between 

Na�onal Department of Human 

Se�lement and the Department 

of Local Government and 

Human Se�lement resulted in 

the overachievement.  

- 4 3 

municipali�es 

capacitated to 

support 

na�onal 

housing 

programme 

namely : 

Moses Kotane 

Local 

Mmunicipality, 

Greater Taung 

Local 

Municipality & 

Mahikeng 

Local 

Municipality 

1 Madibeng Delay in appointment of service 

providers.   
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

Mul� Year Housing Development Plan (Part D) reviewed

· Department to complete missing informa�on on terms of reference and adver�se the 

Municipali�es capacitated to support na�onal housing

• Process underway to appoint service provider to develop Business and Sector Plans

Changes to planned targets

· There were no changes made in respect of the planned targets.

Linking performance with budget
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PROGRAMME 03: HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Programme Purpose

To provide integrated and sustainable Human Se�lements through accelera�ng housing 

opportuni�es and ensure security of tenure. 

Below are sub-programmes within this programme:

· Subsidy administra�on and claims

· Quality assurance, project implementa�on and management.

Below are strategic objec�ves falling under this programme:

· To provide security of tenure to housing subsidy beneficiaries

· To provide housing units in accordance with na�onal prescripts

Significant achievement 

· 5472 stands were serviced to prepare for the construc�on of housing units for 

beneficiaries

Contribu�on to the strategic outcomes 

· 2461 houses have been built in mining towns through various programmes of human 

se�lements.
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PROGRAMME 

3: HOUSING 

DEVELOPMNT 

SUB-PROGRAMME : SUBSIDY ADMINISTRATION AND CLAIMS – STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

 

Strategic 

Objectives 

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on deviations 

To provide 

security of 

tenure housing 

subsidy 

beneficiaries 

 

5999 4913 828 4 085 Developers do not register title deeds 

and township not formalized 

timeously which results in title deeds 

not registered. 

24 404 14 341 2288 12 053 Business Plan was revised in year 

and was approved late leading to 

delays in processing of transfers of 
title deeds.  

The appointment of the second 

service provider was only 

approved late in the year. 
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PROGRAMME 3: HOUSING 

DEVELOPMNT 

SUB-PROGRAMME : SUBSIDY ADMINISTRATION  AND CLAIMS – PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS 

Performance 

indicators  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

1.Number of 

�tle deeds 

transferred 

to new 

home 

owners 

2035 3798 1557 4913 828 4085 Developers do not 

register �tle deeds 

and township not 

formalized �meously 

which results in �tle 

deeds not registered. 

2.Number of 

�tle deeds 

transferred 

to owners 

(pre and 

post) 

5312 953 5284 14341 2288 -12053 Business Plan was 

revised in year and 

was approved late 

leading to delays in 

processing of 

transfers of �tle 

deeds.  

The second service 

provider was only 

approved late in the 

year.  

 

PROGRAMME 

3: HOUSING 

DEVELOPMNT 

SUB-PROGRAMME : QUALITY ASSURANCE, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION AND MANAGEMENT – 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 

 

Strategic 

Objectives  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Deviation from 

planned target to 

actual achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on deviations 

To provide 

Housing units in 

accordance with 

national 

prescripts 

 

4047 7396 5472 1 924 Labour protest and shutdown 

affected implementation and 

planned recovery which 

affected the payment process at 

Head Office. Labour unrest at 

Ventersdorp sites affected 

installation of internal services 
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        5981  6394 3783 2 611 There were high number of varia�on 

order applica�ons submi�ed for 

considera�on by the department to 

Treasury. As a result, contractors were 

instructed to cease opera�on while 

trying to obtain varia�ons approvals. 

39 155 28 127 Delays by the Department of Military 

Veterans to send out list of approved 

veterans who qualifies for houses 

- 3136 2461 675 Labour protest and shutdown affected 

implementa�on and planned recovery 

which affected delivery on various sites. 

N/A 2 2 0 None 
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PROGRAMME 3: 

HOUISING 

DEVELOPMNT 

SUB-PROGRAMME : QUALITY ASSURANCE, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION AND MANAGEMENT  - 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 

Performance 

indicators  

 

Actual Performance Against Annual Target  

Actual 

Achievement 

2016/17 

Actual 

Achievement 

2017/18 

 

 

 

Actual 

Achievement 

2018/19 

Planned 

Target 

2019/20 

Actual 

Achievement 

2019/20 

Devia�on 

from 

planned 

target to 

actual 

achievement 

for 2019/20 

Comments on 

devia�ons 

1. Number of 

Sites 

Serviced 

 

5978 3670 4047 7396 5472 1 924 Labour protest 

and shutdown 

affected 

implementa�on 

and planned 

recovery which 

affected the 

payment process 

at Head Office. 

Labour unrest at 

Ventersdorp sites 

affected 

installa�on of 

internal services 

2. Number of 

housing 

units 

constructed 

excl. 

Military 

Veterans  

15118 6543 5981 6394 3783 2 611 There were high 

number of 

varia�on order 

applica�ons 

submi�ed for 

considera�on by 

the department 

to Treasury. As a 

result, 

contractors were 

instructed to 

cease opera�on 

while trying to 

obtain varia�ons 

approvals. 

3. Number of 

military 

Veterans 

units 

constructed 

16 9 39 155 28 127 Delay by the 

Department of 

Military Veterans 

to send out list of 

approved 

veterans who 

qualifies for 

houses 

4. Number of 

Housing 

units 

constructed 

- - - 3136 2461 675 Labour protest 

and shutdown 

affected 

implementa�on 
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Strategy to overcome area of under performance 

Construc�on of houses for Military Veterans

· To con�nuously engage DMV to submit verified and signed-off list (beneficiary 
administra�on is the sole responsibility of DMV)      

Sites serviced 

· Fast-tracking implementa�on of recovery plan in order to deliver according to delivery 
schedules 

Number of Housing units 

· Department to engage Provincial Treasury to speed up approval of varia�ons in excess of 

20% if claims are in line with legisla�ve prescripts and supported by technical engineering 

reports.

Transfer of Title Deeds to new homeowners

· All outstanding township registers needed to be priori�zed and intensified deed searches to be 

rolled out on all business plan projects. 

Pre and Post Title Deeds transferred to homeowners

· Fast-tracking implementa�on by coming up with compressed delivery schedules because 

of revising the business plan.

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes made to planned targets.

  Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance Expenditure as 

% of final 

appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 %

1. ADMINISTRATION - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT                75 187                         -                         -                75 187                59 200                15 987 78,7%

2. PROVINCIAL INTERVENTION               230 242                         -                         -               230 242               480 036             (249 794) 208,5%

3. INCREMENTAL INTERVENTION            1 237 474                         -                         -            1 237 474               871 408               366 066 70,4%

4. RURAL INTERVENTION               528 503                         -                         -               528 503               367 321               161 182 69,5%

2 071 406

          

-

                        

-

                        

2 071 406

          

1 777 965

          

293 441

             

85,8%

Sub programme
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2.5       Transfer payments 

Transfer payment to Public Entities  

· The table below relates to Public Entities who received funding from the Department:  

Name of Public 

Entity 

Service delivery by 

Public Entity 

Amount 

transferred to the 

public entity 

Amount spend 

by the public 

entity 

Achievement of the 

public entity 

North West Housing 

Corporation 

Property 

management  

Sale of properties 

R 36 960 000 

(allocated) 

R 36 920 000 

(transferred) 

36 960 000 Title deeds issued to 

rightful beneficiaries. 

 

 

The table below reflects transfer payments made for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020:  

Name of 

transferee 

Type of 

organization 

Purpose for 

which the 

funds were 

used 

Did the 

dept 

comply 

with 

section 38 

(1) (j) of 

the PFMA 

Amount 

transferred 

(R’000) 

Amount 

spend by 

the entity 

Reasons for the 

funds unspent by 

the entity 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

Transfer payment which were budgeted for in the period 1
 
April 2019 to 31 March 2020, but no transfer 

payment was made. 

Name of 

transferee 

Type of 

organization 

Purpose for 

which the 

funds were 

used 

Amount 
Budgeted for 

(R’000) 

Amount 
transferred 

(R’000) 

Reasons for why funds 

unspent by the entity 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
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The table below reflects transfer payments made for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020:  

Name of 

transferee 

Type of 

organiza�on 

Purpose for 

which the 

funds were 

used 

Did the 

dept 

comply 

with 

sec�on 38 

(1) (j) of 

the PFMA 

Amount 

transferred 

(R’000) 

Amount 

spend by 

the en�ty 

Reasons for 

the funds 

unspent by 

the en�ty 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

Transfer payment which were budgeted for in the period 1  April 2019 to 31 March 2020, but no transfer 

payment was made. 

Name of 

transferee 

Type of 

organiza�on 

Purpose for 

which the 

funds were 

used 

Amount 
Budgeted for 

(R’000) 

Amount 
transferred 

(R’000) 

Reasons for why 

funds unspent by 

the en�ty 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
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2.6     Condi�onal grants and earmark funds paid

2.6.1 Human Se�lement Development Grant

The above-men�oned grant focuses on funding the following key elements of housing delivery:
· Housing for qualifying beneficiaries through the consolida�on subsidy or exis�ng housing 

subsidies.
· Ins�tu�onal subsidies, including gran�ng funding for se�ng up housing support centres, 

Community development associa�ons (for People's Housing Programme projects).
· Land acquisi�ons to accommodate well located housing development could be funded 

from the grant in cases where provinces and municipali�es did not have land available.

The purpose of the Integrated Housing and Human Se�lement Development Grant is:

· To finance the implementa�on of na�onal housing programmes to create quality living 

environments.
· To facilitate the establishment and maintenance of habitable, stable and sustainable 

human se�lements in which all ci�zens will have access to selected socio-economic 

ameni�es.
· To progressively eradicate informal se�lements on a phased basis

The table below reflects the condi�onal grant received during the period of 1 April 2019 to March 

2020

Department who transferred the grant

 

Na�onal Department of Human Se�lements

 

Purpose of the grant

 

To provide funding for the crea�on of sustainable human 

se�lements

 

Expected outputs of the grant

 

·

 

Financial interven�ons and measures that improve access 

to human se�lement development and the property 

market

 

·

 

Number of informal se�lement households upgraded

 

·

 
Number of social and rental housing units developed

 

·
 

Hectares of well-located
 

land and property acquired and 

developed
 

· Number of Rural Housing units developed  

· Number of serviced sites developed and provided  

·   Number of work opportuni�es created  

Amount received (R’000)
 

R 1
 
934, 947.000

 

Reasons if amount as per DORA was not received.
 

N/A
 

Amount spent by the department (R’000)

 

R 1

 

707,293.000

 
Reasons for funds unspent by the department.

 

Poor performance by developed and contractors 

 

 Reasons for devia�on on performance

 

Poor performance of projects which in some

 

instances pointed to 

appointment of service providers without the necessary capacity.

 
Delay in township establishment
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The Human Se�lements Development Grant is regulated by the Division of Revenue Act. The said 

Act outlines condi�ons that the receiving department of the grant must adhere to. The department 

complied with requirements outlined by the said act by doing the following:

· Submission of monthly condi�onal grant reports to Na�onal Department of Human 

Se�lements; 

· Development and submission of the Condi�onal Grant Business Plan to Na�onal 

Department of Human Se�lements;

· Furthermore, submission of quarterly condi�onal grant report to Na�onal Department 

of Human Se�lements, the la�er report entails both financial and non-financial 

informa�on. 

2.6.2 Title Deeds Restora�on Grant

To provide funding for the eradica�on of the pre-2014 �tle deeds registra�on backlog and 

professional fees associated with it, including beneficiary verifica�on. This grant intends ensure 

that, beneficiaries of human se�lements register and receive their �tle deeds.

Department who transferred the grant

 

Na�onal Department of Human Se�lements 

 

Purpose of the grant

 

To provide funding for the eradica�on of the pre-2014 

�tle deeds registra�on backlog and professional fees 

associated with it, including beneficiary verifica�on

 

Expected outputs of the grant

 

This grant intends to ensure that, beneficiaries of human 

se�lements register and receive their �tle deeds
 

Actual outputs achieved
 

3116
 

Amount received (R’000) R  61 272  

Reasons if amount as per DORA was not received. N/A  

Amount spent by the department (R’000)
 

R
 

15 263
 

Reasons for funds unspent by the department.
 

Delay in registra�on of �tle deeds and township 

establishment

 
Reasons for devia�on on performance

 

Delay in registra�on of �tle deeds and township 

establishment

 Measures taken to improve performance

 

Delay in registra�on of �tle deeds and township 

establishment

 Monitoring mechanism by the receiving department

 

Provincial Steering Commi�ee mee�ngs were held on 

quarterly basis where performance and progress were 

discussed.

 

Measures taken to improve performance

 

Enhanced proper planning
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2.6  Earmark fund paid

 

Department has not paid earmark funds to any ins�tu�on

2.7  Donor funds

No donor funds received in the period under review.

 2.8    Capital investment, maintenance, and assets management plan

The department does not have capital investment, maintenance, and assets management plan due 

to the fact that it does own any immovable assets.
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3. PART C: GOVERNANCE

3.1   Introduc�on

The Department is managing a budget entrusted to us by Na�onal Treasury with the assurance that 

appropriate controls and diligent management will be the source of good governance guided by 

relevant legisla�on like the Public Financial Management Act (PFMA). We are expected to use 

procurement processes that are defined and prescribed in SCM prac�ce notes and other legisla�ve 

framework in order to minimize fraud, corrup�on and self-interest. Risk management and Internal 

control units are there to safeguard and ensure that public funds are safe.

3.2 Risk management

Ethics Commi�ee

· The Department has a Risk, Ethics and An�-Fraud Management Commi�ee with its terms 

of reference approved by the Accoun�ng Officer.

· The Commi�ee is chaired by an Independent Member who was appointed by the 

Accoun�ng Officer.  Plan has been successfully implemented.

Strategic Risk Register

The Risk Management Commi�ee has been established and approved by the Head of Department. 

Signed appointment le�ers by the Head of Department outline Member's responsibili�es as 

highlighted in the Public-Sector Risk Management Framework which has been issued and accepted 

by the Members

The department has reviewed its Risk Management policy and strategies for the Risk, Ethics and 

Fraud Management and these were approved by the HOD. The Risk Management Policy, Strategy 

and all Fraud and Ethics Literatures were reviewed and updated by the Risk, Ethics and Fraud 

Management commi�ee and Provincial risk Management Support with their inputs and included in 

the Policy and Strategy for recommenda�on by the Commi�ee Chairperson and it was approved by 

the HOD.

The 2019/20 annual strategic risk iden�fica�on was conducted and concluded. The Strategic Risk 

Register was approved by the Head of the Department. 
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3.3 Fraud and corruption

The Department has a 2019/20 Fraud Preven�on Policy and Plan approved by the HOD so that there is 

a common mechanism for the Department and its Programmes to implement. It is also intended to 

guide management on how to reduce fraud to an absolute minimum.

The Fraud Preven�on Plan is developed to ensure that there are strategies in place to combat fraud and 

corrup�on and that the departmental resources are u�lized wisely and op�mally in providing high 

quality service and that any form of fruitless and wasteful expenditure is eliminated within the 

department. Employees play a vital role in detec�ng fraud, the� and corrup�on. All employees are 

encouraged to discuss their concerns with line managers. The procedure for raising concerns is 

detailed in the department's Whistle Blowing Policy. 

Employees as well as the public who would have acted as whistleblowers shall be protected and 

remain anonymous when repor�ng suspected cases of fraud and corrup�on though they should be 

requested to provide detailed informa�on when repor�ng any suspected fraudulent / corrupt ac�vity 

to enable further inves�ga�on by both the department and law enforcement agencies. 

Whistleblowers are provided with regular updates on the progress of their complaint/s

. 

Whistle blowing can be done through many different mechanisms internally and externally. Both 

internal and external stakeholders and the public can use the na�onal toll free hotline number (0800 

701 701) to report any suspected fraudulent or corrupt ac�vi�es. The cases pertaining to the 

department are directed to the department for further inves�ga�ons. 

3.4 Code of Conduct

· The conduct has generally been fair amongst employees with cases a�ended to as they arise. 

The department has been working towards ensuring adherence to the code of conduct in as 

far as monitoring a�endance is concerned

· Departmental officials' conduct is regulated in terms of Public Service Code of Conduct handbook 

and other related regula�ons. 

· Workshops on the Code of Conduct have been conducted for levels 2 to 12.   

· All employees in the department are subjected to disclosure of business interests, and all those 

who are involved in business must first seek approval to do so. 

· Every employee appointed in terms of the Public Service Act must adhere to the Code of 

Conduct of the Public Sector. The Code of Conduct for the Public Service, as included in 

Chapter 2 of the Public Service Regula�ons, is the 'approved' code.  The code of conduct:-

i) Sets norms and standards in promo�ng integrity, efficient and effec�ve 
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delivery of services to the public; provides a set of standards describing the 

behaviour we expect from our employees; and

ii) Guides employees with regard to what is expected of them ethically, both in 

their individual conduct and in their rela�onships with others and forms an 

integral part of the way we work every day. 

· The code is furthermore strengthened by the Code of Conduct for Supply Chain 

Management Prac��oners. All Bid Commi�ee members and Supply Chain Management 

prac��oners are required to acknowledge that they will abide by the Code of Conduct for 

Supply Chain Management Prac��oners.

 

3.4 Health Safety and Environmental issues

· The OHS Officer consulted with the Housing Inspectors on appropriate PPE's to be 

sourced for the component to ensure compliance when doing inspec�ons on site.  The 

consulta�ons have been concluded and the right PPE will be procured when the economy 

is back to full opera�on.

3.5 Por�olio Commi�ee

 

Department was summoned by the Por�olio Commi�ee to present the following reports:

Date of the mee�ng

 

Purpose of the 

mee�ng

 Ma�ers raised by the 

Por�olio Commi�ee

 How department has addressed 

ma�er raised.

 

22 July 2019

 

2019/20 Annual 

Performance Plan

 Department must a�ach �me 

frames in unblocking the prior 

1994 Title Deeds.

 

The 2019/20 �tle deeds restora�on 

strategy has been submi�ed to the 

Por�olio Commi�ee.

 

 
Department must submit a 

detailed report including costs, 

on the abandoned Unit 3 

Community Residen�al Units. 
 

Detailed report on the abandoned Unit 

3 Community Residen�al Units was 

submi�ed to Por�olio Commi�ee
 

Beneficiary list outlining 

monthly payments of the 

Extension 39
 

Community 

Residen�al Units for oversight 

and further analysis by the 

Por�olio Commi�ee.  

 

The department is unable to obtain the 

list as municipality indicated the 

property manager disappeared 

without submi�ng tenan�ng 

informa�on as well as payments
 

Department must also refrain 

from alloca�ng housing units to 

one Developer or Contractor 

and split units amongst other 

capacitated Contractors.  

Department has bid commi�ees under 

SCM that ensures due process is done 

which is auditable and deals with 

alloca�on.  
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 Department must develop a 

turnaround plan including 

timelines for Housing 

Development as part of 

improvement on housing 

delivery 

The department has drafted a 

business plan which has been costed 

and quantified for the entire year. It 

has delivery schedules indicating the 

required timelines for delivery of 

houses per project. As part of the 

turnaround strategy the attached 

processes are being followed to 

avoid delays in housing delivery. 

    

05 December 2019 Presentation of the 

2
nd

 Quarter report 

Department urged to deal with 

non performing contractors 

Department is reviewing contracts to 

include penalty clauses 

November 2019 Presentation of the 

Annual Report 

2018/2019 

Portfolio Committee raised 

concern with blocked projects 

across the province. 

Department has appointed 

contractors to unblock the blocked 

projects. 

 06 March 2020 Presenta�on of the 

APP and the 3
rd 

Quarter report 

The Commi�ee noted the non-

performance in programme 3 

against the budget spend 

 

 

 
Commi�ee noted the non-

conclusion
 

of building projects 

and lack of consequences by the 

department.
 

The payments are validated against 

HSS for all milestones claimed for.  

Tightening of controls to ensure that 

the department pays for real 

milestones.  
Department is reviewing all 

contracts and will con�nue to 

priori�ze this in 2020 APP.
 

 

 
3.7   SCOPA Resolu�on  

There were no SCOPA resolu�ons received by the Department in the period under review.  
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3.2 Prior modifica�ons to audit reports 

The Audit Ac�on Plan is in place to address all ma�ers raised by the Office of the Auditor General. 

On quarterly basis the department submi�ed ac�on plans to the Auditor General.

3.2 Internal control unit

Internal control unit monitored the implementa�on of the Ac�on Plans to ensure that, the ma�ers 

with a significant impact in the audit opinion are addressed and conduct verifies compliance.

 

3.3 Internal Audit Commi�ee Report

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

1. Legisla�ve requirements

The Audit Commi�ee herewith presents its  report for the financial year ended 31 March 

2020, as required by treasury regula�on 3.1.13 read with sec�on 77 of the Public Finance 

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999).

2. Audit Commi�ee Members and A�endance 

The Audit Commi�ee should meet at least four �mes per annum as the Central Audit 

Commi�ee and also four �mes per annum as the Cluster Audit Commi�ee as per its 

approved terms of reference. During the current year three scheduled mee�ngs and two 

special mee�ngs were held by the Central Audit Commi�ee and four mee�ngs were held 

by the Cluster Audit Commi�ee. 

 

Nature of qualifica�on, 

disclaimer, adverse opinion 

and ma�ers of non-

compliance. 

Financial in which it first 

arose 
 

Progress made
 

in clearing / resolving the 

ma�er 
 

- Irregular expenditure  

- Fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure  

                  - Ma�ers raised by AGSA s�ll being 

inves�gated  
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3. Audit Commi�ee Responsibility 

The Audit Commi�ee reports that it has complied with its responsibili�es arising from 

sec�on 38(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and Treasury Regula�on 

3.1.

The Audit Commi�ee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of 

reference as its Audit Commi�ee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this 

charter and has discharged all its responsibili�es as contained therein.

4. Sec�on 100

The Department is currently under sec�on 100 (1)(a) of the Cons�tu�on. This is where 

na�onal execu�ve has issued a direc�ve to the provincial execu�ve to comply with its 

cons�tu�onal and other obliga�ons. It is a collabora�ve effort with both provincial and 

na�onal department of Provincial Treasury working together to implement the issued 

direc�ves. 

5. The effec�veness of internal control 

In line with the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, internal audit provides the Audit 

Commi�ee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate 

and effec�ve. This is achieved by evalua�ng internal controls to determine their 

effec�veness and efficiency, and by developing recommenda�ons for enhancement or 

improvement. The accoun�ng officer retains responsibility for implemen�ng such 

recommenda�ons as per Treasury Regula�on 3.1.12. 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors it was noted that ma�ers were reported 

indica�ng material deficiencies in the system of internal controls in areas pertaining to 

financial repor�ng, repor�ng on pre-determined objec�ves and  compliance with laws 

and regula�ons. 

Through our analysis of audit reports and engagement with the Department we can 

report that the system on internal control for the period under review was not adequate 

and effec�ve. 

A ma�er of concern for the Audit Commi�ee that has been raised with the department 
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con�nuously is that the department is currently not implemen�ng all internal audit 

ac�on plans agreed upon. Based on our interac�on with the department we conclude 

that the ac�on plan management system has not been implemented adequately and 

effec�vely to address internal audit findings and the Audit Commi�ee and Internal Audit 

have recommended specific improvements in this regard.

6. Risk management

The Risk Management Commi�ee has been appointed and is chaired by an independent 

chairperson and advises the accoun�ng officer.

The Audit Commi�ee is concerned with the capacity of the risk management func�on 

which will impact service delivery nega�vely if the situa�on is not addressed. 

Based on the quarterly audit commi�ee reviews, the departmental fraud and risk 

management system is not adequate and effec�ve. 

The Audit Commi�ee remains concerned that not all ICT risks are being addressed or 

mi�gated.

7. In-Year Management and Quarterly Repor�ng

The Provincial Treasury has confirmed that the department has reported to the Treasury 

as is required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.  The quality of the in-year 

financial and performance repor�ng including interim financial statements are however a 

concern to the Audit Commi�ee. This is evidenced by the number of internal audit 

findings raised per quarter on the interim financial statements.

The Audit Commi�ee has engaged with management to remedy shortcomings, especially 

rela�ng to reports on performance against predetermined objec�ves.

The Audit Commi�ee has recommended that the department prepare interim financial 

statements that comply with the financial repor�ng framework Modified Cash Standard 

(MCS). This will assist in performing reconcilia�ons �meously and in elimina�ng year-end 

adjustments.

 

8. Evalua�on of Financial Statements

The dra� annual financial statements were presented to the Audit Commi�ee 

immediately before submission to the Auditor General. Due to the late submission the 

Audit Commi�ee did not perform a review on these financial statements.
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During the 2018/19 financial year the then Department of Local Government and Human 

Se�lements erroneously paid an amount of R134 million for a housing project to Bojanala 

District Municipality instead of Rustenburg Local Municipality.  The District Municipality 

refunded this money to the Department a�er a lengthy recovery process without 

interest. The money was then paid over to the correct Municipality, presumably to 

con�nue with the project. However towards the end of the 2019/20 financial year the 

Rustenburg Local Municipality was then requested by the Department of Coopera�ve 

Governance and Tradi�onal Affairs to refund the total amount. The refund was made to 

the Department of Coopera�ve Governance and Tradi�onal Affairs in November 2020. 

The financial statements do not disclose the receivables at year end in respect of both 

transfers/payments. These transfers/payments were funded through the Human 

Se�lement Development Grant.

The disclaimer of audit opinion as it relates to the statements of financial performance 

and posi�on is as a result of the fact that a general ledger reconciling to the trial balance 

could not be submi�ed for audit purposes.  This is a basic requisite for the prepara�on 

and audit of financial statements. 

9. Evalua�on of Annual Report

The Annual Report was presented to the Audit Commi�ee on the day of the mee�ng. Due 

to the late submission thereof, the Audit Commi�ee did not perform a review on the 

report before submission to Auditor General South Africa.

The Audit Commi�ee has however discussed the external audit outcomes on the 

repor�ng on pre-determined objec�ves to be included in the annual report with the 

Auditor General South Africa and the Accoun�ng Officer.

10. Compliance with laws and regula�ons

During the year under review the Department did not comply with the Provincial Treasury 

Instruc�on on the pre-audi�ng of supply chain management (SCM) processes of bids 

above R10 million before the award of the contract.  The approval of the Provincial 

Treasury was also not obtained when a contract was varied/extended in excess of the 

prescribed threshold. 

As indicated in the report of the Auditor-General various non compliance with the 
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Division of Revenue Act (DORA) have also been found. Given that the Department's core 

business is managing the Human Se�lement Development Grant this is a very 

unsa�sfactory outcome, as DORA compliance is central to this func�on.

The impact of the above instances of non compliance with legal requirements impacts 

directly on the incurrence of irregular expenditure.

11. Internal Audit 

The accoun�ng officer is obliged, in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, 

to ensure that the en�ty has a system of internal audit under the control and direc�on of 

the Audit Commi�ee. The Audit Commi�ee is sa�sfied that the internal audit func�on 

has properly discharged its func�ons and responsibili�es during the year under review.

 The Audit Commi�ee also notes that the deficiencies in the risk management system 

men�oned above impact on the implementa�on of the risk based audit approach.

The Audit Commi�ee is sa�sfied that the internal audit func�on maintains an effec�ve 

internal quality assurance programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit ac�vity 

and that as determined during the external quality assessment review, that a generally 

“conforms ra�ng” can be applied to the internal audit work and the term “Conforms with 

the Interna�onal Standards for the Professional Prac�ce of Internal Audi�ng” may be 

used by the func�on.

12. Auditor General South Africa

The department is newly established borne out of reconfigura�on of Provincial 

departments and therefore does not have prior year audit issues to address. 

The Audit Commi�ee is not aware of any unresolved issues with respect to the current 

audit. 
The Audit Commi�ee concurs with the Auditor General South Africa's opinion on the 
annual financial statements

13. Reconfigura�on 

During the year under review the Department was reconfigured through the transfer in of 

the Housing Needs Planning and Research and Housing Development programmes. 

The AC is also not convinced that that the transfer of func�on process complied with the 

relevant requirements of the PFMA and Public Service Regula�ons. This non compliance 
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has contributed to the actual audit outcome of the Department.

14. COVID-19

The advent of the Covid-19 pandemic towards the end of the financial year has had a 

nega�ve impact on the implementa�on of the business plan of the department due to 

the na�onal lockdown which compelled employees to work from home. The impact was 

the late finalisa�on and closing of books of account and Annual Financial Statements. As a 

result the submission of Annual Financial Statements was postponed from 31 May to 31 

July 2020. 

15. General

Signed on behalf of the Cluster Audit Commi�ee by:

     

      M.P. Tjie
Chairperson of the                        ..................................
Cluster Audit Commi�ee             M.P Tjie
      
                                   Date:    3 December 2020          
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4.1 Legisla�ons that govern Human Resources Management

Below are prescripts and regula�ons that govern Human Resource Management:

ü The Cons�tu�on

ü Employment Equity Act

ü Protected Disclosure Act

ü Skills Development Act

ü Public Service Act

ü Public Service Regula�ons, 2016 as amended

ü Labour Rela�on Act

ü Basic Condi�ons of Employment Act

ü DPSA Direc�ves

ü HRD Strategy

ü Na�onal Strategic plan on HIV and AIDS & TB Management

ü Provincial Strategic plan on HIV and AIDS & TB Management

ü Internal Departmental policies

ü Departmental Policies on HIV & AIDS and TB Management, Wellness Management, SHERQ 

and Health Produc�vity

ü Departmental Recruitment and Selec�on policy

ü Departmental Rese�lement Policy

ü Departmental Leave Management policy

ü Departmental PILIR policy

ü Departmental PMDS policy

ü Departmental Service Termina�on policy

ü Departmental Reten�on policy

4.2 Introduc�on

4.2.1 The status of human resources in the department:

Department of Human Se�lements is opera�ng with start-up structure which was finalised amid 

finalisa�on of the Provincial Macro Organisa�on of Government (PMGOG) Process. The Department is 

expected to develop a fit for purpose organisa�onal structure, since the start-up structure does not cater for 

the needs of the Department. As of 19 May 2020 the PMOG process has not been finalised in terms officials 

working in administra�on units of Human Se�lements, as result Human Se�lements is experiencing under 

expenditure in program one . 

The Core Programs of the Department, which consist of Chief Directorate Housing Development and Chief 

Directorate Housing needs, Research Planning and Technical Service are well resources but s�ll needs to be 

capacitated with more engineering technical skills. Program one units are under resourced; the start-up 

structure is a skeleton structure on all program one units. Program One posts is an equal share of program 

one of the erstwhile Department of Local Government and Human Se�lements. A full fit for purpose 
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organisa�on structure will be developed and consulted with the office of the Premier and Department of 

Public Service and Administra�on for approval. 

4.2.2 Human resource priori�es for the year under review and the impact of these

The main priority for the year is to ensure that the department has a fit for purpose organisa�onal 

structure to implement strategic objec�ves of the Department.

4.2.2.1 Workforce planning and key strategies to a�ract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce:

The Departmental Human Resources Plan and rela�ve sub-ordinate policies such as staff reten�on policy 

have been put in place to ensure that the Department is able to achieve as prompt as possible its 

workforce planning and key strategies to a�ract and retain skilled and capable human resource.

4.2.2.2 Employee performance management

Performance Management policy is used in guiding of performance assessment outcome for level 1 – 12 

for 2019/20 cycle. SMS modera�on outcome for 2019/20 is s�ll outstanding.

4.2.2.3 Employee wellness programmes

Four approved EHWP policies and opera�onal plans are in place.  In terms of opera�onaliza�on of 

programme the following were achieved: - all four pillars of EHWP i.e. HIV and AID and TB Management, 

Health and Produc�vity Management, Wellness Management and SHERQ are in place and fully 

func�onal. Due to the paradigm shi� imposed on the world by the 2019 Corona Virus, the unit had to 

realign the polices and resources in curbing the spread in the workplace by developing associated risk 

assessment , occupa�onal health and safety plan and policy.

4.2.2.4 Highlight achievements and challenges faced by the department, as well as future human 

resource plans.

The main challenge for the department is lack of office space with departmental staff accommodated in 

various separate buildings thus contribu�ng to security risk for departmental staff records and a lot of 

unnecessary delays in implemen�ng the mandate of the department. 



69

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

3
. H

u
m

an
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

O
ve

rs
ig

h
t 

St
a�

s�
cs

 

1
.1

. 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l r
e

la
te

d
 e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

b
le

s 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fi
n

al
 a

u
d

it
ed

 p
er

so
n

n
el

 r
el

at
ed

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 b

y 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d
 b

y 
sa

la
ry

 b
an

d
s.

 In
 p

ar
�

cu
la

r,
 it

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

n
 

in
d

ic
a�

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

·
am

o
u

n
t 

sp
en

t 
o

n
 p

er
so

n
n

el
 ;

·
am

o
u

n
t 

sp
en

t 
o

n
 s

al
ar

ie
s,

 o
ve

r�
m

e,
 h

o
m

eo
w

n
er

's
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
an

d
 m

ed
ic

al
 a

id
.

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
.1

 P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l c

o
st

s 
b

y 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e
, 2

0
1

9
0

4
0

1
-2

0
2

0
0

3
3

1
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

 
N

o
. o

f 
Em

p
lo

ye
e

s 
as

 a
t 

3
1

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

(e
xc

l G
o

o
d

 &
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s)
 

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 

C
o

st
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l C

o
st

 

p
e

r 
Em

p
lo

ye
e

 (
R

)
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
  

R
 2

4
 7

9
7

 2
7

2
,8

7
 3

1
 

R
 0

,0
0

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 N

EE
D

S 
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
&

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  

R
 1

4
 1

0
8

 9
4

2
,2

2
 1

8
 

R
 0

,0
0

 
1

7
0

0
0

0
0

1
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1
5

9

 

R
 3

9
 2

5
6

 4
2

3
,7

6

 4
9

 

R
 2

4
6

 8
96

,0
0

 
4

9
5

8
9

9
9

0
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

 
1

 

R
 1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,3
8

 2

 

R
 1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,0
0

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l

 

1
6

0

 

R
 8

0
 0

2
1

 1
3

3
,2

3

 1
0

0

 

R
 5

0
0

 1
3

2
,0

0

 



70

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
.2

 P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

 
co

st
s 

b
y 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

s,
  2

0
1

9
0

4
0

1
-2

0
2

0
0

3
3

1
 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S
 

N
o

. o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 a

t 
3

1
 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
 (

ex
cl

 

G
o

o
d

 &
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s)
 

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 

C
o

st
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

st
 p

e
r 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 

(R
)

 
Lo

w
er

 s
ki

lle
d

 (
Le

ve
ls

 1
-2

) 
 

3
 

R
5

8
4

 3
7

8
,6

6
 

 1
 

R
 1

9
4

 7
9

3
,0

0
 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 
2

8
 

R
7

 7
6

4
 2

4
9

,0
5

 
 1
0

 
R

 2
7

7
 2

9
5

,0
0

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 p

ro
d

u
c�

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 6
-8

) 
 

7
1

 
R

2
9

 2
4

3
 7

7
2

,8
4

 
 3
7

 
R

 4
1

1
 8

8
4

,0
0

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 s

u
p

er
vi

si
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 9

-1
2

) 
 

3
4

 
R

2
3

 8
1

7
 4

6
0

,6
7

 
 3
0

 
R

 7
0

0
 5

1
4

,0
0

 
Se

n
io

r 
an

d
 T

o
p

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
 1

3
-1

6
)

 
9

 
R

1
1

 0
5

0
 5

1
4

,5
0

 

 1
4

 
R

 1
 2

2
7

 8
3

5
,0

0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
1

-2
)

 

5

 

R
6

5
5

 0
9

1
,4

6
 

 1

 

R
 1

3
1

 0
1

8
,0

0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
3

-5
)

 
  

R
0

,0
0

 

 0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
6

-8
)

 

4

 

R
1

 9
9

5
 3

9
2

,3
3

 

 3

 

R
 4

9
8

 8
4

8
,0

0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
9

-1
2

)

 

5

 

R
3

 0
5

1
 7

7
9

,3
4

 

 4

 

R
 6

1
0

 3
5

6
,0

0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
1

3
-1

6
)

 

1

 

R
1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,3
8

 

 2

 

R
 1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,0
0

 
Pe

ri
o

d
ic

al
 R

em
u

n
er

a�
o

n

 
  

R
0

,0
0

 

 0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 
A

b
n

o
rm

al
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t

 
  

R
0

,0
0

 

 0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l

 

1
6

0

 

R
 8

0
 0

2
1

 1
3

3
,2

3

 1
0

0

 

R
 5

0
0

 1
3

2
,0

0

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.1

.3
  S

al
ar

ie
s,

 O
ve

r�
m

e
, H

o
m

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 a

n
d

 M
e

d
ic

al
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 b

y 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e
,  

2
0

1
9

0
4

0
1

-2
0

2
0

0
3

3
1

 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

Sa
la

ri
e

s
 

O
ve

r�
m

e
 

H
o

m
e

 O
w

n
e

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

 M
e

d
ic

al
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

(e
xc

l G
o

o
d

 &
 

Se
rv

ic
e

s)
 

SA
LA

R
IE

S 
V

IA
 

P
ER

SA
L 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Sa
la

ri
e

s 
as

 %
 o

f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l C

o
st

 

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
ve

r�
m

e
 a

s 
%

 

o
f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

st
 

H
O

U
SE

 

O
W

N
ER

S 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

C
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

H
O

A
 a

s 
%

 o
f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

st
 

M
ED

IC
A

L 

FU
N

D
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
e

d
ic

al
 A

ss
. a

s 

%
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 

C
o

st
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 

D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
 1

7
 1

5
2

 9
6

1
,4

1

 

6
9

 

R
 5

9
 7

0
3

,3
4

 0

 

R
 7

4
7

 0
4

8
,0

3

 

3

 

R

 

1
 1

7
8

 6
1

8
,0

4

 

5

 

R
 2

4
 7

9
7

 2
7

2
,8

7

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 

N
EE

D
S 

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

&
R

ES
EA

R
C

H
   

   
   

   
   

   R
 9

 7
0

3
 9

1
9

,2
7

 

6
9

 

R
 1

8
 4

4
7

,6
3

 0

 

R
 2

9
4

 2
5

2
,7

5

 

2

 

R
 5

8
3

 9
6

7
,0

0

 

4

 

R
 1

4
 1

0
8

 9
4

2
,2

2

 
1

7
0

0
0

0
0

1
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
 2

7
 1

4
5

 2
3

1
,8

6

 

6
9

 

R
 9

6
 2

5
7

,4
1

 0

 R
 1

 1
1

3
 1

2
8

,0
5

 

3

 

R
 1

 8
1

6
 5

8
4

,0
4

 

5

 

R
 3

9
 2

5
6

 4
2

3
,7

6

 

 



71

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

4
9

5
8

9
9

9
0

 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
 1

 0
6

5
 1

1
3

,7
6

 
5

7
 

  
0

 
  

0 
  

0
 

R
 1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,3
8

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 
R

 5
5

 0
6

7
 2

2
6

,3
0

 
6

9
 

R
1

7
4

 

4
0

8
,3

8
 

0
 

R
2

 1
5

4
 4

2
8

,8
3 

3 
R

3
 5

7
9

 1
6

9
,0

8
 

5
 

R
8

0
0

2
1

 1
3

3
,2

3
 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
.4

  S
al

ar
ie

s,
 O

ve
r�

m
e

, H
o

m
e

 O
w

n
e

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

 a
n

d
 M

e
d

ic
al

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 b
y 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

s,
  2

0
1

9
0

4
0

1
-2

0
2

0
0

3
3

1
 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S
 

Sa
la

ri
e

s
 

O
ve

r�
m

e
 

H
o

m
e

 O
w

n
e

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

 
M

e
d

ic
al

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

(e
xc

l G
o

o
d

 &
 

Se
rv

ic
e

s)
 

SA
LA

R
IE

S 
V

IA
 

P
ER

SA
L 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 Sa
la

ri
e

s 
as

 %
 o

f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l C

o
st

 
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

O
ve

r�
m

e
 a

s 
%

 

o
f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

st
 

H
O

U
SE

 O
W

N
ER

S 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

C
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

H
O

A
 a

s 
%

 o
f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l C

o
st

 

M
ED

IC
A

L 

FU
N

D
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
e

d
ic

al
 

A
ss

. a
s 

%
 o

f 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

st
 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
R

 3
3

4
 6

2
6

,9
4

 
5

7
 

R
 1

6
 5

2
1

,3
2

 
3

 
R

 4
9

 7
8

1
,4

3  
9  

R
 1

0
6

 7
0

4
,0

0
 

1
8

 
R

 5
8

4
 3

7
8

,6
6

 
Sk

ill
ed

 (
Le

ve
ls

 3
-5

) 
 

R
 5

 0
8

3
 4

6
4

,5
0

 
6

6
 

R
 4

3
 7

7
4

,7
0

 
1

 
R

 4
5

9
 2

8
5

,8
7  

6  
R

 6
5

8
 3

7
0

,5
0

 
9

 
R

 7
 7

6
4

 2
4

9
,0

5
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 

(L
ev

el
s 

6
-8

) 
 

R
 2

0
 6

2
5

 3
1

4
,3

3
 

7
1

 
R

 9
4

 5
3

7
,9

1
 

0
 

R
 1

 0
9

4
 2

9
8

,3
7  

4  
R

 1
 9

0
9

 1
6

6
,5

0
 

7
 

R
 2

9
 2

4
3

 7
7

2
,8

4
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 

(L
ev

el
s 

9
-1

2
) 

 
R

 1
6

 6
7

2
 0

8
6

,6
1

 
7

0

 
R

 1
9

 5
7

4
,4

5

 
0

 
R

 4
2

4
 8

3
1

,1
6  

2  
R

 8
1

0
 4

9
6

,0
0

 
3

 
R

 2
3

 8
1

7
 4

6
0

,6
7

 
Se

n
io

r 
an

d
 T

o
p

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
 1

3
-1

6
)

 

R
 7

 2
1

8
 5

6
6

,7
8

 

6
5

 
  

0

 

R
 1

0
1

 2
3

2
,0

0  

1  

R
 9

4
 4

3
2

,0
8

 

1

 

R
 1

1
 0

5
0

 5
1

4
,5

0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
1

-2
)

 

R
 4

7
7

 8
1

3
,1

0

 

7
3

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R
 6

5
5

 0
9

1
,4

6

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
3

-5
)

 
  

0

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
6

-8
)

 

R
 1

 4
5

6
 3

3
7

,1
7

 

7
3

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R
 1

 9
9

5
 3

9
2

,3
3

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
9

-1
2

)

 

R
 2

 1
3

3
 9

0
3

,1
1

 

7
0

 
  

0

 

R
 2

5
 0

0
0

,0
0  

1  
  

0

 

R
 3

 0
5

1
 7

7
9

,3
4

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
1

3
-1

6
)

 

R
 1

 0
6

5
 1

1
3

,7
6

 

5
7

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R
 1

 8
5

8
 4

9
4

,3
8

 
Pe

ri
o

d
ic

al
 R

em
u

n
er

a�
o

n

 
  

0

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 
A

b
n

o
rm

al
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t

 
  

0

 
  

0

 
  

0  
  

0

 

R

 

0
,0

0

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l

 

R
 5

5
 0

6
7

 2
2

6
,3

0

 

6
9

 

R
1

7
4

 4
0

8
,3

8

 

0

 

R
2

 1
5

4
 4

2
8

,8
3  

3  

R
3

5
7

9
 1

6
9

,0
8

 

5

 

R
 8

0
 0

2
1

 1
3

3
,2

3

 

 



72

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.2
.1

  E
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

an
d

 V
ac

an
ci

e
s 

b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

, 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

N
o

. o
f 

p
o

st
s

 
N

o
. o

f 
p

o
st

s 
fi

lle
d

 
%

 V
ac

an
cy

 R
at

e
 

N
o

. o
f 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 a

d
d

i�
o

n
al

 
to

 t
h

e
 

e
st

ab
lis

h
m

e
n

t
 

1
7

0
0

0
0

0
1

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

1
4

7
 

1
4

7
 

0
 

7
 

4
9

5
8

9
9

9
0

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

  
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l  
1

4
8

 
1

4
8

 
0

 
7

 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.2
.2

  E
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

an
d

 V
ac

an
ci

e
s 

b
y 

Sa
la

ry
 B

an
d

s,
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 
2

0
2

0
 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

 

N
o

. o
f 

p
o

st
s 

o
n

 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 

Es
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t

 

N
o

. o
f 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d

 
%

 V
ac

an
cy

 R
at

e

 

N
o

. o
f 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 a

d
d

i�
o

n
al

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
st

ab
lis

h
m

e
n

t

 
Lo

w
er

 s
ki

lle
d

 (
Le

ve
ls

 1
-2

) 

 

4

 

4

 

0

 
  

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 

3
0

 

3
0

 

0

 
  

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 

7
2

 

7
2

 

0

 

3

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 s

u
p

er
vi

si
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 9

-1
2

) 

 

3
2

 

3
2

 

0

 

4

 
M

EC
 &

 S
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

) 

 

1
0

 

1
0

 

0

 
  

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l  

1
4

8

 

1
4

8

 

0

 

7

 

 



73

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.2
.3

  E
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

an
d

 V
ac

an
ci

e
s 

b
y 

cr
i�

ca
l o

cc
u

p
a�

o
n

, 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 

O
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
s

 

N
o

. O
f 

p
o

st
s 

o
n

 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 

Es
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t

 

N
o

. O
f 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d

 

%
 V

ac
an

cy
 R

at
e

 

N
o

. O
f 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 a

d
d

i�
o

n
al

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
st

ab
lis

h
m

e
n

t 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

R
EL

A
TE

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 

5
8

 

5
8

 

0

 

1 

A
LL

 A
R

TI
SA

N
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
ET

A
L 

M
A

C
H

IN
ER

Y 
ET

C
. 

 

8

 

8

 

0

 
  

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
 T

O
W

N
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
FF

IC
 P

LA
N

N
ER

S 
   

   
   

   
 

 

1

 

1

 

0

 
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

 C
A

R
ET

A
K

ER
S 

   
   

   
  

 

1

 

1

 

0

 
  

B
U

S 
A

N
D

 H
EA

V
Y 

V
EH

IC
LE

 D
R

IV
ER

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

6

 

6

 

0

 
  

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 T

EC
H

N
IC

IA
N

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

2

 

2

 

0

 
  

C
LE

A
N

ER
S 

IN
 O

FF
IC

ES
 W

O
R

K
SH

O
P

S 
H

O
SP

IT
A

LS
 E

TC
.  

   
 

 

5

 

5

 

0

 
  

C
O

M
P

O
SI

TO
R

S 
TY

P
ES

ET
TE

R
S 

&
 R

EL
A

TE
D

 P
R

IN
TI

N
G

 W
O

R
K

ER
S

 

3

 

3

 

0

 
  

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S 

A
N

D
 R

EL
AT

ED
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
LS

   
   

   
   

   

 
2

 
2

 
0

 
6 

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

S 
R

EL
A

TE
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
 

4
 

0
 

  

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
C

LE
R

K
S 

A
N

D
 C

R
ED

IT
 C

O
N

TR
O

LL
ER

S 
   

   
   

 
 

2
 

2
 

0
 

  

H
EA

D
 O

F 
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T/

C
H

IE
F 

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

O
FF

IC
ER

   
   

  
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

  

H
U

M
A

N
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

 &
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

T 
D

EV
EL

O
P

M
 &

 R
EL

A
TE

 P
R

O
F

 
1

 
1

 
0

 
  

IN
SP

EC
TO

R
S 

O
F 

A
P

P
R

EN
TI

C
ES

 W
O

R
K

S 
A

N
D

 V
EH

IC
LE

S 
   

  
 

9
 

9
 

0
 

  

LI
B

R
A

R
Y 

M
A

IL
 A

N
D

 R
EL

A
TE

D
 C

LE
R

K
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

 
1

 
0

 
  

M
ES

SE
N

G
ER

S 
P

O
R

TE
R

S 
A

N
D

 D
EL

IV
ER

ER
S 

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
2

 
2

 
0

 
  

M
ET

EO
R

O
LO

G
IS

TS
 S

TA
TI

ST
IC

A
L 

&
 R

EL
A

TE
D

 T
EC

H
N

IC
IA

N
S 

 
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

  

O
TH

ER
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

T 
&

 R
EL

A
TE

D
 C

LE
R

K
S 

A
N

D
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
ER

S 
 

1
4

 
1

4
 

0
 

  
O

TH
ER

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

P
O

LI
C

Y 
A

N
D

 R
EL

A
TE

D
 O

FF
IC

ER
S 

 
 

1
3

 
1

3
 

0
 

  
SE

C
R

ET
A

R
IE

S 
&

 O
TH

ER
 K

EY
B

O
A

R
D

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

LE
R

K
S 

   
 

 
6

 
6

 
0

 
  

SE
N

IO
R

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

8
 

8
 

0
 

  
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
 

1
4

8
 

1
4

8
 

0
 

7  

 



74

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.3
.1

 S
M

S 
p

o
st

 in
fo

rm
a�

o
n

 a
s 

o
n

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 

SM
S 

LE
V

EL

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fu
n

d
e

d
 S

M
S 

p
o

st
s 

 To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

 S
M

S 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 

 

%
 o

f 
SM

S 
p

o
st

s 

fi
lle

d
 

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

SM
S 

p
o

st
s 

va
ca

n
t 

 %
 o

f 
SM

S 
p

o
st

s 
va

ca
n

t

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
6

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
5

 

1

 

1

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
4

 

2

 

2

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
3

 

7

 

7

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 

1
0

 

1
0

 

1
0

0
,0

 

0

 

0

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

  
  

  
  

  

 

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
b

le
 3

.3
.2

 S
M

S 
p

o
st

 in
fo

rm
a�

o
n

 a
s 

o
n

 3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

 

SM
S 

LE
V

EL

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fu
n

d
e

d
 S

M
S 

p
o

st
s 

 
To

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
SM

S 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 

 
%

 o
f 

SM
S 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 

 
To

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

SM
S 

p
o

st
s 

va
ca

n
t 

 %
 o

f 
SM

S 
p

o
st

s 
va

ca
n

t

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
6

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
5

 

1

 

1

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
4

 

2

 

2

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
3

 

7

 

7

 

1
0

0

 
  

0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 

1
0

 

1
0

 

1
0

0
,0

 

0

 

0

 

 



75

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

SM
S 

LE
V

EL

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fu
n

d
e

d
 S

M
S 

p
o

st
s 

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

SM
S 

p
o

st
s 

fi
lle

d
 

 

%
 o

f 
SM

S 
p

o
st

s 

fi
lle

d
 

 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

SM
S 

p
o

st
s 

va
ca

n
t 

 %
 o

f 
SM

S 
p

o
st

s 
va

ca
n

t

 
Sa

la
ry

 L
ev

el
 1

6

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
Sa

la
ry

 L
ev

el
 1

5

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
Sa

la
ry

 L
ev

el
 1

4

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 

Sa
la

ry
 L

ev
el

 1
3

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 

0

 

0

 

0

 
  

0

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.5

.1
 A

n
n

u
al

 t
u

rn
o

ve
r 

ra
te

s 
b

y 
sa

la
ry

 b
an

d
, 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 
Se

rv
ic

e
 B

an
d

 

To
ta

l e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
as

 o
n

 

1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

 

Tr
an

sf
e

rs
 in

to
 t

h
e

 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t

 Te
rm

in
a�

o
n

s 

 

Tr
an

sf
e

rs
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t

 Tu
rn

o
ve

r 
ra

te

 
Lo

w
er

 s
ki

lle
d

 (
Le

ve
ls

 1
-2

)

 

0

 
  

3

 
  

  

0

 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
)

 

0

 
  

3
0

 

2

 
  

0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
)

 

0

 
  

7
5

 

4

 
  

0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
)

 

0

 
  

3
5

 

1

 
  

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 A

 (
Le

ve
l 1

3
)

 

0

 
  

9

 

1

 
  

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 B

 (
Le

ve
l 1

4
)

 

0

 
  

2

 
  

  

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 C

 (
Le

ve
l 1

5
)

 

0

 
  

  
  

  

0

 

M
EC

 &
 S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
B

an
d

 D
 

(L
ev

el
 1

6
)

 

0

 
  

  
  

  

0

 

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 

0

 
  

1
4

 

1
0

 
  

0

 

Pe
ri

o
d

ic
al

 R
em

u
n

er
a�

o
n

 

0

 
  

  
  

  

0

 

A
b

n
o

rm
al

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t

 

0

 
  

1

 
  

  

0

 

TO
TA

L

 

0

 

0

 

1
6

9

 

1
8

 

0

 

0

 

 



76

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.5
.2

 A
n

n
u

al
 t

u
rn

o
ve

r 
ra

te
s 

b
y 

cr
i�

ca
l o

cc
u

p
a�

o
n

, 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

O
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
 

To
ta

l e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
as

 o
n

 1
 

A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

 
Tr

an
sf

e
rs

 in
to

 t
h

e
 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t

 
Te

rm
in

a�
o

n
s 

 
Tr

an
sf

e
rs

 o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

D
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t

 Tu
rn

o
ve

r 
ra

te
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

R
EL

A
TE

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

  
  

6
2

 
3

 
  

0
 

A
LL

 A
R

TI
SA

N
S 

IN
 T

H
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
ET

A
L 

M
A

C
H

IN
ER

Y 
ET

C
. 

 
  

  
9

 
  

  
0

 
A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TS

 T
O

W
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 P
LA

N
N

ER
S 

   
   

   
   

 
  

  
1

 
  

  
0

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 C

A
R

ET
A

K
ER

S 
   

   
   

  
  

  
1

 
  

  
0

 
B

U
S 

A
N

D
 H

EA
V

Y 
V

EH
IC

LE
 D

R
IV

ER
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

  
  

6
 

  
  

0
 

C
A

R
TO

G
R

A
P

H
ER

S 
A

N
D

 S
U

R
V

EY
O

R
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

  
1

 
  

  
0

 
C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 T
EC

H
N

IC
IA

N
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

  
  

3
 

  
  

0
 

C
LE

A
N

ER
S 

IN
 O

FF
IC

ES
 W

O
R

K
SH

O
P

S 
H

O
SP

IT
A

LS
 

ET
C

.  
   

  
  

  
1

1
 

5
 

  
0

 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 S
C

IE
N

C
ES

 R
EL

A
TE

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

  
  

1
 

  
  

0
 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
S 

A
N

D
 R

EL
A

TE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

LS
   

   
   

   
   

  
  

8

 
5

 
  

0

 
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
S 

R
EL

A
TE

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  

  

3

 
  

  

0

 
FI

N
A

N
C

IA
L 

C
LE

R
K

S 
A

N
D

 C
R

ED
IT

 C
O

N
TR

O
LL

ER
S 

   
   

   
 

  
  

2

 
  

  

0

 
H

EA
D

 O
F 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T/
C

H
IE

F 
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 

O
FF

IC
ER

   
   

  

 
  

  

1

 

1

 
  

0

 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 &

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T 

D
EV

EL
O

P
M

 

&
 R

EL
A

TE
 P

R
O

F

 
  

  

1

 
  

  

0

 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 C

LE
R

K
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 
  

  

2

 
  

  

0

 
IN

SP
EC

TO
R

S 
O

F 
A

P
P

R
EN

TI
C

ES
 W

O
R

K
S 

A
N

D
 

V
EH

IC
LE

S 
   

  

 
  

  

1
0

 
  

  

0

 
M

ES
SE

N
G

ER
S 

P
O

R
TE

R
S 

A
N

D
 D

EL
IV

ER
ER

S 
   

   
   

   
   

 

  
  

2

 
  

  

0

 
O

TH
ER

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
T

 &
 R

EL
A

TE
D

 C
LE

R
K

S 
A

N
D

 

O
R

G
A

N
IS

ER
S 

 
  

  

1
6

 

1

 
  

0

 
O

TH
ER

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

P
O

LI
C

Y 
A

N
D

 R
EL

A
TE

D
 

O
FF

IC
ER

S 
  

  
  

1
4

 

2

 
  

0

 
SE

C
R

ET
A

R
IE

S 
&

 O
TH

ER
 K

EY
B

O
A

R
D

 O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 

C
LE

R
K

S 
   

  
  

  

6

 
  

  

0

 
SE

N
IO

R
 M

A
N

A
G

ER
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

  

9

 

1

 
  

0

 
G

R
A

N
D

 T
O

TA
L

 

0

 

0

 

1
6

9

 

1
8

 

0

 

0

 

 



77

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

SE
C

R
ET

A
R

IE
S 

&
 O

TH
ER

 K
EY

B
O

A
R

D
 O

P
ER

A
TI

N
G

 

C
LE

R
K

S 
   

 
 

  
  

6
 

  
  

0
 

SE
N

IO
R

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

  
  

9
 

1
 

  
0

 
G

R
A

N
D

 T
O

TA
L

 
0

 
0

 
1

6
9

 
1

8
 

0
 

0
 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.5
.3

 R
e

as
o

n
s 

w
h

y 
st

aff
 le

�
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
ar

tm
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 a

n
d

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

R
e

si
gn

 T
yp

e
 D

e
sc

ri
p

�
o

n
 

To
ta

l
 

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l R

e
si

gn
a�

o
n

s
 

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l E

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t
 

1
 R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
-

 SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

6
(1

)(
A

) 
P

U
B

LI
C

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
A

C
T 

 
 

4
 

2
2

 
0

 
3

 R
ES

IG
N

AT
IO

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

 
1

1

 
0

 
5

 M
ED

IC
A

L 
R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 

2

 

1
1

 

0

 
8

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
EX

P
IR

Y 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 

1
0

 

5
6

 

0

 
TO

TA
L

 

1
8

 

1
0

0

 

0

 
9

9
 T

R
A

N
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

O
F 

P
ER

SA
L 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

 

0

 

0

 

0

 
IN

TE
R

 D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

TA
L 

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 (

W
IT

H
IN

 N
W

P
G

)

 

0

 

0

 

0

 
TO

TA
L 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 T
R

A
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

O
F 

P
ER

SA
L

 

1
8

 

1
0

0

 

0

 

 



78

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.5
.4

 P
ro

m
o

�
o

n
s 

b
y 

cr
i�

ca
l o

cc
u

p
a�

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 a
n

d
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

O
C

C
U

PA
TI

O
N

   
 

 
To

ta
l e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 

o
n

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 

TO
TA

L 

P
R

O
M

O
TI

O
N

S
 

Sa
la

ry
 L

e
ve

l 

P
ro

m
o

�
o

n
s 

as
 

a 
%

 o
f 

Em
p

lo
ym

e
n

t
 

TO
TA

L 
PA

Y
 

P
R

O
G

R
ES

SI
O

N
 

N
o

tc
h

 p
ro

gr
e

ss
io

n
s 

as
 a

 %
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a�
ve

 r
el

at
ed

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

2
 

0
 

2
9

 
0

 
A

ll 
ar

�
sa

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

b
u

ild
in

g 
m

et
al

 m
ac

h
in

er
y 

et
c.

 
 

  
  

0
 

4
 

0
 

A
rc

h
it

ec
ts

 t
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ffi

c 
p

la
n

n
er

s 
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

  
0

 
  

0
 

B
u

ild
in

g 
an

d
 o

th
er

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 c

ar
et

ak
er

s 
   

   
   

  
 

  
  

0
 

1
 

0
 

B
u

s 
an

d
 h

ea
vy

 v
eh

ic
le

 d
ri

ve
rs

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 
  

  

0

 

6

 

0

 
C

ar
to

gr
ap

h
er

s 
an

d
 s

u
rv

ey
o

rs
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
C

iv
il 

en
gi

n
ee

ri
n

g 
te

ch
n

ic
ia

n
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

 
  

  

0

 

2

 

0

 
C

le
an

er
s 

in
 o

ffi
ce

s 
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s 

h
o

sp
it

al
s 

et
c.

   
   

 
  

  

0

 

5

 

0

 
En

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g 

sc
ie

n
ce

s 
re

la
te

d
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 
  

  

0

 

1

 

0

 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

 a
n

d
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

s 
   

   
   

   
  

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
Fi

n
an

ce
 a

n
d

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

s 
re

la
te

d

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

  
  

0

 

3

 

0

 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 c
le

rk
s 

an
d

 c
re

d
it

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

rs
   

   
   

  

 
  

  

0

 

1

 

0

 
H

ea
d

 o
f 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t/

ch
ie

f 
ex

ec
u

�
ve

 o
ffi

ce
r 

   
   

 

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
H

u
m

an
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 &

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

 

&
 r

el
at

e 
p

ro
f

 
  

  

0

 
  

0

 
H

u
m

an
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 c

le
rk

s 
   

   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

  
  

0

 

2

 

0

 
In

sp
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

ap
p

re
n

�
ce

s 
w

o
rk

s 
an

d
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

   
  

 
  

  

0

 

9

 

0

 
M

es
se

n
ge

rs
 p

o
rt

er
s 

an
d

 d
el

iv
er

er
s 

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

  

0

 

1

 

0

 
O

th
er

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e

 &
 r

el
at

ed
 c

le
rk

s 
an

d
 o

rg
an

is
er

s 

 
  

  

0

 

7

 

0

 
O

th
er

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a�
ve

 p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 o

ffi
ce

rs
  

 
  

1

 

0

 

5

 

0

 
Se

cr
et

ar
ie

s 
&

 o
th

er
 k

ey
b

o
ar

d
 o

p
er

a�
n

g 
cl

er
ks

   
  

 
  

  

0

 

6

 

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 
  

  

0

 

4

 

0

 
TO

TA
L

 

0

 

3

 

0

 

8
6

 

0

 

 



79

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.5
.5

 P
ro

m
o

�
o

n
s 

b
y 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 a
n

d
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

 
To

ta
l e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 o

n
 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 P

R
O

M
O

TI
O

N
S 

TO
 

A
N

O
TH

ER
 S

A
LA

R
Y

 

LE
V

EL
 

Sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

s 
p

ro
m

o
�

o
n

s 

as
 a

 %
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

b
y 

sa
la

ry
 le

ve
l

 

PA
Y

 

P
R

O
G

R
ES

SI
O

N
 N

o
tc

h
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

io
n

s 
a 

a 
%

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
b

y 
sa

la
ry

 b
an

d
 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
  

  
0

 
3

 
0

 
Sk

ill
ed

 (
Le

ve
ls

 3
-5

) 
 

  
  

0
 

2
0

 
0

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 p

ro
d

u
c�

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 6
-8

) 
 

  
2

 
0

 
3

8
 

0
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

 
  

1
 

0
 

2
0

 
0

 
Se

n
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
(L

ev
el

s 
1

3
-1

6
) 

 
  

  
0

 
5

 
0

 
C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 

  
  

0
 

  
0

 
Pe

ri
o

d
ic

al
 R

em
u

n
er

a�
o

n
 

  
  

0
 

  
0

 
A

b
n

o
rm

al
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t
 

  
  

0
 

  
0

 
TO

TA
L

 

0

 

3

 

0

 

8
6

 

0

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.6

.1
 T

o
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
w

it
h

 d
is

ab
ili

�
e

s)
 in

 e
ac

h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
o

cc
u

p
a�

o
n

al
 c

at
e

go
ri

e
s 

as
 o

n
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

O
cc

. C
at

e
go

ri
e

s

 

M
A

LE
   

 

FE
M

A
LE

 

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l

 
A

FR
IC

A
N

  

 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 IN
D

IA
N

   

 W
H

IT
E 

   

 

A
FR

IC
A

N
  

 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 

IN
D

IA
N

   

 

W
H

IT
E 

   

 
C

le
rk

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 

7

 
  

  
  

1
7

 
  

  
  

2
4

 
C

ra
�

 a
n

d
 r

el
at

ed
 t

ra
d

es
 w

o
rk

er
s 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

1
5

 
  

  

1

 

3

 
  

  
  

1
9

 
El

em
en

ta
ry

 o
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 

5

 
  

  
  

8

 
  

  
  

1
3

 
Le

gi
sl

at
o

rs
, s

en
io

r 
o

ffi
ci

al
s,

 m
an

ag
er

s 
   

   
   

   

 

5

 
  

  
  

2

 
  

  

1

 

8

 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 m

ac
h

in
e 

o
p

er
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 a

ss
em

b
le

rs
   

   
  

6

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 

9

 
  

1

 
  

5

 
  

  
  

1
5

 
Te

ch
n

ic
ia

n
s,

 a
ss

o
ci

at
e 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

   
   

   
   

  

 

3
3

 
  

1

 

2

 

3
8

 
  

1

 
  

7
5

 
TO

TA
L

 

8
0

 

0

 

2

 

3

 

7
3

 

0

 

1

 

1

 

1
6

0

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

es

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1

 

1

  

 



80

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.6
.2

 T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

e
s)

 in
 e

ac
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

o
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
al

 b
an

d
s 

as
 o

n
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

O
C

C
U

PA
TI

O
N

A
L 

B
A

N
D

S
 

M
A

LE
   

 
FE

M
A

LE
 

 
G

ra
n

d
 

To
ta

l
 

A
FR

IC
A

N
  

 
C

O
LO

U
R

ED
 

 IN
D

IA
N

   
 W

H
IT

E 
   

 
A

FR
IC

A
N

  
 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 
 

IN
D

IA
N

   
 

W
H

IT
E 

   
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
ly

 q
u

al
ifi

ed
 a

n
d

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

d
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

ts
 

an
d

 m
id

-m
an

ag
em

en
t 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

1
1

 
  

2
 

1
 

6
 

  
1

 
  2
1

 
Se

m
i-

sk
ill

ed
 a

n
d

 d
is

cr
e�

o
n

ar
y 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1
7

 
  

  
  

1
1

 
  

  
  2
8

 
Se

n
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
 

  
  

  
3

 
  

  1
 9

 
Sk

ill
ed

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 a
n

d
 a

ca
d

em
ic

al
ly

 q
u

al
ifi

ed
 w

o
rk

er
s-

ju
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t-

 su
p

er
vi

so
rs

-
 

fo
re

m
en

-
 

an
d

 

su
p

er
in

te
n

d
en

ts
  

 

4
5

 
  

  

2

 

4
6

 
  

  
  9
3

 
To

p
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

  
  

  
  

1

 
  

  
  1

 
U

n
sk

ill
ed

 a
n

d
 d

efi
n

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2

 
  

  
  

6

 
  

  
  8

 
To

ta
l

 

8
0

 

0

 

2

 

3

 

7
3

 

0

 

1

 

1

 

1
6

0

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

es

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  1

 1

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.6

.3
 -

 

R
e

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 
O

C
C

U
PA

TI
O

N
A

L 
B

A
N

D
S

 

M
A

LE
   

 

FE
M

A
LE

 

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l

 
A

FR
IC

A
N

  

 C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 

IN
D

IA
N

   

 

W
H

IT
E 

   
A

FR
IC

A
N

  

 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 

IN
D

IA
N

   

 

W
H

IT
E 

   

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

To
ta

l

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

0

 
TR

A
N

SF
ER

S 
TO

 T
H

E 
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

 

8
1

 
  

2

 

3

 

8
1

 
  

1

 

1

 

1
6

9

 
TO

TA
L 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 T
R

A
N

SF
ER

S 
TO

 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T

 

8
1

 

0

 

2

 

3

 

8
1

 

0

 

1

 

1

 

1
6

9

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

es

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

0

 

 



81

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.6

.5
  

-
  

Te
rm

in
a�

o
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

O
C

C
U

PA
TI

O
N

A
L 

B
A

N
D

S

 

M
A

LE
   

 
FE

M
A

LE
 

 

G
ra

n
d

 

To
ta

l

 
A

FR
IC

A
N

  

 C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 IN
D

IA
N

   

 

W
H

IT
E 

   

 

A
FR

IC
A

N
  

 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

 

IN
D

IA
N

   

 

W
H

IT
E 

   

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

ly
 q

u
al

ifi
ed

 a
n

d
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
d

 s
p

ec
ia

lis
ts

 a
n

d
 m

id
-

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

1

 
  

  
  

1

 
  

  
  

2

 
Se

m
i-

sk
ill

ed
 a

n
d

 d
is

cr
e�

o
n

ar
y 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1

 
  

  
  

1

 
  

  
  

2

 
Se

n
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

  
  

  

1

 
  

  
  

1

 
Sk

ill
ed

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 a
n

d
 a

ca
d

em
ic

al
ly

 q
u

al
ifi

ed
 w

o
rk

er
s-

ju
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t-

 su
p

er
vi

so
rs

-

 fo
re

m
en

-

 an
d

 s
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
ts

  

 

1

 
  

  
  

7

 
  

  
  

8

 
To

p
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  

  
  

1

 
  

  
  

1

 
U

n
sk

ill
ed

 a
n

d
 d

efi
n

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

 
  

  
  

2

 
  

  
  

4

 
To

ta
l T

e
rm

in
a�

o
n

s

 

5

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

1
3

 

0

 

0

 

0

 1
8

 
TR

A
N

SF
ER

 O
F 

A
 P

ER
SO

N
 T

O
 A

N
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SA
L 

B
U

R
EA

U
   

  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

IN
TE

R
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
TA

L 
TR

A
N

SF
ER

 (
W

IT
H

IN
 N

W
P

G
)

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

TO
TA

L 
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T 
O

F 
P

ER
SA

L

 

5

 

0

 

0

 

0

 

1
3

 

0

 

0

 

0

 1
8

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

es

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

0

 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.6
.4

  
-

  
P

ro
m

o
�

o
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

O
C

C
U

PA
TI

O
N

A
L 

B
A

N
D

S
 

M
A

LE
   

 
FE

M
A

LE
 

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
 

A
FR

IC
A

N
  

 
C

O
LO

U
R

ED
 

 
IN

D
IA

N
   

 
W

H
IT

E 
   

 A
FR

IC
A

N
  

 C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 
 IN

D
IA

N
   

 W
H

IT
E 

   
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
ly

 q
u

al
ifi

ed
 a

n
d

 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

d
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

n
d

 m
id

-

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

  
  

  
  

1
 

  
  

  
1

 

Sk
ill

ed
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 a

n
d

 a
ca

d
em

ic
al

ly
 

q
u

al
ifi

ed
 w

o
rk

er
s-

ju
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t-

 su
p

er
vi

so
rs

-
 fo

re
m

en
-

 
an

d
 s

u
p

er
in

te
n

d
en

ts
  

 

1
 

  
  

  
1

 
  

  
  

2
 

To
ta

l  
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
2

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
3

 
Em

p
lo

ye
es

 w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
�

es
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
 



82

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.8
.1

  P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

 

R
e

w
ar

d
s 

b
y 

ra
ce

, g
e

n
d

e
r 

an
d

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
, 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

R
A

C
E

 

G
EN

D
ER

 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

y 
P

ro
fi

le

 

C
o

st

 

N
o

. o
f 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

ie
s

 

N
o

. o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 a

t 
3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l w

it
h

in
 

gr
o

u
p

 

C
o

st

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 c
o

st
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

A
FR

IC
A

N
 

 

FE
M

A
LE

 

2
5

 

7
3

 

3
4

 

R
 4

1
0

 

4
5

9
,2

3

 

R
 1

6
 4

1
8

,4
0

 

M
A

LE
  

 

2
7

 

8
0

 

3
4

 

R
 4

8
1

 2
7

1
,3

7

 

R
 1

7
 8

2
4

,9
0

 

C
O

LO
U

R
ED

 

FE
M

A
LE

 
  

  

0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 

M
A

LE
  

 
  

  

0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 

IN
D

IA
N

 

FE
M

A
LE

 
  

1

 

0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 

M
A

LE
  

 

1

 

2

 

5
0

 

R
 4

1
 3

0
2

,6
5

 

R
 4

1
 3

0
2

,7
0

 

W
H

IT
E 

  

 

FE
M

A
LE

 

1

 

1

 

1
0

0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

M
A

LE
  

 

1

 

3

 

3
3

 

R
 3

0
 9

6
4

,6
8

 

R
 3

0
 9

6
4

,7
0

 

TO
TA

L

 

5
5

 

1
6

0

 

3
4

 

R
 1

 0
1

6
 5

4
7

,4
3

 

R
 1

8
 4

8
2

,7
0

 

EM
P

LO
YE

ES
 W

IT
H

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

Y

 

1

 

1

 

1
0

0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.8
.2

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 R

e
w

ar
d

s 
b

y 
sa

la
ry

 b
an

d
s 

fo
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l b

e
lo

w
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

, 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S

 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

y 
P

ro
fi

le

 

C
o

st

 

To
ta

l c
o

st
 a

s 
a 

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l p
e

rs
o

n
e

l 

ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

 
N

o
. o

f 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

ie
s

 

N
o

. o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 

at
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 

2
0

2
0

 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l w

it
h

in
 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

s

 
To

ta
l C

o
st

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 c

o
st

 p
e

r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 

1

 

3

 

3
3

 

R
 5

 

1
2

4
,1

5

 

R
 5

 1
2

4
,2

0

 

0

 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 

2
1

 

2
8

 

7
5

 

R
 2

1
4

 4
3

2
,4

4

 

R
 1

0
 2

1
1

,1
0

 

0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
2

0

 
7

1

 
2

8

 
R

 3
5

6
 0

1
3

,2
5

 
R

 1
7

 8
0

0
,7

0

 
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

 
1

2
 

3
4

 
3

5
 

R
 3

8
8

 4
2

8
,0

9
 

R
 3

2
 3

6
9

,0
0

 
0

 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
-1

2
)

 
  

1
4

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
0

 

To
ta

l 
5

4
 

1
5

0
 

3
6

 
R

 9
6

3
 9

9
7

,9
3

 
R

 1
7

 8
5

1
,8

0
 

1
 

 



83

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.8
.3

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 R

e
w

ar
d

s 
b

y 
cr

i�
ca

l o
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
s,

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

O
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

y 
P

ro
fi

le
 

C
o

st
 

N
o

. o
f 

B
e

n
efi

ci
ar

ie
s

 

N
o

. o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

as
 

at
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

%
 

o
f 

to
ta

l w
it

h
in

 

o
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
 

To
ta

l C
o

st
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
o

st
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a�

ve
 r

el
at

ed
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

2
2

 
5

9
 

3
7

 
R

 4
5

4
 9

0
3

,8
6

 
R

 2
0

 6
7

7
,4

0
 

A
ll 

ar
�

sa
n

s 
in

 t
h

e 
b

u
ild

in
g 

m
et

al
 m

ac
h

in
er

y 
et

c.
 

 
  

9
 

0
 

  
R

 0
,0

0
 

A
rc

h
it

ec
ts

 t
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ffi

c 
p

la
n

n
er

s 
   

   
   

   
  

  
1

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
B

u
ild

in
g 

an
d

 o
th

er
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 c
ar

et
ak

er
s 

   
   

   
  

 
  

1
 

0
 

  
R

 0
,0

0
 

B
u

s 
an

d
 h

ea
vy

 v
eh

ic
le

 d
ri

ve
rs

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
 

6
 

8
3

 
R

 5
4

 2
6

7
,3

0
 

R
 1

0
 8

5
3

,5
0

 
C

ar
to

gr
ap

h
er

s 
an

d
 s

u
rv

ey
o

rs
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

  
1

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
C

iv
il 

en
gi

n
ee

ri
n

g 
te

ch
n

ic
ia

n
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1
 

3
 

3
3

 
R

 4
0

 8
4

2
,3

0
 

R
 4

0
 8

4
2

,3
0

 
C

le
an

er
s 

in
 o

ffi
ce

s 
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s 

h
o

sp
it

al
s 

et
c.

   
   

 
4

 
1

0
 

4
0

 
R

 3
3

 6
7

1
,4

9
 

R
 8

 4
1

7
,9

0
 

En
gi

n
ee

ri
n

g 
sc

ie
n

ce
s 

re
la

te
d

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
  

1
 

0
 

  
R

 0
,0

0
 

En
gi

n
ee

rs
 a

n
d

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
s 

   
   

   
   

  
 

  
8

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
Fi

n
an

ce
 a

n
d

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

s 
re

la
te

d
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

 
3

 
6

7
 

R
 7

6
 6

7
5

,9
5

 
R

 3
8

 3
3

8
,0

0
 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 c

le
rk

s 
an

d
 c

re
d

it
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
rs

   
   

   
  

 
1

 
2

 
5

0
 

R
 2

4
 2

8
0

,5
6

 
R

 2
4

 2
8

0
,6

0
 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t/
ch

ie
f 

ex
ec

u
�

ve
 o

ffi
ce

r 
   

   
 

 
  

1
 

0
 

  
R

 0
,0

0
 

H
u

m
an

 r
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 o

rg
an

is
at

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

 &
 r

el
at

e 
p

ro
f

 
  

1
 

0
 

  
R

 0
,0

0
 

H
u

m
an

 r
es

o
u

rc
es

 c
le

rk
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

  
1

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
In

sp
ec

to
rs

 o
f 

ap
p

re
n

�
ce

s 
w

o
rk

s 
an

d
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

   
  

 
2

 
1

0
 

2
0

 
R

 2
3

 2
2

8
,8

5
 

R
 1

1
 6

1
4

,4
0

 
M

es
se

n
ge

rs
 p

o
rt

er
s 

an
d

 d
el

iv
er

er
s 

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
1

 
2

 
5

0
 

R
 1

5
 4

1
3

,2
8

 
R

 1
5

 4
1

3
,3

0
 

O
th

er
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

 &
 r

el
at

ed
 c

le
rk

s 
an

d
 o

rg
an

is
er

s 

 
8

 
1

4

 
5

7

 
R

 1
1

2
 0

0
6

,1
7

 
R

 1
4

 0
0

0
,8

0

 
O

th
er

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a�
ve

 p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 r
el

at
ed

 o
ffi

ce
rs

  

 

7

 

1
3

 

5
4

 

R
 1

1
5

 6
4

7
,3

7

 

R
 1

6
 5

2
1

,1
0

 
Se

cr
et

ar
ie

s 
&

 o
th

er
 k

ey
b

o
ar

d
 o

p
er

a�
n

g 
cl

er
ks

   
  

 

1

 

7

 

1
4

 

R
 1

3
 0

6
0

,8
0

 

R
 1

3
 0

6
0

,8
0

 
Se

n
io

r 
m

an
ag

er
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 

1

 

7

 

1
4

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 
TO

TA
L

 

5
5

 

1
6

0

 

3
4

 

R
 1

 0
1

6
 5

4
7

,4
3

 

R
 1

8
 4

8
2

,7
0

 

 



84

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.8
.4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 r

e
la

te
d

 r
e

w
ar

d
s 

(c
as

h
 b

o
n

u
s)

 b
y 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

s 
fo

r

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

, 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S

 
B

e
n

efi
ci

ar
y 

P
ro

fi
le

 

C
o

st

 

To
ta

l c
o

st
 a

s 
a 

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l p
e

rs
o

n
e

l 
ex

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

 
N

o
. o

f 
B

e
n

efi
ci

ar
ie

s

 
N

o
. o

f 
Em

p
lo

ye
e

s 
as

 a
t 

3
1

 M
ar

ch
 

2
0

2
0

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
w

it
h

in
 s

al
ar

y 
b

an
d

s

 
To

ta
l C

o
st

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 c

o
st

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 A

 (
Le

ve
l 1

3
)

 

1

 

7

 

1
4

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 B

 (
Le

ve
l 1

4
)

 
  

2

 

0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 

0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

B
an

d
 C

 (
Le

ve
l 1

5
)

 
  

  

0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 

0

 

M
EC

 &
 S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
B

an
d

 D
 (

Le
ve

l 1
6

)

 
  

  
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
0

 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

)
 

  
1

 
0

 
  

R
 0

,0
0

 
0

 

To
ta

l 
1

 
1

0
 

1
0

 
R

 5
2

 5
4

9
,5

0
 

R
 5

2
 5

4
9

,5
0

 
0

 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.9
.1

 F
o

re
ig

n
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 b
y 

sa
la

ry
 b

an
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 a
n

d
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 
3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 
C

h
an

ge
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
 1

3
-1

6
)

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
-2

)
 

  
0

 
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

3
-5

)
 

  
0

 
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

6
-8

)
 

  
0

 
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

9
-1

2
)

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

Pe
ri

o
d

ic
al

 R
em

u
n

er
a�

o
n

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

A
b

n
o

rm
al

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

 



85

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.9
.2

 F
o

re
ig

n
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 b
y 

m
aj

o
r 

o
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 a

n
d

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

O
cc

u
p

a�
o

n
 

 
1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 

3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

C
h

an
ge

 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l
 

  
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
0

.1
 S

ic
k 

le
av

e
, 1

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S
 

To
ta

l d
ay

s
 

%
 d

ay
s 

w
it

h
 

m
e

d
ic

al
 

ce
r�

fi
ca

�
o

n
 

N
o

. o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 

u
si

n
g 

si
ck

 le
av

e
 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
u

si
n

g 

si
ck

 le
av

e
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 d
ay

s 

p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 

Es
�

m
at

e
d

 C
o

st
 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
3

4
 

8
2

 
2

 
3

 
1

7
 

R
 1

9
 3

2
4

,2
4

 
Sk

ill
ed

 (
Le

ve
ls

 3
-5

) 
 

1
9

9
 

9
4

 
2

0
 

2
5

 
1

0
 

R
 1

7
7

 0
2

2
,9

7
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
3

2
6

 
9

0
 

3
3

 
4

1
 

1
0

 
R

 5
1

1
 3

1
2

,3
3

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 s

u
p

er
vi

si
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 9

-1
2

) 
 

2
4

7
 

9
3

 
1

8
 

2
2

 
1

4
 

R
 5

8
5

 6
1

2
,0

4
 

Se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

) 
 

5
9

 
9

8
 

8
 

1
0

 
7

 
R

 2
5

3
 7

1
6

,9
7

 
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l  
8

6
5

 
9

2
 

8
1

 
1

0
0

 
1

1
 

R
 1

 5
4

6
 9

8
8

,5
5

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.1

0
.2

  D
is

ab
ili

ty
 le

av
e

 (
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 p
e

rm
an

e
n

t)
, 1

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

 

SA
LA

R
Y

  B
A

N
D

S
 

To
ta

l D
ay

s
 

%
 d

ay
s 

w
it

h
 

m
e

d
ic

al
 

ce
r�

fi
ca

�
o

n
 

N
o

. o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 

u
si

n
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

Le
av

e
 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
u

si
n

g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 L

e
av

e
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

Es
�

m
at

e
d

 C
o

st
 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
  

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 
  

0
 

  
0

 
0

 
  

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
5

2
 

1
0

0
 

2
 

6
7

 
2

6
 

R
 8

6
 3

7
5

,1
0

 
H

ig
h

ly
 s

ki
lle

d
 s

u
p

er
vi

si
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 9

-1
2

) 
 

5
 

1
0

0
 

1
 

3
3

 
5

 
R

 1
0

 9
8

1
,1

5
 

Se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

) 
 

  
0

 
  

0
 

0
 

  
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l  
5

7
 

1
0

0
 

3
 

1
0

0
 

1
9

 
R

 9
7

 3
5

6
,2

5
 

 



86

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
0

.3
  A

n
n

u
al

 le
av

e
 1

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
0

 

SA
LA

R
Y

  B
A

N
D

S
 

To
ta

l d
ay

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

u
si

n
g

 
A

n
n

u
al

 

Le
av

e
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
8

7
 

7
 

1
2

 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 
5

8
7

 
3

0
 

2
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
1

6
8

7
 

7
8

 
2

2
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

 
7

5
8

 
4

0
 

1
9

 

Se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

) 
 

1
5

4
 

1
1

 
1

4
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

3
2

7
3

 
1

6
6

 
2

0
 

 

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
0

.4
 C

ap
p

e
d

 le
av

e
, 1

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

 

SA
LA

R
Y

 B
A

N
D

S
 

To
ta

l d
ay

s 
o

f 

ca
p

p
e

d
 le

av
e

 

ta
ke

n
 

N
o

. o
f 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
s 

u
si

n
g 

ca
p

p
e

d
 

le
av

e
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 c
ap

p
e

d
 le

av
e

 

p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 a

s 
at

 3
1

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

To
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ca
p

p
e

d
 

le
av

e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 a
t 

3
1

 M
ar

ch
 

2
0

2
0

 

Lo
w

er
 s

ki
lle

d
 (

Le
ve

ls
 1

-2
) 

 
  

  
0

 
0

 
0

 

Sk
ill

ed
 (

Le
ve

ls
 3

-5
) 

 
  

  
0

 
2

0
 

5
4

7
,4

3
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 p
ro

d
u

c�
o

n
 (

Le
ve

ls
 6

-8
) 

 
  

  
0

 
3

2
 

2
4

3
2

,5
8

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
ki

lle
d

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 (
Le

ve
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

 
1

 
1

 
1

 
3

1
 

1
2

2
1

,4
2

 

Se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(L
ev

el
s 

1
3

-1
6

) 
 

  
  

0
 

3
2

 
3

2
0

,5
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

1
 

1
 

1
 

2
8

 
4

5
2

1
,9

3
 

 



87

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20

Ta
b

le
 3

.1
0

.5
 L

e
av

e
 P

ay
o

u
ts

 f
o

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0
 

R
e

as
o

n
 

To
ta

l A
m

o
u

n
t

 
N

o
. o

f 
Em

p
lo

ye
e

s
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 p
ay

m
e

n
t 

p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 

Le
av

e 
p

ay
o

u
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
9

/2
0

 d
u

e 
to

 n
o

n
-u

�
lis

a�
o

n
 o

f 
le

av
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

cy
cl

e 
(L

EA
V

E 

D
IS

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G
 (

U
N

U
SE

D
 L

EA
V

E 
C

R
)

 

R
 1

8
4

 6
4

6
,7

8
 

1
 

R
 1

8
4

 6
4

7
,0

0
 

C
ap

p
ed

 le
av

e 
p

ay
o

u
ts

 o
n

 t
er

m
in

a�
o

n
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
2

0
1

9
/2

0
 (

LE
A

V
E 

G
R

A
TU

IT
Y)

 
R

 0
,0

0
 

0
 

R
 0

,0
0

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
le

av
e 

p
ay

o
u

t 
o

n
 t

er
m

in
a�

o
n

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

2
0

1
9

/2
0

 (
LE

A
V

E 
D

IS
C

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 \
 

G
R

A
TU

IT
Y 

(U
N

U
SE

D
 L

EA
V

E 
C

R
)

 

R
 1

 1
0

1
 9

1
9

,8
2

 
9

 
R

 1
2

2
 4

3
6

,0
0

 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

 
R

 1
 2

8
6

 5
6

6
,6

0
 

1
0

 
R

 1
2

8
 6

5
7

,0
0

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.1

2
.6

  S
tr

ik
e

 A
c�

o
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
9

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

0

 

TO
TA

L 
D

A
Y

S

 

TO
TA

L 
C

O
ST

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

re
co

ve
re

d
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
n

o
 w

o
rk

 n
o

 p
ay

 
0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 

R
 0

,0
0

 

  
  

  

  
  

  

 
Ta

b
le

 3
.1

4
.1

  I
n

ju
ry

 o
n

 d
u

ty
, 1

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

9
 t

o
 3

1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
0

 
N

at
u

re
 o

f 
in

ju
ry

 o
n

 d
u

ty

 

Eff
e

ct
 o

f 
in

ju
ry

 o
n

 d
u

ty

 

To
ta

l

 

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l 

 

  
  

  

0

 

  
  

  

0

 

  
  

  

0

 
TO

TA
L

 
  

0

 

0

 

 



88

4. PART E: FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION  

  

87 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

5. PART E: FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



89

4. Financial Informa�on

4.1 Report of the Auditor General 

4.2 Annual Financial Statements

Annual Report 2019/20

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20



90

Annual Report 2019/20

Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial legislature 
on vote no. 14: The Department of Human Settlements

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Disclaimer of opinion
1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Department of Human 

Settlements set out on pages 106 to 172, which comprise the appropriation statement, 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement for the year 
then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

2. I do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the department. Because of 
the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of 
this auditor's report, I have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Transfers and subsidies
3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for transfers and subsidies 

as the department did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was unable to confirm 
the expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 
any adjustment relating to transfers and subsidies of R1 755 941 000 as disclosed in note 
9 to the financial statements was necessary. Since the transfers and subsidies paid is 
included in the determination of net cash flow from operating activities reported in the 
cash flow statement, I was also unable to determine if any adjustment to the net cash flow 
from operating activities was necessary.

Compensation of employees
4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for compensation of 

employees as the department did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was 
unable to confirm the expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment relating to compensation of employees of R106 091 
000 as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements was necessary.

Goods and services
5. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for goods and services as 

the department did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was unable to confirm 
the expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 
any adjustment relating to goods and services of R26 160 000 as disclosed in note 6 to 
the financial statements was necessary.

Cash and cash equivalents
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cash and cash 

equivalents as the department did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was 
unable to confirm the cash and cash equivalents by alternative means. Consequently, I 
was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to cash and cash equivalents 
of R56 433 000 as disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements or the cash flow 

Department of Human Settlements 2019/20
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Voted funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund
7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amount classified 

as voted funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund as the department did not maintain 
adequate accounting records. I was unable to confirm the amount by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to voted funds 
to be surrendered to the revenue fund of -R79 348 000 as disclosed in note 18 to the 
financial statements was necessary.

Contingent liabilities
8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for claims against the 

department included in contingent liabilities as disclosed as the documentation I 
considered necessary to support these claims were not available. I was unable to confirm 
the contingent liabilities by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to contingent liabilities of R125 312 000 as disclosed in 
note 25 to the financial statements was necessary.

Accruals and payables not recognised
9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the accruals and 

payables not recognised as the documentation I considered necessary to support these 
balances were not available. I was unable to confirm the amounts by alternative means. 
In addition, the department did not include all amounts where goods or services or 
invoices have been received but not yet paid, as a result the accruals and payables not 
recognised were understated by R18 130 656. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to accruals of R8 698 000 and payables not recognised 
of R123 048 000 as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements was necessary.

Appropriation statement
10. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the calculation of the 

actual expenditure amounts in the appropriation statement were appropriately accounted 
for due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the actual 
expenditure amounts by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to actual expenditure amounts and the resultant 
variances as disclosed in the appropriation statement was necessary.

Related party transactions
11. The department did not disclose all the related party relationships in accordance with 

the Modified Cash Standard (MCS), Chapter 15: Related party disclosures. Departments 
and entities in the provincial sphere of government are related as they are under common 
control, however the department did not disclose that all provincial departments, trading 
entities, schedule 3C and 3D public entities as well as the provincial legislature are 
related parties. In addition, the department did not disclose the impact of the Cabinet 
resolution to invoke section 100(1)(a) of the Constitution on 23 May 2018 at the 
department and the establishment of the Inter-Ministerial Task Team (IMTT), which is 
constituted of several ministers to address the challenges facing the province, together 
with interventions at other provincial departments in note 33 to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure
12. Section 40 of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 

1999) (PFMA) requires the disclosure of irregular expenditure incurred. The department 
made payments of R32 409 165 in contravention of the supply chain management 
requirements in the current year which were not included in irregular expenditure 
disclosed. As the department did not quantify the full extent of irregular expenditure, it 
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was impracticable to determine the resultant misstatement to irregular expenditure of R125 
179 000 as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

Other matter
13. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
14. The supplementary information set out on pages 169 to 172 does not form part of the 

financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these 
schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements
15. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in accordance with the MCS prescribed by National Treasury and the 
requirements of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2019 (Act No. 
16 of 2019) (DoRA) and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

16. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for 
assessing the Department of Human Settlement's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to 
liquidate the department or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
17. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and to issue an auditor's report. However, 
because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this 
auditor's, I was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

18. I am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the 
Code of ethics for professional accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) of 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in South 
Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA codes.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope
19. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 

(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on 
the usefulness and reliability on the reported performance information against 
predetermined objectives for the selected programme presented in the annual 
performance report. I was engaged to perform procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance.

20. I was engaged to evaluate the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management 
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and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 
programme presented in the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 
31 March 2020:

21. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected 
programme are as follows:

Programme 3 - Housing development

Indicator: Number of catalytic projects implemented
22. I was unable to audit the usefulness and reliability of the reported indicator against the 

reported target of 2, since it was not pre-determined and included in the approved annual 
performance plan (APP) for the year under review.

Various indicators
23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the achievement and 

the reasons for variances as reported in the annual performance report (APR) for the 
indicators listed below. This was due to the lack of accurate and complete records. I was 
unable to confirm the reported achievement and the reported reasons for variances by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 
were required to the reported achievements and the reported reasons for variances

Various indicators

24. For the indicators listed below, the reported indicator and/or target did not agree to the 
planned indicator and/or target as per the approved APP. These changes were made 
without the necessary approval. Furthermore, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence for the achievement and the reasons for variances as reported in the APR 
for the indicators listed below. This was due to the lack of accurate and complete records. 
I was unable to confirm the reported achievement and the reasons for variances by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 
were required to the reported achievements and the reported reasons for variances.

Indicator description Planned 
target 

Reported 
achievement 

Number of title deeds transferred to new home owners 4913 828 

Number of sites serviced 7396 5472 

Number of military veteran units constructed 155 28 

Number of housing units constructed around mining towns 
· Madibeng 
· Matlosana 
· Rustenburg 
· Moses Kotane 
· Kgetlengrivier 

3136 2461 

 

Programmes Pages in the annual 

performance report 

Programme 3 - Housing development x – x 

 

44-49
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Other matter

25. I draw attention to the matter below.

Achievement of planned targets
26. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 26 to 49 for information on the 

achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the 
underachievement of a significant number of targets. This information should be 
considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information in paragraphs 22 to 24 of this report.

Report on audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope
27. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the department with specific 
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance. 

28. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as 
follows:

Annual financial statements
29. Financial statements were not submitted for auditing within two months after the end of 

financial year, as required by section 40(1)(c)(i) of the PFMA.
30. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with 

the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as 
required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements identified by the 
auditors in the submitted financial statements were not adequately corrected and the 
supporting records could not be provided subsequently, which resulted in the financial 
statements receiving a disclaimer of opinion.

Expenditure management
31. The accounting officer did not take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular 

expenditure as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 
9.1.1. As reported in the basis for disclaimer opinion the full extent of the irregular 
expenditure could not be quantified. The majority of the disclosed irregular expenditure 
was caused by the allocation of additional work which was not in the tender document 
and the overspending on the contracts.

Indicator description per 
APP) 

Indicator description per 
Annual performance report 

(APR) 

Planned 
target per 

APP 

Planned 
target 

per APR 

Reported 
achievement 

Number of title deeds 
transferred to owners (Pre 
and Post) 

Number of title deeds 
transferred to owners (Pre 
and Post) 

16636 14341 2288 

Number of housing units 
constructed excl. Military 
Veterans and mining towns 

Number of housing units 
constructed excluding Military 
Veterans 

6394 6394 3783 
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32. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that public money was 
spent / committed with the approval of the accounting officer or a properly delegated officer, 
as required by Treasury Regulation 8.2.1.
33. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that payments were made 

within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 8.2.3.

34. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the resources of the 
department were utilized economically, as required by section 38(1)(b) and 45(b) of the 
PFMA

35. Effective internal controls were not in place for approval and processing of payments, 
as required by Treasury Regulation 8.1.1.

Utilisation of conditional grants
36. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the Human 

Settlements Development Grant (HSDG) and Title Deeds Restoration Grant (TDRG) was 
spent for the purposes stipulated in the schedule concerned, as required by section 17(1) 
of the DoRA.

37. The performance of the programmes funded by the HSDG and TDRG was not 
evaluated, as required by section 12(5) of the DoRA.

38. A portion of the funds received from the HSDG to the value of R200 000 000 were 
transferred to City of Matlosana without a payment schedule being entered into, as 
required by section 17(2) of the DoRA.

39. A portion of the funds received from the HSDG to the value of R200 000 000 were 
transferred to City of Matlosana without approval of the transfer in the budget of the 
department and was not approved by the National Treasury, as required by section 
17(2)(a)(i) and (ii)(bb) of the DoRA.

Strategic planning and performance management
40. The annual performance plan did not include the expected outcomes and programme 

outputs of the programmes, as required by Treasury Regulation 5.2.3(d).

Procurement and contract management
41. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were 

procured without obtaining the required price quotations, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 16A6.1.

42. Some of the bid documentation for procurement of commodities designated for local 
content and production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold for local production and 
content as required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation 8(2).

43. Some of the commodities designated for local content and production, were procured 
from suppliers who did not submit a declaration on local production and content as 
required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulations.

44. Some of the commodities designated for local content and production, were procured 
from suppliers who did not meet the prescribed minimum threshold for local production 
and content, as required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation 8(5).

45. Some of the contracts were extended or modified without the approval of a properly 
delegated official as required by section 44 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 8.1 
and 8.2.

46. In some instances, persons in service of the department whose close family members, 
partners or associates had a private or business interest in contracts awarded by the 
department failed to disclose such interest, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A8.4.

47. In some instances, persons in service of the department whose close family members/ 
partners/ associates had a private or business interest in contracts awarded by the 
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department participated in the process relating to that contract in contravention of Treasury 
Regulation 16A8.4.

Internal control deficiencies
48. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 

performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below 
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on 
compliance with legislation included in this report.
· The reconfiguration process extended over an unreasonably long period of time which 

had a significant impact on leadership and management's ability to establish and 
implement monitoring and review processes for the year under review. As a result, 
effective oversight processes over financial and performance reporting was not 
established by leadership and those charged with governance.

· The inadequate staffing of the newly formed department and accessibility of financial 
and non-financial information of the department, which resided with the transferring 
department, had an impact on the effectiveness of the audit. The majority of the 
activities and transactions were processed by the transferring department and a 
proper formal hand-over was not done between the transferring and the receiving 
departments. Furthermore, the material misstatements identified in the financial 
statements and the annual performance report could have been avoided had the 
configuration process been finalised earlier and proper care been taken.

Other reports
49. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, 

or could have, an impact on the matters reported in the department's financial statements, 
reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other 
related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements 
or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

Investigation
50. National Treasury and other law enforcement agencies were conducting investigations 

at the department into the erroneous transfer of R134 million to a municipality for housing 
projects and the transfer of R56 million to a service provider relating to the construction of 
residential units in unit 3, Mmabatho. These investigations were still in progress at the 
date of this report.

        Potchefstroom

        31 October 2020

Auditing to build public confidance
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DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS   
VOTE 14 

 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2020  

 
 
Summary of significant accounting policies  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been 
applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that 
the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.   
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used 
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best 
information available at the time of preparation.

 
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness 

of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance 

Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations 

issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 
 

1
 

Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.  
 

2
 

Going concern 
 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
 

3
 

Presentation currency
 

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the
 
South African Rand (R) which is also the 

functional currency of the department. 
 

4
 

Rounding 
 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand 

(R’000).
 

5
 

Foreign currency translation
 Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands 

using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

 
6

 

Comparative information

 
6.1

 

Prior period comparative information 

 Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial 

statements.  Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been 

reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the 

format of the current year’s financial statements.

 6.2

 

Current year comparison with budget 

 A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and 

economic classification

 

is included in the appropriation statement.  
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DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS   
VOTE 14 

 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

 

7 Revenue 

7.1 Appropriated funds 
Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the 

revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation). 
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the 

appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process 

are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become 

effective.
 

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting 

date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.  
 

7.2
 

Departmental revenue 
 

Departmental revenue is recognised
 
in the statement of financial performance when received and 

is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue
 
fund, unless stated otherwise.

 
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in 

the statement of financial position. 
 

7.3
 

Accrued departmental revenue 
 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to 

the financial statements when:
 

·
 

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction 
will flow to the department; and

 ·
 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
 

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
 Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable 

from collecting agents.
 Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

 
8

 

Expenditure

 
8.1

 

Compensation of employees

 
8.1.1

 

Salaries and wages

 Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 

payment.  

 8.1.2

 

Social contributions

 Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in 

the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  

 Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as 

transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

 8.2

 

Other expenditure

 Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital 

assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  The 

expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the 

capitalisation threshold.  
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8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised  

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at 

cost at the reporting date. 

8.4 Leases 

8.4.1 Operating leases 
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current 

expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

8.4.2
 

Finance leases 
 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure 

in the statement of financial performance
 

on the date of payment.
 

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not 

apportioned between the capital and interest portions.  
 

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the 

lower of:
 

·
 

cost, being the fair value of the asset; or
 

·
 

the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire 

ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.
 

9
 

Aid Assistance
 

9.1
 

Aid assistance received
 

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when 

received.  In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of 

receipt and is measured at fair value.
 Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance 

that are required to be refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the statement of 

financial position.
 

9.2

 
Aid assistance paid

 Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 

payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a 

receivable in the statement of financial position.

 
10

 

Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.  

 Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position

 

as a 

current liability.

 For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, 

deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

 11

 

Prepayments and advances

 Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 

department receives or disburses the cash.  

 Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

 <Indicate when prepayments are expensed and under what circumstances.>

 

9696
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12 Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued 

interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are 

made according to the department’s write-off policy.  

13 Investments 
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.  

14
 

Financial assets
 

14.1
 

Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
 

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
 
asset.

 
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts 

already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at 

cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.
 

14.2
 

Impairment of financial assets
 

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in 

the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic 

benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements.
 

15
 

Payables
 

Payables
 

recognised
 

in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.
 

16
 

Capital Assets
 

16.1
 

Immovable capital assets
 Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to 

the financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. 

Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are

 
recorded at fair value at the date of 

acquisition.

  

Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost

 

and are not 

currently subject to depreciation or impairment.

 Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset

 

when ready 

for use.

 Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the 

notes to financial statements.

 16.2

 

Movable capital assets

 Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  

Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as 

at the date of acquisition.  

 Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital 

assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets 

are measured at R1.  

 All assets acquired

 

prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 

recorded at R1.

 Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
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impairment. 

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset  
when ready for use. 

16.3 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Intangible 

assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of 

acquisition.   
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 

the department commences the development phase of the project.  
 

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets 

are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are 

measured at R1.  
 

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 

recorded at R1.
 

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 

impairment.
 

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of
 
the cost of the existing asset

 
when ready 

for use.
  

16.4
 

Project Costs: Work-in-progress
 

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised
 
in the statement of financial performance

 
at 

cost when paid. 
 

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and 

accumulated in work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. 
 
Once ready for use, 

the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register.  Subsequent payments to 

complete the project
 
are

 
added to the capital asset

 
in the asset register. 

 
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is

 
transferred 

to the custodian subsequent to completion.
 

17
 

Provisions and Contingents
 

17.1

 
Provisions

 Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or 

constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and

 

it is 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The 

provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at 

the reporting date.

 17.2

 

Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible 

obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will

 

be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the 

department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable 

that an outflow of resources will

 

be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 

cannot be measured reliably.

 17.3

 

Contingent assets
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Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset 

arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department.  

17.4 Capital commitments  
Capital commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements.  

18 Unauthorised expenditure  
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as 

the expenditure is either:
 

·
 

approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are 

received; or
 

·
 

approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against 

the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or
 

·
 

transferred to receivables for recovery.
 

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.
 

19
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 

confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful 

expenditure incurred.  
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is 

resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be 

recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
 

20
 

Irregular expenditure
 

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The 

amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is 

impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided
 

in the note.  
 Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant 

authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.   

 Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable 

and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

 
21

 

Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

 Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have

 

been applied 

retrospectively in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable 

to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy.  In such 

instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets 

for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

 Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS 

requirements.

 

 

 

 Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in 
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accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the 

period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department shall 

restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which 

retrospective restatement is practicable. 

22 Events after the reporting date 
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in 

the financial statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting 

events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.   

23
 

Principal-Agent
 

arrangements
 

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here].  In terms of 

the arrangement the department is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details 

here].  All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded 

in terms of the relevant policies listed herein.  Additional disclosures have been provided in the 

notes to the financial statements where appropriate.  
 

24
 

Departures from the MCS requirements
 

Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary 

and secondary information; that the department complied with the Standard in full. 
 

25
 

Capitalisation reserve
 

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior 

reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in 

the current reporting period.  Amounts are recognised
 

in the capitalisation reserves when 

identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when 

the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.
 

26
 

Recoverable revenue
 

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial 

year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either 

transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the 

statement
 

of financial performance when written-off.
 

27
 

Related party transactions
 A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting 

entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are 

recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length. 

 Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

 

department. The number of individuals and 

their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

 28

 

Inventories (Effective from date determined in a Treasury Instruction)

 At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised

 

at cost in the statement of financial 

performance.

 Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are

 measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

 Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where 

intended for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a 

nominal charge, the lower of cost and

 

current

 

replacement value.
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29 Public-Private Partnerships 

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the 

partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. 

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the 

date of commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees 

received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in the notes 
to the financial statements. 

30 Employee benefits 

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised 

and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note. 

31 Transfers of functions 

Transfers of functions are accounted for by the acquirer by recognising or recording assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer. 

Transfers of functions are accounted for by the transferor by derecognising or removing assets 
and liabilities at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer. 

32 Mergers 

Mergers are accounted for by the combined department by recognising or recording assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger. 

Mergers are accounted for by the combining departments by derecognising or removing assets 

and liabilities at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger. 

 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS
VOTE 14

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 March 2020
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2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Programme

1 ADMINISTRATION          110 370               -               -            110 370           71 479      38 891 64.8%                      -                      - 

2 HOUSING NEEDS, PLANNING AND RESEARCH            45 623               -               -             45 623           38 964        6 659 85.4%                      -                      - 

3 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT        2 071 406               -               -         2 071 406      1 777 965     293 441 85.8%                      -                      - 

Programme sub total        2 227 399               -               -         2 227 399      1 888 408     338 991 84.8%                      -                      - 

Statutory Appropriation                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

                    -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

                    -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

TOTAL        2 227 399               -               -         2 227 399      1 888 408     338 991 84.8%                      -                      - 

Add:

709                 -                     

-                     -                     

-                     -                     

2 228 108          -                     

 Add: -                   -                     

1 888 408       -                     

 Aid assistance  

 Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 

 Actual amounts per Statement of Financial Performance

 Expenditure 

 Actual amounts per Statement of Financial Performance (Total 

 Revenue) 

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Appropriation Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2020

Appropriation per programme

Voted funds and Direct charges

Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance

 Departmental receipts 

 NRF Receipts 

 Aid assistance  
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2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments 192 172         -              -              192 172           132 251        59 921     68.8% -                     -                     

Compensation of employees 151 655         -              -              151 655           106 091        45 564     70.0% -                     -                     

Salaries and wages 125 837         (750)         -              125 087           91 287          33 800     73.0% -                     -                     

Social contributions 25 818           750          -              26 568            14 804          11 764     55.7% -                     -                     

Goods and services 40 517           -              -              40 517            26 160          14 357     64.6% -                     -                     

Administrative fees 796                75            -              871                 746              125          85.6% -                     -                     

Advertising 600                -              -              600                 89                511          14.8% -                     -                     

Minor assets 144                -              -              144                 -                   144          -                    -                     -                     

Audit costs: External 4 634             -              -              4 634              276              4 358       6.0% -                     -                     

Bursaries: Employees 326                -              -              326                 91                235          27.9% -                     -                     

Catering: Departmental activities 660                104          -              764                 407              357          53.3% -                     -                     

Communication (G&S) 857                (99)           -              758                 255              503          33.6% -                     -                     

Computer services 388                (200)         -              188                 -                   188          -                    -                     -                     

Consultants: Business and advisory services 5 733             650          -              6 383              6 332            51            99.2% -                     -                     

Legal services 49                 1 800       -              1 849              240              1 609       13.0% -                     -                     

Contractors 1 438             (207)         -              1 231              -                   1 231       -                    -                     -                     

Agency and support / outsourced services -                    300          -              300                 287              13            95.7% -                     -                     

Fleet services (including government motor transport) 2 144             -              -              2 144              251              1 893       11.7% -                     -                     

Housing -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Consumable supplies 552                (49)           -              503                 98                405          19.5% -                     -                     

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies 1 023             1 029       -              2 052              813              1 239       39.6% -                     -                     

Operating leases 1 872             -              -              1 872              2 892            (1 020)      154.5% -                     -                     

Property payments 595                (500)         -              95                   -                   95            -                    -                     -                     

Transport provided: Departmental activity 25                 -              -              25                   -                   25            -                    -                     -                     

Travel and subsistence 17 239           (3 078)      -              14 161            13 150          1 011       92.9% -                     -                     

Training and development 827                -              -              827                 -                   827          -                    -                     -                     

Operating payments 354                5             -              359                 70                289          19.5% -                     -                     

Venues and facilities 261                70            -              331                 67                264          20.2% -                     -                     

Rental and hiring -                    100          -              100                 96                4             96.0% -                     -                     

Interest and rent on land -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)) -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Rent on land -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Transfers and subsidies 2 033 529       -              -              2 033 529        1 755 941     277 588    86.3% -                     -                     

Provinces and municipalities -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Provinces -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Provincial Revenue Funds -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Provincial agencies and funds -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Municipalities -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Municipal bank accounts -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Municipal agencies and funds -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Departmental agencies and accounts -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Social security funds -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Departmental agencies -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Higher education institutions -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Foreign governments and international organisations -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Public corporations and private enterprises 36 960           -              -              36 960            36 960          -              100.0% -                     -                     

Public corporations 36 960           -              -              36 960            36 960          -              100.0% -                     -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Other transfers to public corporations 36 960           -              -              36 960            36 960          -              100.0% -                     -                     

Private enterprises -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Other transfers to private enterprises -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Non-profit institutions -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Households 1 996 569       -              -              1 996 569        1 718 981     277 588    86.1% -                     -                     

Social benefits 350                -              -              350                 216              134          61.7% -                     -                     

Other transfers to households 1 996 219       -              -              1 996 219        1 718 765     277 454    86.1% -                     -                     

Payments for capital assets 1 698             -              -              1 698              216              1 482       12.7% -                     -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Buildings -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Other fixed structures -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Machinery and equipment 1 698             -              -              1 698              216              1 482       12.7% -                     -                     

Transport equipment -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Other machinery and equipment 1 698             -              -              1 698              216              1 482       12.7% -                     -                     

Heritage assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Specialised military assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Biological assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Land and sub-soil assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Software and other intangible assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

Payment for financial assets -                    -              -              -                     -                   -              -                    -                     -                     

2 227 399       -              -              2 227 399        1 888 408     338 991    84.8% -                     -                     

Appropriation per economic classification
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Programme 1: ADMINISTRATION 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

1. OFFICE OF THE HOD              5 739               -               -               5 739               148        5 591 2.6%                      -                      - 

2. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT            26 386               -               -             26 386             4 065      22 321 15.4%                      -                      - 

3. COMMUNICATION SERVICES            78 245               -               -             78 245           67 266      10 979 86.0%                      -                      - 

4. STRATEGIC PLANNING , MONITORING AND EVALUATION                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

5. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

110 370         -              -              110 370           71 479          38 891     64.8% -                     -                     

Economic classification

Current payments            71 362               -               -             71 362           34 303      37 059 48.1%                      -                      - 

Compensation of employees            51 811               -               -             51 811           29 060      22 751 56.1%                      -                      - 

Salaries and wages            45 444          (450)               -             44 994           24 559      20 435 54.6%                      -                      - 

Social contributions              6 367           450               -               6 817             4 501        2 316 66.0%                      -                      - 

Goods and services            19 551               -               -             19 551             5 243      14 308 26.8%                      -                      - 

Administrative fees                 173           100               -                  273               168           105 61.5%                      -                      - 

Advertising                 600               -               -                  600                 91           509 15.2%                      -                      - 

Minor assets                 144               -               -                  144                    -           144                     -                      -                      - 

Audit costs: External              4 634               -               -               4 634               276        4 358 6.0%                      -                      - 

Bursaries: Employees                 326               -               -                  326                 91           235 27.9%                      -                      - 

Catering: Departmental activities                 401             (1)               -                  400                 51           349 12.8%                      -                      - 

Communication (G&S)                 857            (99)               -                  758               255           503 33.6%                      -                      - 

Computer services                 388          (200)               -                  188                    -           188                     -                      -                      - 

Consultants: Business and advisory services                  46               -               -                    46                   7             39 15.2%                      -                      - 

Legal services                  49               -               -                    49                    -             49                     -                      -                      - 

Contractors              1 438          (207)               -               1 231                    -        1 231                     -                      -                      - 

Fleet services (including government motor transport)              2 144               -               -               2 144               251        1 893 11.7%                      -                      - 

Consumable supplies                 513            (49)               -                  464                 52           412 11.2%                      -                      - 

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies                 999           749               -               1 748               575        1 173 32.9%                      -                      - 

Operating leases              1 872               -               -               1 872             2 892       (1 020) 154.5%                      -                      - 

Property payments                 595          (500)               -                    95                    -             95                     -                      -                      - 

Transport provided: Departmental activity                  25               -               -                    25                    -             25                     -                      -                      - 

Travel and subsistence              3 029           207               -               3 236               534        2 702 16.5%                      -                      - 

Training and development                 827               -               -                  827                    -           827                     -                      -                      - 

Operating payments                 230               -               -                  230                    -           230                     -                      -                      - 

Venues and facilities                 261               -               -                  261                    -           261                     -                      -                      - 

Interest and rent on land                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP))                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Rent on land                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Transfers and subsidies            37 310               -               -             37 310           36 960           350 99.1%                      -                      - 

Provinces and municipalities                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provinces                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provincial Revenue Funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provincial agencies and funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipalities                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipal bank accounts                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipal agencies and funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Departmental agencies and accounts                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Social security funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Departmental agencies                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Higher education institutions                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Foreign governments and international organisations                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Public corporations and private enterprises            36 960               -               -             36 960           36 960               - 100.0%                      -                      - 

Public corporations            36 960               -               -             36 960           36 960               - 100.0%                      -                      - 

Subsidies on products and production (pc)                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to public corporations            36 960               -               -             36 960           36 960               - 100.0%                      -                      - 

Private enterprises                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Subsidies on products and production (pe)                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to private enterprises                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Non-profit institutions                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Households                 350               -               -                  350                    -           350                     -                      -                      - 

Social benefits                 350               -               -                  350                    -           350                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to households                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Payments for capital assets              1 698               -               -               1 698               216        1 482 12.7%                      -                      - 

Buildings and other fixed structures                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Buildings                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other fixed structures                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Machinery and equipment              1 698               -               -               1 698               216        1 482 12.7%                      -                      - 

Transport equipment                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other machinery and equipment              1 698               -               -               1 698               216        1 482 12.7%                      -                      - 

Heritage assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Specialised military assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Biological assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Land and sub-soil assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Software and other intangible assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Payment for financial assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

110 370         -              -              110 370           71 479          38 891     64.8% -                     -                     

Sub programme
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Subprogramme: 1.1: OFFICE OF THE HOD 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments 5 555              -              -              5 555             148              5 407       2.7% -                      -                     

Compensation of employees 4 429              -              -              4 429             -                  4 429       -                   -                      -                     

Salaries and wages 4 073              4 073             -                  4 073       -                   

Social contributions 356                 356               -                  356          -                   

Goods and services 1 126              -              -              1 126             148              978          13.1% -                      -                     

Administrative fees 20                   20                 -                  20            -                   

Advertising 114                 114               91                23            79.8%

Minor assets 6                    6                   6             -                   

Catering: Departmental activities 53                   53                 -                  53            -                   

Communication (G&S) 47                   47                 47            -                   

Consumable supplies 118                 (49)           69                 2                  67            2.9%

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies 69                   49            118               55                63            46.6%

Travel and subsistence 496                 496               496          -                   

Venues and facilities 203                 203               203          -                   

Rental and hiring -                    -              -                   

Interest and rent on land -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP) -                    -              -                   

Rent on land -                    -              -                   

Transfers and subsidies -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Provinces and municipalities -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Provinces -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Provincial Revenue Funds -                    -              -                   

Provincial agencies and funds -                    -              -                   

Municipalities -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Municipal bank accounts -                    -              -                   

Municipal agencies and funds -                    -              -                   

Departmental agencies and accounts -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Social security funds -                    -              -                   

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                    -              -                   

Higher education institutions -                    -              -                   

Foreign governments and international organisations -                    -              -                   

Public corporations and private enterprises -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Public corporations -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                    -              -                   

Other transfers to public corporations -                     -                    -              -                   

Private enterprises -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                    -              -                   

Other transfers to private enterprises -                    -              -                   

Non-profit institutions -                    -              -                   

Households -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Social benefits -                     -                    -                  -              -                   

Other transfers to households -                    -              -                   

Payments for capital assets 184                 -              -              184               -                  184          -                   -                      -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                     -              -              -                    -                  -              -                   -                      -                     

Buildings -                    -              -                   

Other fixed structures -                    -              -                   

Machinery and equipment 184                 -              -              184               -                  184          -                   -                      -                     

Transport equipment -                    -              -                   

Other machinery and equipment 184                 184               184          -                   

Heritage assets -                    -              -                   

Specialised military assets -                    -              -                   

Biological assets -                    -              -                   

Land and sub-soil assets -                    -              -                   

Software and other intangible assets -                    -              -                   

Payment for financial assets -                    -              -                   

 Total 5 739              -              -              5 739             148              5 591       2.6% -                      -                     
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Subprogramme: 1.2: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 
Expenditure as 

% of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments 26 252           -              -              26 252            4 065               22 187     15.5% -                     -                     

Compensation of employees 15 221           -              -              15 221            -                      15 221     -                         -                     -                     

Salaries and wages 13 309           -              13 309            13 309     -                         

Social contributions 1 912             -              1 912              1 912       -                         

Goods and services 11 031           -              -              11 031            4 065               6 966       36.9% -                     -                     

Administrative fees 102                100          202                 168                 34            83.2%

Minor assets 119                -              119                 119          -                         

Audit costs: External 4 634             -              4 634              276                 4 358       6.0%

Catering: Departmental activities 50                  -              50                   -                      50            -                         

Communication (G&S) 335                (100)         235                 -                      235          -                         

Computer services 58                  -              58                   -                      58            -                         

Fleet services (including government motor transport) 2 144             -              2 144              251                 1 893       11.7%

Consumable supplies 203                -              203                 203          -                         

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies 340                500          840                 478                 362          56.9%

Operating leases 1 872             -              1 872              2 892               (1 020)      154.5%

Property payments 595                (500)         95                   95            -                         

Travel and subsistence 579                -              579                 579          -                         

Interest and rent on land -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)) -                     -              -                         

Rent on land -                     -              -                         

Transfers and subsidies -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Provinces and municipalities -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Provinces -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Provincial Revenue Funds -                     -              -                         

Provincial agencies and funds -                     -              -                         

Municipalities -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Municipal bank accounts -                     -              -                         

Municipal agencies and funds -                     -              -                         

Departmental agencies and accounts -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Social security funds -                     -              -                         

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                     -              -                         

Higher education institutions -                     -              -                         

Foreign governments and international organisations -                     -              -                         

Public corporations and private enterprises -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Public corporations -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                     -              -                         

Other transfers to public corporations -                     -              -                         

Private enterprises -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                     -              -                         

Other transfers to private enterprises -                     -              -                         

Non-profit institutions -                     -              -                         

Households -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Social benefits -                     -              -                         

Other transfers to households -                     -              -                         

Payments for capital assets 134                -              -              134                 -                      134          -                         -                     -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                    -              -              -                     -                      -              -                         -                     -                     

Buildings -                     -              -                         

Other fixed structures -                     -              -                         

Machinery and equipment 134                -              -              134                 -                      134          -                         -                     -                     

Transport equipment -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Other machinery and equipment 134                -              -              134                 134          -                         

Heritage assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Specialised military assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Biological assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Land and sub-soil assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Software and other intangible assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

Payment for financial assets -                    -              -              -                     -              -                         

 Total 26 386           -              -              26 386            4 065               22 321     15.4% -                     -                     
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Subprogramme: 1.3: COMMUNICATION SERVICES 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 

Virement 

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Economic classification 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments 39 555            -                -            39 555             30 090              9 465          76.1% -                      -                      

Compensation of employees 32 161            -                -            32 161             29 060              3 101          90.4% -                      -                      

Salaries and wages 28 062            (450)           -            27 612             24 559              3 053          88.9%

Social contributions 4 099              450            -            4 549              4 501                48              98.9%

Goods and services 7 394              -                -            7 394              1 030                6 364          13.9% -                      -                      

Administrative fees 51                  -                -            51                   -                       51              -                   

Advertising 486                -                -            486                 -                       486             -                   

Minor assets 19                  -                -            19                   -                       19              -                   

Bursaries: Employees 326                -                -            326                 91                     235             27.9%

Catering: Departmental activities 298                (1)              -            297                 51                     246             17.2%

Communication (G&S) 475                1               -            476                 255                   221             53.6%

Computer services 330                (200)           -            130                 -                       130             -                   

Consultants: Business and advisory services 46                  -                -            46                   7                      39              15.2%

Legal services 49                  -                -            49                   -                       49              -                   

Contractors 1 438              (207)           -            1 231              -                       1 231          -                   

Consumable supplies 192                -                -            192                 50                     142             26.0%

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies 590                200            -            790                 42                     748             5.3%

Transport provided: Departmental activity 25                  -                -            25                   -                       25              -                   

Travel and subsistence 1 954              207            -            2 161              534                   1 627          24.7%

Training and development 827                -                -            827                 -                       827             -                   

Operating payments 230                -                -            230                 -                       230             -                   

Venues and facilities 58                  -                -            58                   -                       58              -                   

Interest and rent on land -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP) -                     -                 -                   

Rent on land -                     -                 -                   

Transfers and subsidies 37 310            -                -            37 310             36 960              350             99.1% -                      -                      

Provinces and municipalities -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Provinces -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Provincial Revenue Funds -                     -                 -                   

Provincial agencies and funds -                     -                 -                   

Municipalities -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Municipal bank accounts -                     -                 -                   

Municipal agencies and funds -                     -                 -                   

Departmental agencies and accounts -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Social security funds -                     -                 -                   

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                     -                 -                   

Higher education institutions -                     -                 -                   

Foreign governments and international organisations -                     -                 -                   

Public corporations and private enterprises 36 960            -                -            36 960             36 960              -                 100.0% -                      -                      

Public corporations 36 960            -                -            36 960             36 960              -                 100.0% -                      -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Other transfers to public corporations 36 960            -                -            36 960             36 960              -                 100.0%

Private enterprises -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                     -                 -                   

Other transfers to private enterprises -                     -                 -                   

Non-profit institutions -                     -                 -                   

Households 350                -                -            350                 -                       350             -                   -                      -                      

Social benefits 350                350                 -                       350             -                   

Other transfers to households -                     -                 -                   

Payments for capital assets 1 380              -                -            1 380              216                   1 164          15.7% -                      -                      

Buildings and other fixed structures -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Buildings -                     -                 -                   

Other fixed structures -                     -                 -                   

Machinery and equipment 1 380              -                -            1 380              216                   1 164          15.7% -                      -                      

Transport equipment -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Other machinery and equipment 1 380              -                -            1 380              216                   1 164          15.7%

Heritage assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Specialised military assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Biological assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Land and sub-soil assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Software and other intangible assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

Payment for financial assets -                     -                -            -                     -                 -                   

 Total 78 245            -                -            78 245             67 266              10 979        86.0% -                      -                      
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Programme 2: HOUSING NEEDS, PLANNING AND RESEARCH 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 
Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

1. HOUSING NEEDS, PLANNING AND TECHNICAL SERVICES            45 623               -               -             45 623           38 964        6 659 85.4%                      -                      - 

45 623           -              -              45 623            38 964          6 659       85.4% -                     -                     

Economic classification

Current payments            45 623               -               -             45 623           38 964        6 659 85.4%                      -                      - 

Compensation of employees            34 037               -               -             34 037           27 590        6 447 81.1%                      -                      - 

Salaries and wages            30 952          (300)               -             30 652           24 227        6 425 79.0%                      -                      - 

Social contributions              3 085           300               -               3 385             3 363             22 99.4%                      -                      - 

Goods and services            11 586               -               -             11 586           11 374           212 98.2%                      -                      - 

Administrative fees                 140             15               -                  155               154              1 99.4%                      -                      - 

Advertising                     -               -               -                      -                  (2)              2                     -                      -                      - 

Catering: Departmental activities                 259             80               -                  339               335              4 98.8%                      -                      - 

Consultants: Business and advisory services              5 687           650               -               6 337             6 325             12 99.8%                      -                      - 

Agency and support / outsourced services                     -           300               -                  300               287             13 95.7%                      -                      - 

Consumable supplies                     -               -               -                      -                 32            (32)                     -                      -                      - 

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies                  24             10               -                    34                    -             34                     -                      -                      - 

Travel and subsistence              5 402       (1 215)               -               4 187             4 073           114 97.3%                      -                      - 

Operating payments                  74               -               -                    74                 17             57 23.0%                      -                      - 

Venues and facilities                     -             60               -                    60                 57              3 95.0%                      -                      - 

Rental and hiring                     -           100               -                  100                 96              4 96.0%                      -                      - 

Interest and rent on land                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP))                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Rent on land                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Transfers and subsidies                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provinces and municipalities                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provinces                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provincial Revenue Funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Provincial agencies and funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipalities                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipal bank accounts                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Municipal agencies and funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Departmental agencies and accounts                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Social security funds                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Departmental agencies                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Higher education institutions                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Foreign governments and international organisations                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Public corporations and private enterprises                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Public corporations                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Subsidies on products and production (pc)                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to public corporations                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Private enterprises                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Subsidies on products and production (pe)                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to private enterprises                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Non-profit institutions                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Households                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Social benefits                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other transfers to households                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Payments for capital assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Buildings and other fixed structures                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Buildings                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other fixed structures                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Machinery and equipment                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Transport equipment                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Other machinery and equipment                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Heritage assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Specialised military assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Biological assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Land and sub-soil assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Software and other intangible assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

Payment for financial assets                     -               -               -                      -                    -               -                     -                      -                      - 

45 623           -              -              45 623            38 964          6 659       85.4% -                     -                     

Sub programme
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Programme 3: HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 

Virement 

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 

Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

1 ADMINISTRATION - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT                  75 187             -             -             75 187           59 200     15 987 78.7%                     -                     - 

2 PROVINCIAL INTERVENTION                230 242             -             -           230 242         480 036  (249 794) 208.5%                     -                     - 

3 INCREMENTAL INTERVENTION             1 237 474             -             -        1 237 474         871 408   366 066 70.4%                     -                     - 

4 RURAL INTERVENTION                528 503             -             -           528 503         367 321   161 182 69.5%                     -                     - 

2 071 406            -            -            2 071 406       1 777 965     293 441  85.8% -                    -                    

Economic classification

Current payments                  75 187             -             -             75 187           58 984     16 203 78.4%                     -                     - 

Compensation of employees                  65 807             -             -             65 807           49 441     16 366 75.1%                     -                     - 

Salaries and wages                  49 441             -             -             49 441           42 501      6 940 86.0%                     -                     - 

Social contributions                  16 366             -             -             16 366             6 940      9 426 42.4%                     -                     - 

Goods and services                   9 380             -             -              9 380             9 543        (163) 101.7%                     -                     - 

Administrative fees                      483          (40)             -                 443               424           19 95.7%                     -                     - 

Catering: Departmental activities                          -           25             -                   25                 21             4 84.0%                     -                     - 

Legal services                          -      1 800             -              1 800               240      1 560 13.3%                     -                     - 

Consumable supplies                        39             -             -                   39                 14           25 35.9%                     -                     - 

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies                          -         270             -                 270               238           32 88.1%                     -                     - 

Transport provided: Departmental activity                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Travel and subsistence                   8 808     (2 070)             -              6 738             8 543     (1 805) 126.8%                     -                     - 

Operating payments                        50             5             -                   55                 53             2 96.4%                     -                     - 

Venues and facilities                          -           10             -                   10                 10             - 100.0%                     -                     - 

Interest and rent on land                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Rent on land                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Transfers and subsidies             1 996 219             -             -        1 996 219      1 718 981   277 238 86.1%                     -                     - 

Provinces and municipalities                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Provinces                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Provincial Revenue Funds                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Provincial agencies and funds                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Municipalities                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Municipal bank accounts                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Municipal agencies and funds                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Departmental agencies and accounts                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Social security funds                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Departmental agencies                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Higher education institutions                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Foreign governments and international organisations                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Public corporations and private enterprises                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Public corporations                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Subsidies on products and production (pc)                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Other transfers to public corporations                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Private enterprises                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Subsidies on products and production (pe)                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Other transfers to private enterprises                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Non-profit institutions                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Households             1 996 219             -             -        1 996 219      1 718 981   277 238 86.1%                     -                     - 

Social benefits                          -             -             -                     -               216        (216)                      -                     -                     - 

Other transfers to households             1 996 219             -             -        1 996 219      1 718 765   277 454 86.1%                     -                     - 

Payments for capital assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Buildings and other fixed structures                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Buildings                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Other fixed structures                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Machinery and equipment                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Transport equipment                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Other machinery and equipment                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Heritage assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Specialised military assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Biological assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Land and sub-soil assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Software and other intangible assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

Payment for financial assets                          -             -             -                     -                    -             -                      -                     -                     - 

2 071 406            -            -            2 071 406       1 777 965     293 441  85.8% -                    -                    

Sub programme
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Subprogramme: 3.1: ADMINISTRATION - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropri

 Shifting 

of Funds 

 

Virement 

 Final 

Appropri

 Actual 

Expendit

 

Variance 

Expendit

ure as %  Final 

Appropri

 Actual 

Expendit Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments 75 187    -            -            75 187    58 984    16 203    78.4% -            -            

Compensation of employees 65 807    -            -            65 807    49 441    16 366    75.1% -            -            

Salaries and wages 49 441    -            -            49 441    42 501    6 940     86.0%

Social contributions 16 366    -            -            16 366    6 940     9 426     42.4%

Goods and services 9 380     -            -            9 380     9 543     (163)       101.7% -            -            

Administrative fees 483        (40)         -            443        424        19          95.7%

Catering: Departmental activities -            25          -            25          21          4            84.0%

Legal services -            1 800     -            1 800     240        1 560     13.3%

Consumable supplies 39          -            -            39          14          25          35.9%

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies -            270        -            270        238        32          88.1%

Travel and subsistence 8 808     (2 070)    -            6 738     8 543     (1 805)    126.8%

Operating payments 50          5            -            55          53          2            96.4%

Venues and facilities -            10          -            10          10          -            100.0%

Interest and rent on land -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)) -            -            -            

Rent on land -            -            -            

Transfers and subsidies -            -            -            -            216        (216)       -            -            -            

Provinces and municipalities -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Provinces -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Provincial Revenue Funds -            -            -            

Provincial agencies and funds -            -            -            

Municipalities -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Municipal bank accounts -            -            -            

Municipal agencies and funds -            -            -            

Departmental agencies and accounts -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Social security funds -            -            -            

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -            -            -            

Higher education institutions -            -            -            

Foreign governments and international organisations -            -            -            

Public corporations and private enterprises -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Public corporations -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -            -            -            

Other transfers to public corporations -            -            -            

Private enterprises -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -            -            -            

Other transfers to private enterprises -            -            -            

Non-profit institutions -            -            -            

Households -            -            -            -            216        (216)       -            -            -            

Social benefits -            -            -            -            216        (216)       -            

Other transfers to households -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Payments for capital assets -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Buildings and other fixed structures -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Buildings -            -            -            

Other fixed structures -            -            -            

Machinery and equipment -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Transport equipment -            -            -            

Other machinery and equipment -            -            -            

Heritage assets -            -            -            

Specialised military assets -            -            -            

Biological assets -            -            -            

Land and sub-soil assets -            -            -            

Software and other intangible assets -            -            -            

Payment for financial assets -            -            -            

 Total 75 187    -            -            75 187    59 200    15 987    78.7% -            -            
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Subprogramme: 3.2: PROVINCIAL INTERVENTION 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 

Variance 
Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000

Current payments -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Compensation of employees -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Salaries and wages -                      -            -                    

Social contributions -                      -            -                    

Goods and services -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Administrative fees -                      -            -                    

Advertising -                      -            -                    

Minor assets -                      -            -                    

Audit costs: External -                      -            -                    

Bursaries: Employees -                      -            -                    

Catering: Departmental activities -                      -            -                    

Communication (G&S) -                      -            -                    

Computer services -                      -            -                    

Consultants: Business and advisory services -                      -            -                    

Infrastructure and planning services -                      -            -                    

Laboratory services -                      -            -                    

Scientific and technological services -                      -            -                    

Legal services -                      -            -                    

Contractors -                      -            -                    

Agency and support / outsourced services -                      -            -                    

Entertainment -                      -            -                    

Fleet services (including government motor transport) -                      -            -                    

Housing -                      -            -                    

Consumable supplies -                      -            -                    

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies -                      -            -                    

Operating leases -                      -            -                    

Property payments -                      -            -                    

Transport provided: Departmental activity -                      -            -                    

Travel and subsistence -                      -            -                    

Training and development -                      -            -                    

Operating payments -                      -            -                    

Venues and facilities -                      -            -                    

Rental and hiring -                      -            -                    

Interest and rent on land -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)) -                      -            -                    

Rent on land -                      -            -                    

Transfers and subsidies 230 242              -                 -               230 242            480 036          (249 794) 208.5% -                      

Provinces and municipalities -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Provinces -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Provincial Revenue Funds -                      -            -                    

Provincial agencies and funds -                      -            -                    

Municipalities -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Municipal bank accounts -                      -            -                    

Municipal agencies and funds -                      -            -                    

Departmental agencies and accounts -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Social security funds -                      -            -                    

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                      -            -                    

Higher education institutions -                      -            -                    

Foreign governments and international organisations -                      -            -                    

Public corporations and private enterprises -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Public corporations -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                      -            -                    

Other transfers to public corporations -                      -            -                    

Private enterprises -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                      -            -                    

Other transfers to private enterprises -                      -            -                    

Non-profit institutions -                      -            -                    

Households 230 242              -                 -               230 242            480 036          (249 794) 208.5% -                      

Social benefits -                      -            -                    

Other transfers to households 230 242              230 242            480 036          (249 794) 208.5%

Payments for capital assets -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Buildings and other fixed structures -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Buildings -                      -            -                    

Other fixed structures -                      -            -                    

Machinery and equipment -                        -                 -               -                      -                    -            -                    -                      

Transport equipment -                      -            -                    

Other machinery and equipment -                      -            -                    

Heritage assets -                      -            -                    

Specialised military assets -                      -            -                    

Biological assets -                      -            -                    

Land and sub-soil assets -                      -            -                    

Software and other intangible assets -                      -            -                    

Payment for financial assets -                      -            -                    

 Total 230 242              -                 -               230 242            480 036          (249 794) 208.5% -                      
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Subprogramme: 3.3: INCREMENTAL INTERVENTION 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 

Virement 

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance 

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Compensation of employees -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Salaries and wages -                     -                 -                   

Social contributions -                     -                 -                   

Goods and services -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Administrative fees -                     -                 -                   

Advertising -                     -                 -                   

Minor assets -                     -                 -                   

Audit costs: External -                     -                 -                   

Bursaries: Employees -                     -                 -                   

Catering: Departmental activities -                     -                 -                   

Communication (G&S) -                     -                 -                   

Computer services -                     -                 -                   

Consultants: Business and advisory services -                     -                 -                   

Infrastructure and planning services -                     -                 -                   

Laboratory services -                     -                 -                   

Scientific and technological services -                     -                 -                   

Legal services -                     -                 -                   

Contractors -                     -                 -                   

Agency and support / outsourced services -                     -                 -                   

Entertainment -                     -                 -                   

Fleet services (including government motor transport) -                     -                 -                   

Housing -                     -                 -                   

Consumable supplies -                     -                 -                   

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies -                     -                 -                   

Operating leases -                     -                 -                   

Property payments -                     -                 -                   

Transport provided: Departmental activity -                     -                 -                   

Travel and subsistence -                     -                 -                   

Training and development -                     -                 -                   

Operating payments -                     -                 -                   

Venues and facilities -                     -                 -                   

Rental and hiring -                     -                 -                   

Interest and rent on land -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP)) -                     -                 -                   

Rent on land -                     -                 -                   

Transfers and subsidies 1 237 474       -                -            1 237 474        871 408             366 066      70.4% -                      -                      

Provinces and municipalities -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Provinces -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Provincial Revenue Funds -                     -                 -                   

Provincial agencies and funds -                     -                 -                   

Municipalities -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Municipal bank accounts -                     -                 -                   

Municipal agencies and funds -                     -                 -                   

Departmental agencies and accounts -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Social security funds -                     -                 -                   

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                     -                 -                   

Higher education institutions -                     -                 -                   

Foreign governments and international organisations -                     -                 -                   

Public corporations and private enterprises -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Public corporations -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                     -                 -                   

Other transfers to public corporations -                     -                 -                   

Private enterprises -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                     -                 -                   

Other transfers to private enterprises -                     -                 -                   

Non-profit institutions -                     -                 -                   

Households 1 237 474       -                -            1 237 474        871 408             366 066      70.4% -                      -                      

Social benefits -                     -                 -                   

Other transfers to households 1 237 474       1 237 474        871 408             366 066      70.4%

Payments for capital assets -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Buildings and other fixed structures -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Buildings -                     -                 -                   

Other fixed structures -                     -                 -                   

Machinery and equipment -                     -                -            -                     -                       -                 -                   -                      -                      

Transport equipment -                     -                 -                   

Other machinery and equipment -                     -                 -                   

Heritage assets -                     -                 -                   

Specialised military assets -                     -                 -                   

Biological assets -                     -                 -                   

Land and sub-soil assets -                     -                 -                   

Software and other intangible assets -                     -                 -                   

Payment for financial assets -                     -                 -                   

 Total 1 237 474       -                -            1 237 474        871 408             366 066      70.4% -                      -                      
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Subprogramme: 3.4: RURAL INTERVENTION 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

2019/20 2018/19

 Adjusted 

Appropriation 

 Shifting of 

Funds 

 Virement  Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Variance Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

 Final 

Appropriation 

 Actual 

Expenditure 

 Economic classification R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Compensation of employees -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Salaries and wages -                        -              -                    

Social contributions -                        -              -                    

Goods and services -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Administrative fees -                        -              -                    

Advertising -                        -              -                    

Minor assets -                        -              -                    

Audit costs: External -                        -              -                    

Bursaries: Employees -                        -              -                    

Catering: Departmental activities -                        -              -                    

Communication (G&S) -                        -              -                    

Computer services -                        -              -                    

Consultants: Business and advisory services -                        -              -                    

Infrastructure and planning services -                        -              -                    

Laboratory services -                        -              -                    

Scientific and technological services -                        -              -                    

Legal services -                        -              -                    

Contractors -                        -              -                    

Agency and support / outsourced services -                        -              -                    

Entertainment -                        -              -                    

Fleet services (including government motor transport) -                        -              -                    

Consumable: Stationery, printing and office supplies -                        -              -                    

Operating leases -                        -              -                    

Property payments -                        -              -                    

Transport provided: Departmental activity -                        -              -                    

Travel and subsistence -                        -              -                    

Training and development -                        -              -                    

Operating payments -                        -              -                    

Venues and facilities -                        -              -                    

Rental and hiring -                        -              -                    

Interest and rent on land -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Interest (Incl. interest on unitary payments (PPP) -                        -              -                    

Rent on land -                        -              -                    

Transfers and subsidies 528 503          -                   -                528 503              367 321            161 182    69.5% -                    -                   

Provinces and municipalities -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Provinces -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Provincial Revenue Funds -                        -              -                    

Provincial agencies and funds -                        -              -                    

Municipalities -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Municipal bank accounts -                        -              -                    

Municipal agencies and funds -                        -              -                    

Departmental agencies and accounts -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Social security funds -                        -              -                    

Departmental agencies (non-business entities) -                        -              -                    

Higher education institutions -                        -              -                    

Foreign governments and international organisations -                        -              -                    

Public corporations and private enterprises -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Public corporations -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Subsidies on products and production (pc) -                        -              -                    

Other transfers to public corporations -                        -              -                    

Private enterprises -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Subsidies on products and production (pe) -                        -              -                    

Other transfers to private enterprises -                        -              -                    

Non-profit institutions -                        -              -                    

Households 528 503          -                   -                528 503              367 321            161 182    69.5% -                    -                   

Social benefits -                        -              -                    

Other transfers to households 528 503          528 503              367 321            161 182    69.5%

Payments for capital assets -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Buildings and other fixed structures -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Buildings -                        -              -                    

Other fixed structures -                        -              -                    

Machinery and equipment -                    -                   -                -                        -                       -              -                    -                    -                   

Transport equipment -                        -              -                    

Other machinery and equipment -                        -              -                    

Heritage assets -                        -              -                    

Specialised military assets -                        -              -                    

Biological assets -                        -              -                    

Land and sub-soil assets -                        -              -                    

Software and other intangible assets -                        -              -                    

Payment for financial assets -                        -              -                    

 Total 528 503          -                   -                528 503              367 321            161 182    69.5% -                    -                   
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1

2

3

4 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after virement):

4.1 Per programme:

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

Variance Variance as a %

of Final Approp.

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

 Programme name: Administration 

110 370         68 587           41 783          38%

 Programme name: Housing Needs,Research 

45 623           38 964           6 659            15%

 Programme name: Housing Development 

2 071 406      1 780 857      290 549        14%

4.2 Per economic classification:

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

Variance

Variance as a %

of Final Approp.

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees          151 655         106 091                 45 564 30%

Goods and services            40 517           23 268 17249 43%

Interest and rent on land

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and accounts

Higher education institutions

Public corporations and private enterprises            36 960           36 960                        -   0%

Foreign governments and international organisations

Non-profit institutions

Households       1 996 569      1 721 873               274 696 14%

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures

Machinery and equipment              1 698               216 1482 87%

Heritage assets

Specialised military assets

Biological assets

Land and subsoil assets

Software and other intangible assets

Payments for financial assets

4.3 Per conditional grant

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

Variance Variance as a %

of Final Approp.

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Only show the conditional grants applicable to the department

Human Settlements Development Grant       1 934 947      1 703 601               231 346 12%

Title Deeds Restoration Grant            61 272           15 164                 46 108 75%

The main contributor of the under expenditure is goods & service and compesation of employees because on average the 

department spent 54%. Appointment of the Administration staff was on hold for the financial under review.

The under expenditure of  HSDG and TDRG is as results of poor performance by contractors in delivery of houses  and transfer 

of the title deeds to beneficiary.

Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note to Payments for financial assets to the Annual Financial Statements.

The main contributor of the under expenditure is goods & service and compesation of employees because on average the 

department spent 54%. Appointment of the Administration staff was on hold for the financial under review.

The main contributor of the under expenditure is compesation of employees  cause all vacant and funded posts could be filled.

The main contributor of the under expenditure is Human settlements Grants and Title deeds restoration programme

(In the case of surpluses on programmes, a detailed explanation must be given as to whether it is as a result of a saving or underspending.)

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Notes to the Appropriation Statement

Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.
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NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Statement of Financial Performance

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1             2 227 399 -                          

Statutory appropriation 2 -                          -                          

Departmental revenue 3 709                     -                          

NRF Receipts -                          -                          

Aid assistance -                          -                          

TOTAL REVENUE 2 228 108            -                          

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 5 106 091               -                          

Goods and services 6 26 160                 -                          

Interest and rent on land 7 -                          -                          

Aid assistance 4 -                          -                          

Total current expenditure 132 251               -                          

Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 9 1 755 941            -                          

Aid assistance 4 -                          -                          

Total transfers and subsidies 1 755 941            -                          

Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets 10 216                     -                          

Intangible assets 10 -                          -                          

Total expenditure for capital assets 216                     -                          

Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 11 -                          -                          

Payments for financial assets 8 -                          -                          

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1 888 408            -                          

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 339 700               -                          

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Voted Funds 338 991               -                          

Annual appropriation 2 227 399            -                          

Conditional grants 1 996 219            -                          

-                          

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 19 709                     -                          

Aid assistance 4 -                          -                          

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 339 700               -                          
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

ASSETS

Current Assets 56 645            -                    

Unauthorised expenditure 11 -                    -                    

Cash an cash equivalents 12 56 433            -                    

Other financial assets 13 -                    -                    

Prepayments and advances 14 -                    -                    

Receivables 15 212                -                    

Loans 17 -                    -                    

Aid assistance prepayments 4 -                    -                    

Aid assistance receivable 4 -                    -                    

Non-Current Assets -                    -                    

Investments 16 -                    -                    

Receivables 15 -                    -                    

Loans 17 -                    -                    

Other financial assets 13 -                    -                    

TOTAL ASSETS 56 645            -                    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 56 645            -                    

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 18 -79 348           -                    

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 

Revenue Fund 19 1 458             -                    

Bank overdraft 20 -                    -                    

Payables 21 134 535          -                    

Aid assistance repayable 4 -                    -                    

Aid assistance unutilised 4 -                    -                    

Non-Current Liabilities

Payables 22 -                    -                    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 56 645            -                    

NET ASSETS -                    -                    

Represented by:

Capitalisation reserve -                    -                    

Recoverable revenue -                    -                    

Retained funds -                    -                    

Revaluation reserves -                    -                    

TOTAL -                    -                    

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position
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NET ASSETS 2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Capitalisation Reserves

Opening balance -                      -                      

Transfers:

  Movement in Equity -                      

  Movement in Operational Funds -                      

  Other movements -                      

Closing balance -                      -                      

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance -                      -                      

Transfers -                      -                      

  Irrecoverable amounts written off 8.3 -                      

  Debts revised -                      

  Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) -                      

  Debts raised -                      

Closing balance -                      -                      

Retained funds

Opening balance -                      -                      

Transferred from voted funds to be surrendered 

(Parliament/Legislatures ONLY) -                      

Utilised during the year -                      

Other -                      

Closing balance -                      -                      

Revaluation Reserves

Opening balance -                      -                      

Revaluation adjustment (Housing departments) -                      

Transfers -                      

Other -                      

Closing balance -                      -                      

TOTAL -                      -                      

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 1 810 518        -                     

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 1 809 060        -                     

Statutory appropriated funds received 2 -                     -                     

Departmental revenue received 3 1 458              -                     

Interest received 3.3 -                     -                     

NRF Receipts -                     -                     

Aid assistance received 4 -                     -                     

Net (increase)/ decrease in working capital 134 323           -                     

Surrendered to Revenue Fund -                     -                     

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor -                     -                     

Current payments -132 251          -                     

Interest paid 7 -                     -                     

Payments for financial assets -                     -                     

Transfers and subsidies paid -1 755 941       -                     

Net cash flow available from operating activities 23 56 649             -                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Distribution/dividend received -                     -                     

Payments for capital assets 10 -216                -                     

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3.4 -                     -                     

(Increase)/ decrease in loans -                     -                     

(Increase)/ decrease in investments -                     -                     

(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets -                     -                     

(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables -                     -                     

Net cash flows from investing activities -216                -                     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/ (decrease) in net assets -                     -                     

Increase/ (decrease) in non-current payables -                     -                     

Net cash flows from financing activities -                     -                     

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 56 433             -                     

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period -                     -                     

Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash equivalents -                     -                     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 24 56 433             -                     

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Cash Flow Statement
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1

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Funds not Funds not 

Final Actual Funds requested/ Final Appropriation requested/

Appropriation Received not received Appropriation Received not received

Programmes R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

110 370          80 370            30 000          -                     -                    -                     

45 623            45 623            -                   -                     -                    -                     

2 071 406       1 683 067       388 339         -                     -                    -                     

Total 2 227 399       1 809 060       418 339         -                     -                    -                     

 

Provide an explanation for funds not requested/not received

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

1.2 Conditional grants**

 

Total grants received 47 1 996 219      -                     

Provincial grants included in Total Grants received -                   -                     

Conditional Grants includes HSDG amounting R1934 947 billion and Tittle Deeds Restoration Grant of R61 272 million.

2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

2 Statutory Appropriation

0 -                     

0 -                     

-                   -                     

   

Actual Statutory Appropriation received -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3 Departmental Revenue

Tax revenue -                   -                     

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 143               -                     

Fines, penalties and forfeits 3.2 -                   -                     

Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.3 -                   -                     

Sales of capital assets 3.4 -                   -                     

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3.5 1 315            -                     

Transfer received 3.6 -                   -                     

Total revenue collected 1 458            -                     

Less: Own revenue included in appropriation 19 749               -                     

Departmental revenue collected 709               -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 133               -                     

Sales by market establishment -                   -                     

Administrative fees -                   -                     

Other sales 133               -                     

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 10                 -                     

Total 143               -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits 3

Fines -                   -                     

Penalties -                   -                     

Forfeits -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

( **  It should be noted that the Conditional grants are included in the amounts per the Final Appropriation in Note 1.1)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2019/20 2018/19

ADMINISTRATIONHOUSING NEEDS, PLANNING AND 

RESEARCH

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land 3

Interest -                   -                     

Dividends -                   -                     

Rent on land -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.4 Sales of capital assets 3

Tangible assets -                   -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures 41 -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment 39 -                   -                     

Heritage assets 39 -                   -                     

Specialised military assets 39 -                   -                     

Land and subsoil assets 41 -                   -                     

Biological assets 39 -                   -                     

Intangible assets -                   -                     

Software 40 -                   -                     

Mastheads and publishing titles 40 -                   -                     

Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks 40 -                   -                     

Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models 40 -                   -                     

Services and operating rights 40 -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

    

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.5 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3

Loans and advances -                   -                     

Receivables -                   -                     

Forex gain -                   -                     

Stale cheques written back -                   -                     

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 1 315            -                     

Gains on GFECRA -                   -                     

Total 1 315            -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

3.6 Transfers received 3

Other governmental units -                   -                     

Higher education institutions -                   -                     

Foreign governments -                   -                     

International organisations -                   -                     

Public corporations and private enterprises -                   -                     

Households and non-profit institutions -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

3.7 Cash received not recognised (not included in the main note) - 2019/20

Name of entity

 Amount 

received 

 Amount paid 

to Revenue 

Fund  Balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000

                     - 

                     - 

Total                     -                    -                      - 

Cash received not recognised (not included in the main note) - 2018/19

Name of entity

 Amount 

received 

 Amount paid 

to Revenue 

Fund  Balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000

-                    -                                        - 

-                    -                                        - 

Total                     -                    -                      - 

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

4 Aid Assistance

Opening Balance -                   -                     

Prior period error

As restated -                   -                     

Transferred from statement of financial performance -                   -                     

Transferred to/from retained funds -                     

Paid during the year -                     

Closing Balance -                   -                     

   

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

4.1 Analysis of balance by source 4

Aid assistance from RDP -                     

Aid assistance from other sources -                     

CARA -                     

Closing Balance -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

4.2 Analysis of balance

Aid assistance receivable -                     

Aid assistance prepayments (Not expensed) -                     

Aid assistance unutilised -                     

Aid assistance repayable -                     

Closing balance 4 -                   -                     

Aid assistance not requested/not received -                     

4.2.1 Aid assistance prepayments (expensed) - 2019/20

Amount 

as at 1 

April 

2019

Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year

Add/Less: 

Other

Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments

Amount as at 

31 March 2020

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Goods and services                      - 

Interest and rent on land                      - 

Transfers and subsidies                      - 

Capital assets                      - 

                     - 

Closing balance             -                     -                     -                    -                      - 

Aid assistance prepayments (expensed) - 2018/19

Amount 

as at 1 

April 

2018

Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year

Add/Less: 

Other

Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments

Amount as at 

31 March 2019

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Goods and services -            -                    -                    -                                        - 

Interest and rent on land -            -                    -                    -                                        - 

Transfers and subsidies -            -                    -                    -                                        - 

Capital assets -            -                    -                    -                                        - 

-            -                    -                    -                                        - 

Closing balance             -                     -                     -                    -                      - 

4.3 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total prior period errors -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Other

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Other
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

4.4 Aid assistance expenditure per economic classification

Current -                   -                     

Capital 10 -                   -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                   -                     

Total aid assistance expenditure -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

5 Compensation of Employees

5.1 Salaries and wages

Basic salary 74 267          -                     

Performance award 1 815            -                     

Service Based 191               -                     

Compensative/circumstantial 1 123            -                     

Periodic payments -                   -                     

Other non-pensionable allowances 13 892          -                     

Total 91 288          -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

5.2 Social Contributions

Employer contributions

Pension 9 295            -                     

Medical 5 458            -                     

UIF -                   -                     

Bargaining council 22                 -                     

Official unions and associations -                   -                     

Insurance 28                 -                     

Total 14 803          -                     

Total compensation of employees 106 091         -                     

   

Average number of employees -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6 Goods and services

Administrative fees 746               -                     

Advertising 89                 -                     

Minor assets 6.1 -                   -                     

Bursaries (employees) 91                 -                     

Catering 407               -                     

Communication 255               -                     

Computer services 6.2 -                   -                     

Consultants: Business and advisory services 6 332            -                     

Infrastructure and planning services -                   -                     

Laboratory services -                   -                     

Scientific and technological services -                   -                     

Legal services 240               -                     

Contractors -                   -                     

Agency and support / outsourced services 287               -                     

Entertainment -                   -                     

Audit cost – external 6.3 276               -                     

Fleet services 251               -                     

Inventory 6.4 -                   -                     

Consumables 6.5 911               -                     

Housing -                   -                     

Operating leases 2 892            -                     

Property payments 6.6 -                   -                     

Rental and hiring 96                 -                     

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities -                   -                     

Travel and subsistence 6.7 13 150          -                     

Venues and facilities 67                 -                     

Training and development -                   -                     

Other operating expenditure 6.8 70                 -                     

Total 26 160          -                     

   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.1 Minor assets 6

Tangible assets -                   -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                   -                     

Biological assets -                   -                     

Heritage assets -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment -                   -                     

Transport assets -                   -                     

Specialised military assets -                   -                     

Intangible assets -                   -                     

Software -                   -                     

Mastheads and publishing titles -                   -                     

Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks -                   -                     

Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models -                   -                     

Services and operating rights -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.2 Computer services 6

SITA computer services -                   -                     

External computer service providers -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.3 Audit cost – external 6

Regularity audits 276               -                     

Performance audits -                   -                     

Investigations -                   -                     

Environmental audits -                   -                     

Computer audits -                   -                     

Total 276               -                     

  

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.4 Inventory 6

Clothing material and accessories -                   -                     

Farming supplies -                   -                     

Food and food supplies -                   -                     

Fuel, oil and gas -                   -                     

Learning and teaching support material -                   -                     

Materials and supplies -                   -                     

Medical supplies -                   -                     

Medicine -                   -                     

Medsas inventory interface -                   -                     

Other supplies 6.4.1 -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

  

6.4.1 Other Supplies

Ammunition and security supplies -                   -                     

Assets for distribution -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment -                   -                     

School furniture -                   -                     

Sports and recreation -                   -                     

Library material -                   -                     

Other assets for distribution -                   -                     

Other -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.5 Consumables 6

Consumable supplies 97                 -                     

Uniform and clothing 17                 -                     

Household supplies 70                 -                     

Building material and supplies -                   -                     

Communication accessories -                   -                     

IT consumables 10                 -                     

Other consumables -                   -                     

Stationery, printing and office supplies 814               -                     

Total 911               -                     

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.6 Property payments 6

Municipal services -                   -                     

Property management fees -                   -                     

Property maintenance and repairs -                   -                     

Other -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

  

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.7 Travel and subsistence 6

Local 13 106          -                     

Foreign 44                 -                     

Total 13 150          -                     

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

6.8 Other operating expenditure 6

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees -                   -                     

Resettlement costs -                   -                     

Other 70                 -                     

Total 70                 -                     

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

7 Interest and Rent on Land

Interest paid -                   -                     

Rent on land -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8 Payments for financial assets

Material losses through criminal conduct -                   -                     

Theft 8.4 -                   -                     

Other material losses 8.1 -                   -                     

Purchase of equity -                   -                     

Extension of loans for policy purposes -                   -                     

Other material losses written off 8.2 -                   -                     

Debts written off 8.3 -                   -                     

Forex losses 8.5 -                   -                     

Debt take overs -                   -                     

Losses on GFECRA -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8.1 Other material losses 8

Nature of other material losses

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8.2 Other material losses written off 8

Nature of losses

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8.3 Debts written off 8

Nature of debts written off

-                     

-                     

-                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Total debt written off -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8.4 Details of theft 8

Nature of theft

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

8.5 Forex losses 8

Nature of losses

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Incident

Disciplinary Steps taken/ Criminal 

proceedings

Other debt written off

Total

Recoverable revenue written off

Include discussion where deemed relevant

(Group major categories, but list material items: (debt 

written off relating to irregular expenditure, debt written off 

Irregular expenditure written off

Include discussion where deemed relevant

(Group major categories, but list material items)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

(Group major categories, but list material items)

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

9 Transfers and Subsidies

Provinces and municipalities 48, 49 -                     

Departmental agencies and accounts ANNEXURE 1B -                   -                     

Higher education institutions ANNEXURE 1C -                   -                     

Foreign governments and international organisations ANNEXURE 1E -                   -                     

Public corporations and private enterprises ANNEXURE 1D 36 960          -                     

Non-profit institutions ANNEXURE 1F -                   -                     

Households ANNEXURE 1G 1 718 981      -                     

Total 1 755 941      -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

10 Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets 216               -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures 41 -                   -                     

Heritage assets 39,41 -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment 39 216               -                     

Specialised military assets 39 -                   -                     

Land and subsoil assets 41 -                   -                     

Biological assets 39 -                   -                     

   
Intangible assets 40 -                   -                     

Software -                   -                     

Mastheads and publishing titles -                   -                     

Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks -                   -                     

Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models -                   -                     

Services and operating rights -                   -                     

Total 216               -                     

   

Compensation of employees -                     

Goods and services -                     

Total -                   -                     

The following amounts have been included as project costs in 

Expenditure for capital assets:

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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10.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2019/20

Voted Funds

Aid 

assistance TOTAL

R'000 R'000 R'000

Tangible assets 216                -                   216                 

Buildings and other fixed structures -                     

Heritage assets -                     

Machinery and equipment 216                216                 

Specialised military assets -                     

Land and subsoil assets -                     

Biological assets -                     

Intangible assets -                    -                   -                     

Software -                     

Mastheads and publishing titles -                     

-                     

-                     

Services and operating rights -                     

Total 216                -                   216                 

  

10.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2018/19

Voted Funds

Aid 

assistance TOTAL

R'000 R'000 R'000

Tangible assets -                    -                   -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -                    -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment -                    -                   -                     

Specialised military assets -                    -                   -                     

Land and subsoil assets -                    -                   -                     

Biological assets -                    -                   -                     

Intangible assets -                    -                   -                     

Software -                    -                   -                     

Mastheads and publishing titles -                    -                   -                     

-                    -                   -                     

-                    -                   -                     

Services and operating rights -                    -                   -                     

-                    -                   

Total -                    -                   -                     

  

Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, 

trademarksRecipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, 

models

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, 

trademarksRecipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, 

models

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

10.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets R'000 R'000

Tangible assets

Buildings and other fixed structures -                     

Heritage assets -                     

Machinery and equipment -                     

Specialised military assets -                     

Land and subsoil assets -                     

Biological assets -                     

Total                    -                      - 

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

11 Unauthorised Expenditure

11.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance -                   -                     

Prior period error 11.5

As restated -                   -                     

Unauthorised expenditure - discovered in the current year (as restated) -                     

-                     

-                   -                     

Current -                     

Capital -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                     

-                     

Less:  Amounts recoverable 15 -                     

Less:  Amounts written off -                     

-                   -                     

   

R'000 R'000

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation -                     

Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding and not derecognised -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

11.2 R'000 R'000

Current -                     

Capital -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

11.3 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per 

economic classification

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of the vote or a main 

division within the voteUnauthorised expenditure incurred not in accordance with the purpose of the 

vote or main division

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Less:  Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature with 

fundingLess:  Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature without 

funding and derecognised

Closing balance

Analysis of closing balance
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11.4 Details of unauthorised expenditure - current year 2019/20

R’000

Total -                   

  

11.5 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 57 189          -                     

Cash receipts -                   -                     

Disbursements -756              -                     

Cash on hand -                   -                     

Investments (Domestic) -                   -                     

Investments (Foreign) -                   -                     

Total 56 433          -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

13 Other Financial Assets

Current

Local

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Foreign

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Total Current other financial assets -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Non-Current

Local

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Foreign

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Total Non-Current other financial assets -                   -                     

   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Incident 

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Indicate the amount of significant cash and cash equivalent balances held by the department that are 

not available for use

Indicate any amounts of undrawn borrowing facilities that may be available for future operating 

activities and to settle capital commitments, indicating any restrictions on the use of these facilities; 

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

14 Prepayments and Advances

Staff advances -                   -                     

Travel and subsistence -                   -                     

Prepayments (Not expensed) 14.2 -                   -                     

Advances paid (Not expensed) 14.1 -                   -                     

SOCPEN advances -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

14.1 Advances paid (Not expensed)

 

Note

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2019 

 Less: Amount 

expensed in 

current year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

advances 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

14 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments -            -                       

Provincial departments -            -                       

Public entities -            -                       

Other institutions -            -                       

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

  

 

Note

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2018 

 Less: Amount 

expensed in 

current year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

advances 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2019 

Advances paid (Not expensed)14 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Provincial departments -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Public entities -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Other institutions -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

  

14.2 Prepayments (Not expensed)

Note

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2019 

 Less: Amount 

expensed in 

current year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2020 

14 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

Goods and services -            -                     

Interest and rent on land -            -                     

Transfers and subsidies -            -                     

Capital assets -            -                     

Other -            -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

  

Note

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2018 

 Less: Amount 

expensed in 

current year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments 

 Balance as at 

31 March 2019 

Prepayments (Not expensed)14 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

Goods and services -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Interest and rent on land -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Transfers and subsidies -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Capital assets -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Other -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

  

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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14.3 Prepayments (Expensed)

 'Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2019 

 Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments 

 Amount as at 

31 March 2020 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

Goods and services -                     

Interest and rent on land -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                     

Capital assets -                     

Other -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

 'Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2018 

 Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

prepayments 

 Amount as at 

31 March 2019 

Prepayments (Expensed) R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

Goods and services -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Interest and rent on land -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Transfers and subsidies -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Capital assets -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Other -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

14.4 Advances paid (Expensed)

 

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2019 

 Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

advances 

 Amount as at 

31 March 2020 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments -                     

Provincial departments -                     

Public entities -                     

Other institutions -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

 

 Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2018 

 Less: 

Received in 

the current 

year 

 Add/Less: 

Other 

 Add: Current 

Year 

advances 

 Amount as at 

31 March 2019 

Advances paid (Expensed) R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Provincial departments -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Public entities -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Other institutions -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Total -            -                    -                    -                   -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

15 Receivables

15.1

Trade receivables 15.2 -                   -                     -                    -                     

Recoverable expenditure 15.3 -                   -                     -                    -                     

Staff debt 15.4 -                   -                     -                    -                     

15.6 -                   -                     -                    -                     

Other receivables 15.5 -                   -                     -                    -                     

Total 212                -                    212               -                     -                    -                     

      

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.1 Claims recoverable 15

National departments -                     

Provincial departments 212               -                     

Foreign governments -                     

Public entities -                     

Private enterprises -                     

Higher education institutions -                     

Households and non-profit institutions -                     

Local governments -                     

Total 212               -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.2 Trade receivables 15

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.3 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts) 15

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.4 Staff debt 15

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.5 Other receivables 15

(Group major categories, but list material items)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

Fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

2019/20 2018/19

Claims recoverable

212                212               -                     -                    -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.6 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 15

-                   -                     

Less amounts recovered -                     

Less amounts written off -                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

15.7 Impairment of receivables

Estimate of impairment of receivables -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

16 Investments

Non-Current

Shares and other equity

(List investments at cost)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Securities other than shares Annex 2A

(List investments at cost)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

Total non-current -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Analysis of non current investments

Opening balance -                   -                     

Additions in cash -                     

Disposals for cash -                     

Non-cash movements -                     

Closing balance -                   -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Opening balance

Transfers from note 32 Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Interest

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

16.1 Impairment of investments

Estimate of impairment of investments -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

17 Loans

Public corporations -                   -                     

Higher education institutions -                   -                     

Foreign governments -                   -                     

Private enterprises -                   -                     

Non-profit institutions -                   -                     

Staff loans -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Analysis of Balance

Opening balance -                   -                     

New Issues -                     

Repayments -                     

Write-offs -                     

Closing balance -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

17.1 Impairment of loans

Estimate of impairment of loans -                            

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

18 Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance -                   -                     

18.2

As restated -                   -                     

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 338 991         -                     

Add:  Unauthorised expenditure for current year 11 -                     

Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 -418 339        -                     

18.1 -                     

Paid during the year -                     

Closing balance -79 348         -                     

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Prior period error

Transferred to retained revenue to defray excess expenditure 

(Parliament/Legislatures ONLY)

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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Note R'000 R'000

18.1 Voted funds/(Excess expenditure) transferred to the retained funds (Parliament/Legislatures ONLY) 18

Opening balance -                     

Transfer from the statement of financial performance -                     

Transfer from Departmental Revenue to defray excess expenditure 19 -                     

Closing balance -                   -                     

18.2 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error 18

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

19 Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance -                   -                     

As restated 19.1 -                   -                     

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 709               -                     

Own revenue included in appropriation 749               -                     

Transfer from aid assistance 4 -                     

18.1 -                     

Paid during the year -                     

Closing balance 1 458            -                     

19.1 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error 19

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 19 -                     

Total -                     

Prior period error

Transfer to voted funds to defray expenditure (Parliament/Legislatures ONLY)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

20 Bank Overdraft

Consolidated Paymaster General Account -                     

Fund requisition account -                     

Overdraft with commercial banks (Local) -                     

Overdraft with commercial banks (Foreign) -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

21 Payables - current

Amounts owing to other entities -                   -                     

Advances received 21.1 -                   -                     

Clearing accounts 21.2 -                   -                     

Other payables 21.3 134 535         -                     

Total 134 535         -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

21.1 Advances received 21

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

21.2 Clearing accounts 21

(Identify major categories, but list material amounts)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

21.3 Other payables 21

(Identify major categories, but list material amounts)

133 596         -                     

40                 -                     

899               -                     

-                     

-                     

Total 134 535         -                     

   

2018/19

One to 

two 

years

Two to three years
More than 

three years
Total Total

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

22 Payables – non-current

-                   -                     

Advances received 22.1 -                   -                     

Other payables 22.2 -                   -                     

Total -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

   

  

Include discussion where deemed relevant

National departments

Provincial departments

Public entities

Other institutions

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

2019/20

Amounts owing to other entities

North West Housing Corporation

Interest

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Coperative Governance and Traditional Affairs Reconfiguration Exp.

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

22.1 Advances received 22

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Annex 8B -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

22.2 Other payables 22

(Identify major categories, but list material amounts)

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

23 Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 339 700         -                     

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities -283 051        -                     

(Increase)/decrease in receivables -212              -                     

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances -                   -                     

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets -                   -                     

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 134 535         -                     

Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                     

Proceeds from sale of investments -                     

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets -                   -                     

Expenditure on capital assets 216               -                     

Surrenders to Revenue Fund -                   -                     

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor -                     

Voted funds not requested/not received -418 339        -                     

Own revenue included in appropriation 749               -                     

Other non-cash items -                     

Net cash flow generated by operating activities 56 649          -                     

   

  

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

24 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account 57 189          -                     

Fund requisition account -                   -                     

Cash receipts -                   -                     

Disbursements -756              -                     

Cash on hand -                   -                     

Cash with commercial banks (Local) -                   -                     

Cash with commercial banks (Foreign) -                   -                     

Total 56 433          -                     

   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

National departments

Provincial departments

Public entities

Other institutions

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

25.1 Contingent liabilities

Liable to Nature

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 3A -                     

Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A -                     

Other guarantees Annex 3A -                     

Claims against the department Annex 3B 125 312         -                     

Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 5 -                     

Environmental rehabilitation liability Annex 3B -                     

Other Annex 3B -                     

Total 125 312         -                     

Contingent assets 2019/20 2018/19

Nature of contingent asset Note R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

26 Capital commitments

Specify class of asset

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

27 Accruals and payables not recognised

27.1 Accruals

Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total

Goods and services 52                                                                                          36                  88                 -                     

Interest and rent on land 8 610                                                                                     8 610            -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                   -                     

Capital assets -                   -                     

Other -                   -                     

Total 8 662                                                                                     36                  8 698            -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Listed by programme level Note R'000 R'000

88                 

-                   

8 610            

Total 8 698            -                     

Where the disclosure requirements of the Standards are not done due to the sensitivity of the information, disclose this fact with reasons.

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Where the disclosure requirements of the Standards are not done due to impracticalities, and or the sensitivity of the information, disclose this fact with 

reasons.

Provide brief description on the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow.

Provide a brief discussion on the possibility of any reimbursement.

Where the disclosure requirements of the Standards are not done due to impracticalities and or the sensitivity of the information, disclose this fact with 

reasons.

Include reasons for material accruals

Administration

Housing Needs Planning and Technical Services

Housing Development
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27.2 Payables not recognised

Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total

Goods and services 670                                                                                        670               -                     

Interest and rent on land -                   -                     

Transfers and subsidies 106 792                                                                                  15 586            122 378         -                     

Capital assets -                   -                     

Other -                   -                     

Total 107 462                                                                                  15 586            123 048         -                     

   

2019/20 2018/19

Listed by programme level Note R'000 R'000

152               

518               

122 378         

Total 123 048         -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Included in the above totals are the following: Note R'000 R'000

Confirmed balances with departments Annex 5 -                   -                     

Confirmed balances with other government entities Annex 5 -                   -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

28 Employee benefits

Leave entitlement 7 589            -                     

Service bonus 3 251            -                     

Performance awards 1 231            -                     

Capped leave 8 465            -                     

Other 309               -                     

Total 20 845          -                     

 

29 Lease commitments

29.1 Operating leases

2019/20

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year 6 186             32                 6 218              

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years -                     

Later than five years -                     

Total lease commitments -            -                                                                                            6 186             32                 6 218              

2018/19

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years-            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than five years -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Total lease commitments -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Rental earned on sub-leased assets 3 -                     

Total -                   -                     

Administration

Housing Needs Planning and Technical Services

Housing Development

Include discussion where deemed relevant

At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards. 

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Provide a general description of the material leasing arrangements

Provide a general discussion on any assets that are sub-leased (if any), indicating the nature of the asset and the lessee (occupant/user of the asset).

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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29.2 Finance leases **

2019/20

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year -                     

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years -                     

Later than five years -                     

Total lease commitments -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

2018/19

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years-            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than five years -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Total lease commitments -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

** This note excludes leases relating to public private partnerships as they are separately disclosed to note no. 35.

2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Rental earned on sub-leased assets 3 -                     

Total -                   -                     

29.3 Operating lease future revenue

2019/20

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year -                     

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years -                     

Later than five years -                     

Total operating lease revenue receivable-            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

2018/19

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets

Land

Buildings and 

other fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Not later than 1 year -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years-            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Later than five years -            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Total operating lease revenue receivable-            -                                                                                            -                    -                   -                     

Provide an indication as to whether a reduction in the lease payments was granted in lieu of actual cash from the sale of the asset in a sale and 

leaseback arrangement.

Provide a general description of the material leasing arrangements

Provide a general discussion on any assets that are sub-leased (if any), indicating the nature of the asset and the lessee (occupant/user of the asset).

Provide a description of renewal or purchase options as well as escalation clauses (if any) per lease agreement.

Describe any restrictions imposed by on the department through any lease agreement (such as restrictions relating to enhancements, repairs & 

maintenance, sub-leasing and disposal)

Provide an indication as to whether a reduction in the lease payments was granted in lieu of actual cash from the sale of the asset in a sale and 

leaseback arrangement.

Provide a description of the leasing arrangement including renewal or purchase options as well as escalation clauses (if any)
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2019/20

31.2 R'000

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

6 325            

118 854         

Total 125 179         

  

2019/20

31.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned R'000

Incident Condoned by (relevant authority)

Total -                   

  

2019/20

31.4 Details of irregular expenditure recoverable (not condoned) R'000

Incident

Total -                   

  

2019/20

31.5 Details of irregular expenditure removed - (not condoned) R'000

Incident Not condoned by (relevant authority)

Total -                   

  

2019/20

31.6 Details of irregular expenditure written off (irrecoverable) R'000

Incident

Total -                   

  

2019/20

31.7 Details of irregular expenditure under assessment (not included in the main note) R'000

Incident

Total -                   

31.8 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

Members of housing tribunal appointed without portfolio concurrence

The professional service not costed on tender

Details of current and prior year irregular expenditure – added current year (under determination and 

investigation)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Include discussion where deemed relevant
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2019/20 2018/19

32 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure R’000 R’000

32.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance -                   -                     

-                            

As restated -                          -                     

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to prior year 32.2 -                     

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 32.2 -                     

Less:  Amounts recoverable 15.6 -                     

Less:  Amounts written off 32.4 -                     

Closing balance -                   -                     

32.2 2019/20

R’000

Total -                   

  

32.3 2019/20

R’000

Total -                   

32.4 2019/20

R’000

Total -                   

32.5 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

-                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

32.6 Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure under investigation (not in the main note) 2019/20

Incident R'000

Total -                   

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable

Incident 

Prior period error

Details of current and prior year fruitless and wasteful expenditure – added current year (under determination 

and investigation)

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off

Incident 

Include discussion where deemed relevant



 
 

150 
 

 

 

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

33 Related party transactions

Revenue received

Tax revenue -                     

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets -                     

Fines, penalties and forfeits -                     

Interest, dividends and rent on land -                     

Sales of capital assets -                     

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities -                     

Transfers received -                     

Total -                   -                     

Payments made

Goods and services -                     

Interest and rent of land -                     

Expenditure for capital assets -                     

Payments for financial assets -                     

Transfers and subsidies -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Year end balances arising from revenue/payments

Receivables from related parties -                     

Payables to related parties -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Loans to/from related parties

Non-interest bearing loans to/(from) -                     

Interest bearing loans to/(from) -                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Other

Guarantees issued/received -                     

List other contingent liabilities between department and related party

-                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

In kind goods and services provided/received

List in k ind goods and services between department and related party

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

List related party relationships and the nature thereof

2019/20 2018/19

No. of R'000 R'000

34 Key management personnel Individuals

Political office bearers (provide detail below) -                     

Officials: -                     

3                    2 540            -                     

1                    1 859            -                     

1                    -                   -                     

Family members of key management personnel -                     

Total 4 399            -                     

2019/20 2018/19

No. of R'000 R'000

Individuals

Key management personnel (Parliament/Legislatures)

Speaker to Parliament/the Legislature -                     

Deputy Speaker to Parliament/the Legislature -                     

Secretary to Parliament/ the Legislature -                     

Deputy Secretary -                     

Chief Financial Officer -                     

Legal Advisor -                     

Other -                     

Total -                   -                     

North West Housing Corporation is a Public Entity of the department. Amount disclosed in Transfers and Subsidies

Include discussion where deemed relevant

level 14

level 15

Level 16

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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35 Public Private Partnership

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Concession fee received                    -                      - 

                     - 

                     - 

                     - 

                     - 

Unitary fee paid                    -                      - 

Fixed component                      - 

Indexed component                      - 

Analysis of indexed component                    -                      - 

Compensation of employees                      - 

Goods and Services(excluding lease payments)                      - 

Operating leases                      - 

Interest                      - 

Capital/(Liabilities)                    -                      - 

Tangible rights                      - 

Intangible rights                      - 

Property                      - 

Plant and equipment                      - 

Loans                      - 

Other                    -                      - 

Prepayments and advances                      - 

Pre-production obligations                      - 

Other obligations                      - 

Any guarantees issued by the department are disclosed in Note 25.1

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

36 Impairment (Other than receivables, accrued departmental revenue, loans and investments)

                     - 

                     - 

                     - 

Total                    -                      - 

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

37 Provisions

-                     

-                     

-                     

Total                    -                      - 

   

37.1 Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2019/20

Provision 1 Provision 2 Provision 3 Provision 4

 Total 

provisions 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance                      - 

Increase in provision                      - 

Settlement of provision                      - 

Unused amount reversed                      - 

                     - 

                     - 

Closing balance             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2018/19

Provision 1 Provision 2 Provision 3 Provision 4

 Total 

provisions 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Increase in provision             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Settlement of provision             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Unused amount reversed             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

            -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

            -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Closing balance             -                                                                                      -                     -                    -                      - 

Provide a summary of the significant terms of the agreement, along with the parties to the agreement, and the date of commencement thereof

Include discussion where deemed relevant

Please specify

Base fee received

Variable fee received

Other fees received… please specify

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Reimbursement expected from 

third partyChange in provision due to 

change in estimation of inputs

Reimbursement expected from 

third partyChange in provision due to 

change in estimation of inputs

Provide a brief description of the nature of each obligation and the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits or service 

potential.

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Please specify

Provide a description of the uncertainties/estimates applied in each of the provision.  Where necessary, provide information on the major 

assumptions made concerning future events.

Where the disclosure requirements of the Standards are not done due to the sensitivity of the information, disclose this fact with reasons.
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38 Non-adjusting events after reporting date 2019/20

R'000

Total -                   

39 Movable Tangible Capital Assets

Opening 

balance Value adjustments Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -            -                    -                   -                     

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT -            -                                                                                     2 920             -                   2 920              

Transport assets -            -                    -                   -                     

Computer equipment -            2 061             -                   2 061              

Furniture and office equipment -            571                -                   571                 

Other machinery and equipment -            288                -                   288                 

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Specialised military assets -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Biological assets -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     2 920             -                   2 920              

Movable Tangible Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value

R'000

Heritage assets

Machinery and equipment

Specialised military assets

Biological assets

Additions

39.1

Cash Non-cash

(Capital work-

in-progress 

current costs 

and finance 

lease 

payments)

Received 

current, not 

paid (Paid 

current year, 

received 

prior year Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -                     

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 217        2 703                                                                              -                    -                   2 920              

Transport assets -                     

Computer equipment 217        1 844                                                                              2 061              

Furniture and office equipment 571                                                                                571                 

Other machinery and equipment 288                                                                                288                 

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Specialised military assets -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Biological assets -                     

217        2 703                                                                              -                    -                   2 920              

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 

ASSETS

Include an estimate of the financial effect of the subsequent non-adjusting events or a statement that such an 

estimate cannot be made.

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Included in the above total of the movable tangible capital assets per the asset register are assets that are under 

investigation:

Provide reasons why assets are under investigation and actions being taken to resolve matters

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
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Disposals

39.2

Sold for cash Non-cash disposal

Total 

disposals

Cash received 

Actual

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Heritage assets -                    

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT -            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Transport assets -                    

Computer equipment -                    

Furniture and office equipment -                    

Other machinery and equipment -                    

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Specialised military assets -                    

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Biological assets -                    

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

39.3 Movement for 2018/19

 Opening 

balance Prior period error  Additions  Disposals 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -            -                    -                   -                     

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Transport assets -            -                    -                   -                     

Computer equipment -            -                    -                   -                     

Furniture and office equipment -            -                    -                   -                     

Other machinery and equipment -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Specialised military assets -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Biological assets -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

39.3.1 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

  -                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 

 TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 

ASSETS 

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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39.4 Minor assets

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Value adjustments -                     

Additions 2 346             2 346              

Disposals -                     

TOTAL MINOR ASSETS -            -            -                                                                                     2 346             -                   2 346              

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

13                  13                  

1 169             1 169              

-            -            -                                                                                     1 182             -                   1 182              

Minor Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value

R'000

Specialised military assets

Intangible assets

Heritage assets

Machinery and equipment

Biological assets

Minor assets

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Additions -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Disposals -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

TOTAL MINOR ASSETS -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

39.4.1 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

  -                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

39.5

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Assets written off -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 

Specialis-

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Assets written off -            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Provide reasons why assets are under investigation and actions being taken to resolve matters

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 Prior period error 

 Number of R1 minor assets 

 Number of minor assets at cost  TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR 

ASSETS 

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 Number of R1 minor assets 

 Number of minor assets at cost  TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR 

ASSETS 

Included in the above total of the minor capital assets per the asset register are assets that are under investigation :

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Movable assets written off

 TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS 

WRITTEN OFF 

 TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS 

WRITTEN OFF 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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39.6 S42 Movable Capital Assets

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

330                330                 

2 703             2 703              

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

1 182             1 182              

2 346             2 346              

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

 

Specialis

ed 

military 

assets 

 

Intangibl

e assets  Heritage assets 

 Machinery 

and 

equipment 

 Biological 

assets  Total 

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

40 Intangible Capital Assets

Opening 

balance Value adjustments Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

SOFTWARE -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Intangible Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value

R'000

Software

Mastheads and publishing titles


Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks


Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models

Services and operating rights

 No of Assets 

 Value of the asset (R'000) 

MAJOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2019

 No of Assets 

 Value of the asset (R'000) 

MAJOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2020

 No of Assets 

 Value of the asset (R'000) 

MINOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2020

 PATENTS, LICENCES, COPYRIGHT, 

BRAND NAMES, TRADEMARKS 

 RECIPES, FORMULAE, PROTOTYPES, 

DESIGNS, MODELS 

 SERVICES AND OPERATING RIGHTS 

 TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Included in the above total of the intangible capital assets per the asset register are assets that are under investigation :

MINOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2019

 No of Assets 

 Value of the asset (R'000) 

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 MASTHEADS AND PUBLISHING TITLES 

Provide reasons why assets are under investigation and actions being taken to resolve matters
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40.1

Cash Non-cash

(Development  

work-in-

progress 

current costs )

Received 

current, not 

paid (Paid 

current year, 

received 

prior year Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

SOFTWARE -                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Disposals

40.2

Sold for cash Non-cash disposal

Total 

disposals

Cash received 

Actual

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

SOFTWARE -                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-                    

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Movement for 2018/19

40.3

 Opening 

balance Prior period error  Additions  Disposals 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

SOFTWARE -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

40.3.1 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

  -                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

 TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

DISPOSALS OF INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 MASTHEADS AND PUBLISHING TITLES 

 PATENTS, LICENCES, COPYRIGHT, 

BRAND NAMES, TRADEMARKS 

 RECIPES, FORMULAE, PROTOTYPES, 

DESIGNS, MODELS 

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 MASTHEADS AND PUBLISHING TITLES 

 PATENTS, LICENCES, COPYRIGHT, 

BRAND NAMES, TRADEMARKS 

 RECIPES, FORMULAE, PROTOTYPES, 

DESIGNS, MODELS 

 SERVICES AND OPERATING RIGHTS 

 PATENTS, LICENCES, COPYRIGHT, 

BRAND NAMES, TRADEMARKS 

 RECIPES, FORMULAE, PROTOTYPES, 

DESIGNS, MODELS 

 SERVICES AND OPERATING RIGHTS 

 TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

 SERVICES AND OPERATING RIGHTS 

 TOTAL DISPOSAL OF INTANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 MASTHEADS AND PUBLISHING TITLES 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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41 Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

Opening 

balance Value adjustments Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Dwellings -            -                    -                   -                     

Non-residential buildings -            -                    -                   -                     

Other fixed structures -            -                    -                   -                     

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -            -                    -                   -                     

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Land -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Immovable Tangible Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value

R'000

Buildings and other fixed structures

Heritage assets

Land and subsoil assets

Additions

41.1

Cash Non-cash

(Capital work-

in-progress 

current costs 

and finance 

lease 

payments)

Received 

current, not 

paid (Paid 

current year, 

received 

prior year Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Dwellings -                     

Non-residential buildings -                     

Other fixed structures -                     

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -                     

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Land -                     

-                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 

STRUCTURES

Mineral and similar non-regenerative 

resources

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Included in the above total of the immovable tangible capital assets per the asset register are assets that are under 

investigation:

Provide reasons why assets are under investigation and actions being taken to resolve matters

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 

STRUCTURES

Mineral and similar non-regenerative 

resources

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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Disposals

41.2

Sold for cash Non-cash disposal

Total 

disposals

Cash received 

Actual

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Dwellings -                    

Non-residential buildings -                    

Other fixed structures -                    

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Heritage assets -                    

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Land -                    

-                    

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

Movement for 2018/19

41.3

 Opening 

balance Prior period error  Additions  Disposals 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Dwellings -            -                    -                   -                     

Non-residential buildings -            -                    -                   -                     

Other fixed structures -            -                    -                   -                     

HERITAGE ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Heritage assets -            -                    -                   -                     

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Land -            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                    -                   -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

41.3.1 Prior period error Note 2018/19

R'000

Nature of prior period error

  -                     

Relating to 2018/19 -                     

Total -                     

Capital Work-in-progress

41.4 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Note

 Opening Balance 

1 April 2019 

 Current Year 

WIP 

 Ready for 

use (Assets to 

the AR) / 

Contracts 

terminated 

 Closing 

Balance 

31 March  2020 

Annexure 

7 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Heritage assets -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Intangible assets -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

TOTAL -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Age analysis on ongoing projects 2019/20

Planned, 

construction 

not started

Planned, 

construction 

started

Total

R'000

0 to 1 year

1 to 3 year(s)

3 to 5 years

Longer than 5 years

Total -                    -                   -                            

2019/20 2018/19

Payables not recognised relating to Capital WIP R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Note

 Opening 

Balance  Prior period error 

 Current Year 

WIP 

 Ready for 

use (Assets to 

the AR) / 

Contracts 

terminated 

 Closing 

Balance 

31 March 2019 

Annexure 

7 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Heritage assets -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Buildings and other fixed structures -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Machinery and equipment -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Intangible assets -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

TOTAL -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 

STRUCTURES

Mineral and similar non-regenerative 

resources

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF IMMOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

 BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 

STRUCTURES 

 Mineral and similar non-regenerative 

resources 

 TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Relating to 20WW/XX (affecting the opening balance)

[Amounts relating to progress certificates 

received but not paid at year end and 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Number of projects

Include discussion on projects longer than 5 years in capital work  in progress
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Immovable assets written off

41.5 IMMOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

 

Buildings 

and 

other 

fixed 

structure

s  Heritage assets 

 Land and 

subsoil assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Immovable assets written off -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

IMMOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 

Buildings 

and 

other 

fixed 

structure

s  Heritage assets 

 Land and 

subsoil assets  Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Immovable assets written off -            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                     

S42 Immovable assets

41.6 Assets to be transferred in terms of S42 of the PFMA - 2019/20 No of Assets Value of Assets

R'000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES -                   -                     

Dwellings

Non-residential buildings

Other fixed structures

HERITAGE ASSETS -                   -                     

Heritage assets

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -                   -                     

Land

Mineral and similar non-regenerative resources

TOTAL -                   -                     

Assets to be transferred in terms of S42 of the PFMA - 2018/19 No of Assets Value of Assets

R'000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES -                   -                     

Dwellings -                   -                     

Non-residential buildings -                   -                     

Other fixed structures -                   -                     

HERITAGE ASSETS -                   -                     

Heritage assets -                   -                     

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS -                   -                     

Land -                   -                     

Mineral and similar non-regenerative resources -                   -                     

TOTAL -                   -                     

 TOTAL IMMOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN 

OFF 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

 TOTAL IMMOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN 

OFF 
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2019/20 2018/19

41.7 Immovable assets additional information Note

a Unsurveyed land Estimated completion date Annexure 9 Area Area

-                     

b Properties deemed vested Annexure 9 Number Number

Land parcels -                     

Facilities

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

c Facilities on unsurveyed land Duration of use Annexure 9 Number Number

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

d Facilities on right to use land Duration of use Annexure 9 Number Number

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

e Agreement of custodianship Annexure 9 Number Number

Land parcels -                     

Facilities -                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

-                     

42 Principal-agent arrangements

2019/20 2018/19

42.1 Department acting as the principal

R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

42.2 Department acting as the agent

42.2.1 Revenue received for agency activities 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-                     

Total -                   -                     

For each of the individual principal-agent arrangements of the department, provide a description of the nature, circumstances, significant judgment 

applied, significant terms and conditions, any significant risks and benefits relating to the arrangements with the agentsFor each of the individual 

Include a list of the entities for which the department acts as an agent and the amounts received for 

these agency duties

For each of the individual principal-agent arrangements of the department, provide a description of the nature, circumstances, significant judgment 

applied, significant terms and conditions, any significant risks and benefits relating to the arrangements with the agents 

For each of the individual principal-agent arrangements include a discussion of the resource or cost implications for the principal if the principal-

agent arrangement is terminated.

For each of the individual principal-agent arrangements include a discussion of the resources that are under the custodianship of the agent and 

whether or not those resources have been recognised or recorded by the agent.

Include a list of the entities acting as agents for the department, the fee paid as compensation to the 

agent and any other transactions undertaken

Dwellings

Storage facilities

Other

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Storage facilities

Other

Schools

Clinics

Hospitals

Office buildings

Other

Schools

Clinics

Hospitals

Office buildings

Dwellings

Schools

Clinics

Hospitals

Office buildings

Dwellings

Storage facilities

Clinics

Hospitals

Office buildings

Dwellings

Storage facilities

Other

Schools
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42.2.2 Reconciliation of funds and disbursements - 2019/20

Category of revenue/expenditure per arrangement

Total funds 

received

Expenditure 

incurred 

against funds

R'000 R'000

Total -                    -                   

Reconciliation of funds and disbursements - 2018/19

Category of revenue/expenditure per arrangement

Total funds 

received

Expenditure 

incurred 

against funds

R'000 R'000

-                    -                   

-                    -                   

Total -                    -                   

42.2.3 Reconciliation of carrying amount of receivables and payables - 2019/20

Receivables

 Opening 

balance Revenue principal is entitled to

 Less: Write-

offs/settlemen

ts/waivers 

 Cash 

received on 

behalf of 

principal 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Payables

 Opening balance 

Expenses 

incurred on 

behalf of 

principal

 Cash paid 

on behalf of 

principal 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Reconciliation of carrying amount of receivables and payables - 2018/19

Receivables

 Opening 

balance Revenue principal is entitled to

 Less: Write-

offs/settlemen

ts/waivers 

 Cash 

received on 

behalf of 

principal 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Payables

 Opening balance 

Expenses 

incurred on 

behalf of 

principal

 Cash paid 

on behalf of 

principal 

 Closing 

balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

-                     

-                     

-                                                                                     -                    -                   -                      TOTAL 

 TOTAL 

 Name of entity 

 TOTAL 

 Name of entity 

 TOTAL 

 Name of entity 

 Name of entity 
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43 Change in accounting estimate

 Value derived using the original estimate 

 Value 

derived using 

the amended 

estimate 

 R-value 

impact of 

change in 

estimate 

 Value derived using the original estimate 

 Value 

derived using 

the amended 

estimate 

 R-value 

impact of 

change in 

estimate 

 Value derived using the original estimate 

 Value 

derived using 

the amended 

estimate 

 R-value 

impact of 

change in 

estimate 

44 Prior period errors

Note

 Amount bef 

error 

correction 

 Prior period 

error 

 Restated 

amount 

44.1 Correction of prior period errors R’000 R’000 R’000

-                     

-                     

Net effect -                    -                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Net effect -                    -                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Net effect -                    -                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Net effect -                    -                   -                     

-                     

-                     

Net effect -                    -                   -                     

Provide a description of the nature of the prior period error as well as why the correction was required

Provide a description of the nature of the prior period error as well as why the correction was required

Other: (e.g. Irregular expenditure, 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure, etc.)

Provide a description of the nature of the prior period error as well as why the correction was required

Liabilities: (e.g. Payables current, Voted 

funds to be surrendered, Commitments, 

Assets: (e.g. Receivables, Investments, 

Accrued departmental revenue, 

Provide a description of the nature of the prior period error as well as why the correction was required

Provide a description of the nature of the prior period error as well as why the correction was required

Expenditure: (e.g. Compensation of 

employees, Goods and services, 

Line item 4 affected by the change

Line item 5 affected by the change

Provide a description of the estimated impact on future periods

2018/19

Revenue: (e.g. Annual appropriation, 

Departmental revenue, Aid assistance, 

Line item 5 affected by the change

Provide a description of the estimated impact on future periods

Accounting estimate change 3: Provide a 

description of the change in estmate

Line item 1 affected by the change

Line item 2 affected by the change

Line item 3 affected by the change

Provide a description of the estimated impact on future periods

Accounting estimate change 2: Provide a 

description of the change in estmate

Line item 1 affected by the change

Line item 2 affected by the change

Line item 3 affected by the change

Line item 4 affected by the change

Accounting estimate change 1: Provide a 

description of the change in estmate

Line item 1 affected by the change

Line item 2 affected by the change

Line item 3 affected by the change

Line item 4 affected by the change

Line item 5 affected by the change

During the year the following changes were made to the estimations employed in the accounting for transactions, assets, liabilities, events and

circumstances 
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45 INVENTORIES 
(Effective from date determined in a Treasury instruction)

45.1 Inventories for the year ended 31 March 2020

 Insert 

major 

category 

 Insert major category 
 Insert major 

category 

 Insert major 

category 
Total

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Opening balance -                     

Add/(Less):  Adjustments to prior year balances -                     

Add:  Additions/Purchases - Cash -                     

Add:  Additions - Non-cash -                     

(Less): Disposals -                     

(Less): Issues -                     

-                     

Add/(Less): Adjustments -                     

Closing balance -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Inventories for the year ended 31 March 2019

 Insert 

major 

category 

 Insert major category 
 Insert major 

category 

 Insert major 

category 
Total

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Opening balance -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Add/(Less):  Adjustments to prior year balances -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Add:  Additions/Purchases - Cash -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Add:  Additions - Non-cash -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

(Less): Disposals -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

(Less): Issues -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Add/(Less): Received current, not paid (Paid current year, received prior year)-            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Add/(Less): Adjustments -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Closing balance -            -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

45.2 Land parcels held for Human Settlement

2019/20 2018/19

Note R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Opening balance -                     

Add/(Less):  Adjustments to prior year balances -                     

Add:  Additions/Purchases - Cash -                     

Add:  Additions - Non-cash -                     

(Less): Disposals -                     

(Less): Issues -                     

Add/(Less): Received current, not paid (Paid current year, received prior year) -                     

Add/(Less): Adjustments -                     

Closing balance -                   -                     

45.3 Work in progress for the year ended 31 March 2020

 Opening balance 
 Additions 

during year 

 (Ready for 

use / 

Suspended) 

Closing balance

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Clearing -                     

Infrastructure -                     

Structure of houses -                     

Adjustments -                     

Total -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Work in progress for the year ended 31 March 2019

 Opening balance 
 Additions 

during year 

 (Ready for 

use / 

Suspended) 

Closing balance

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Clearing -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Infrastructure -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Structure of houses -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Adjustments -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Total -                                                                                     -                    -                   -                     

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Add/(Less): Received current, 

not paid (Paid current year, 

Include discussion here where deemed relevant

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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45.4 Houses ready for use

 Quantity  2019/20  Quantity  2018/19 

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure 6

Opening balance -                    

Add/(Less):  Adjustments to prior year balances -                    

Add:  Ready for use in current year -                    

Less: Issued to beneficiaries -                    

Add/(Less): Adjustments -                    

Closing balance -                    -                   -                     -                    

Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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46 TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS AND MERGERS

46.1 Transfer of functions

Provide a brief description of the functions transferred or acquired and the reason for undertak ing the transaction or event.  

46.1.1 Statement of Financial Position Note

Balance 

before transfer 

date

Functions  

received

Dept name 

Cooperative 

Governance 

and 

Traditional 

Affairs

Functions 

(transferred) / 

received

Dept name 

(Specify)

Functions 

(transferred) / 

received

Dept name 

(Specify)

Balance 

after transfer 

date

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

ASSETS

Current Assets -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

Unauthorised expenditure -                        

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure -                        

Cash and cash equivalents -                        

Other financial assets -                        

Prepayments and advances -                        

Receivables -                     -                        

Loans -                        

Aid assistance receivable -                        

Non-Current Assets -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

Investments -                        

Receivables -                        

Loans -                        

Other financial assets -                        

TOTAL ASSETS -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

-                        

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be 

surrendered to the Revenue Fund -                        

Bank overdraft -                        

Payables -                        

Aid assistance repayable -                        

Aid assistance unutilised -                        

Non-Current Liabilities -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

Payables -                        

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

NET ASSETS -                     -                     -                     -                     -                        

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

The following Programmes - Housing Needs Planning and Research and Housing Development were transferred to the Department of Human Settlements in terms

of the Proclamation by the Premier for year ending March 2020
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46.1.2 Notes

Balance 

before transfer 

date

Functions  

received

Dept name 

Cooperative 

Governance 

and 

Traditional 

Affairs

Functions 

(transferred) / 

received

Dept name 

(Specify)

Functions 

(transferred) / 

received

Dept name 

(Specify)

Balance 

after transfer 

date

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Contingent liabilities 127 312           127 312             

Contingent assets -                        

Capital commitments -                        

Accruals -                        

Payables not recognised

Employee benefits -                        

Lease commitments - operating lease -                        

Lease commitments - finance lease -                        

Lease commitments - operating lease revenue -                        

Accrued departmental revenue -                        

Irregular expenditure -                        

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure -                        

Impairment -                        

Provisions

Movable tangible capital assets 2 703              2 703                 

Immovable tangible capital assets -                        

Intangible capital assets -                        

The amount of cashflow payable to COGTA  is disclosed in note 21.

MOU's was signed between Human Settlements HOD and COGTA 

Provide a reference to the proclamation or declaration giving effect to the transfer or receipt of functions
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46.1.2 Notes

Balance bef 

merger date

Combining 

Dept 

(Specify)

Balance bef 

merger date

Combining 

Dept 

(Specify)

Balance bef 

merger date

Combining 

Dept 

(Specify)

Balance after 

merger date

Combined Dept 

(Specify)

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Contingent liabilities -                        

Contingent assets -                        

Capital commitments -                        

Accruals -                        

Payables not recognised

Employee benefits -                        

Lease commitments - operating lease -                        

Lease commitments - finance lease -                        

Lease commitments - operating lease revenue -                        

Accrued departmental revenue -                        

Irregular expenditure -                        

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure -                        

Impairment -                        

Provisions

Movable tangible capital assets -                        

Immovable tangible capital assets -                        

Intangible capital assets -                        

Indicate whether there was an agreement drawn up, and  provide a description of the roles, responsibilities and accountability arrangements

Combining departments:  For each asset transferred and liability derecognised/removed, the carrying amount of the assets transferred and the liabilities 

Provide a reference to the proclamation or declaration giving effect to the merger along with the merger date.
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47 STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS RECEIVED

NAME OF GRANT

Division of 

Revenue 

Act/Provincial 

Grants

Roll Overs DORA 

Adjustments

Other 

Adjustments

Total 

Available

Amount 

received by 

department

Amount 

spent by 

department

Under / 

(overspending)

% of 

available  

funds spent 

by dept

Division of 

Revenue Act

Amount 

spent by 

department

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

 Human settlements Development 

Grant 1 934 947           -                          1 934 947         1 934 947         

      1 703 601 

231 346                

88%

 Title Deeds Restoration Grant 50 388                10 884               61 272               61 272                         15 164 46 108                   25%

-                          -                               

1 985 335           10 884               -                          -                          1 996 219         1 996 219         1 718 765         277 454                -                          -                          

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

GRANT ALLOCATION SPENT 2018/19
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ANNEXURE 1D

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

2018/19

NAME OF PUBLIC 

CORPORATION/PRIVATE 

ENTERPRISE

Adjusted 

appropriation 

Act

Roll Overs Adjustments Total 

Available

Actual 

Transfer

% of 

Available 

funds 

transferred

Capital Current Final 

Appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 R'000

Public corporations

Transfers 36 960             -                        -                        36 960             36 960             100.0% -                        -                        -                            

North West Housing Corporation 36 960             36 960             36 960             100.0%

-                         

-                         

Subsidies -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                        -                            

-                         

-                         

Sub total: Public corporations 36 960             -                        -                        36 960             36 960             100.0% -                        -                        -                            

Private enterprises

Transfers -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                        -                            

-                         

-                         

Subsidies -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                        -                            

-                         

-                         

Sub total: Provate enterprises -                        -                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                        -                            

TOTAL 36 960             -                        -                        36 960             36 960             100.0% -                        -                        -                            

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE
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ANNEXURE 1G

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

2018/19

HOUSEHOLDS

Adjusted 

appropriation 

Act

Roll Overs Adjustments Total 

Available

Actual 

Transfer

% of 

Available 

funds 

transferred

Final 

Appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000

Transfers

Human Settlement Development Grant 1 934 947        1 934 947              1 703 601 88%

Households Other 350                   350                   216                   62%

Title Deeds Restoration Grant 50 388             10 884             61 272             15 164             25%

-                         

-                         

1 985 685        10 884             -                        1 996 569        1 718 981        

Subsidies -                            

-                         

-                         

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            

Total 1 985 685        10 884             -                        1 996 569        1 718 981        -                            

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE
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ANNEXURE 3B

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

NATURE OF LIABILITY Opening 

balance         

1 April 2019

Liabilities 

incurred 

during the 

year

Liabilities 

paid/ 

cancelled/ 

reduced 

during the 

year

Liabilites 

recoverable 

(Provide 

details 

hereunder)

Closing 

balance 

31 March 2020

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Claims against the department

Claim for Damages Suffered 108 202             108 202             

Summons claiming payment for the work done 408                     408                     

Summons claiming payment for the work done 10 000               10 000               

Summons for land claim NWHC -                          -                          -                          

Summons claiming loss of profit resulting from the termination of contract -                          6 702                 6 702                 

Summons for loss incurred as a result of the termination of contract with NWHC -                          -                          -                          

Summons for review an award a tender Project Management Fuction 2 000                 2 000                 

Summons claiming payment for the work done 1 756                 1 756                 -                          

Subtotal -                          129 068             3 756                 -                          125 312             

Environmental liability

-                          

-                          

-                          

Subtotal -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Other

-                          

-                          

Subtotal -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

TOTAL -                          129 068             3 756                 -                          125 312             

ANNEXURE 3B (continued)

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Nature of liabilities recoverable

Movement 

during the 

year

Closing 

balance 

31 March 2020

R'000 R'000 R'000

-                          

-                          

Total -                          -                          -                          

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements

Details of liability and 

recoverablity
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ANNEXURE 4

CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

 GOVERNMENT ENTITY  31/03/2020  31/03/2019  31/03/2020  31/03/2019  31/03/2020  31/03/2019 

 Receipt date 

up to six (6) 

working days 

after year end  Amount 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

DEPARTMENTS

-                        -                        

-                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                              

OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Madibeng Municipality -                        4 002                -                        4 002                -                        

Moretele Municipality -                        34                     -                        34                     

Rustenburg Municipality -                        14 059             -                        14 059             

Tshwane Metropolitan -                        55 078             -                        55 078             

Merafong Municipality -                        713                   -                        713                   

Kagisano Municipality -                        1 193                -                        1 193                

Ramotshere Moiloa Municipality -                        394                   -                        394                   

Moses Kotane -                        32 519             -                        32 519             

Klerksdorp TLC -                        -                        1 363                1 363                

Maquassi Hills -                        -                        9 228                9 228                

Matlosana -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Tlokwe -                        -                        18 057             18 057             

Ga Segonyana -                        -                        2 366                2 366                

Mamusa -                        -                        15 580             15 580             

Ditsobotla -                        -                        3 712                3 712                

Mafikeng -                        -                        7 265                7 265                

Ratlou -                        -                        50                     50                     

Tswaing -                        13 906             -                        13 906             

Bojanala District Municipality -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        179 519           -                        179 519           -                        

Total -                        -                        179 519           -                        179 519           -                        

 Cash in transit at year end 

2019/20* 

NORTH WEST: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements

 Confirmed balance 

outstanding 

 Unconfirmed balance 

outstanding 

 Total 


